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INTRODUCTION.

FIVYHI PusLic are here presented with a new and accurate De-
i ~scripTioN of the Roaps of IrRELAND, comprised in a neat, cou=’
venient volume, similar to Mr. Patterson’s useful book of the Lnghsh
Roads; with this very material ‘advantage, however, that, in the
latter, no descriptions of the towus are given, and few -of the no-
blemen’s and gentlemen’s seats mentioned ; whercas, in this work,
the reader will ot oaly find those dCﬂCanCILS supplied, but accounts
of the most remarkable buildings, antiquities, modern improvements,.
natural productions, and every other partigular worthy the traveller’s
attention. The utility, therefore, of such a publication to all orders
of people, and particularly to travellers, must be obvious. Indecd,
the want of it heretofore had been so lonz andso universaliy felt, that.
“the dchuency can’ only be ac&.ouvtcd for from the dlﬂu.ulty of the
execution. .

To explain this difficulty, and to pomt out the various sources of in-
formation from whence the necessary materials for the compilation are
collected, might be deemed ostentatious : yet, let the intelligent weigh
well the nature of the undertaking ; of describing w\it has been hi-
therto undescribed ; of pointing out what before was unmnoticed ; of.
travelling over ground, which, though often trod, had never been ac-
curately surveyed ; and they will be convinced of the usefulness of a
work, not to be accomplished but with unremitting labour and consi-
derable expense.

The Post-Chaise Companion wdl be found to contain :

I. A Description of the City of Dublin.

II. Accurate Lists of the direct and cross roads of Ireland, with the
distances from the Castle of Dublin to the market-houses of the several.
towns ; or from the market-house of one town to that of another; ta-
ken from actual surveys by Taylor and Skinner, ahd many other well
authenticated informations ; besides which, near fifty roads, not hi-
therto given or described by any person, are here inserted 3 by which~
means, the destination of any traveller will be more (.ompktely point-
ed out.

I11I. Descriptions of cities, towns, noblemen’s and gentlemen’s seats,
public buildings, &, 'mprovamcnts, churches, castles, ancient ruins,
and other monuments of antiquity ; mountains, bays, halbouro, lakes,
rivers, spnngs, waterfalls, spas, glens, natural curiositics, &c. with
their respective distances from the nearest towns,-or from the places
Tast described.

IVi Lists of the circuits of the judges, and of the several post-
towns, and the rates of postage.

V. A Travelling: Dictionary 5 or, Alphabetical Tables, on a plan
entirely new ; shewing the distances of all the principal cities, bo-
roughs, market and sea-port towns in Ireland, from each othe
Tiizse tables will not only be found a most dt’alldble aj pend'lge to
this book, but may p"ove particularly uscful on various otiner occasions.

VI. An Index of the several towns mentioned ia the direct aud
cross roads ; shewing the county wherein cacit town is situated ; and

a



INTRODUCTION.

its distance from Dublin ; with references to the pages in which the
roads are to be found.

VII. An Index of remarkatle places, with references to the pages
in which they are mentioned. .

These are the chief particulars of the work, which, the editor
hopes, will appear to be accurately and faithfully attempted, and
as such, prove acceptable to all who are interested for the rising pros-
perity of this country. ‘

It is presumed, that, for finding the places wanted, little infor.
mation will be necessary, other than by referring to a very full in~
dex, where the page of the road is pointed out, and observing,
that the measurements of the road from one stage to another, shew
the distance in miles, halves and quarters, which are arranged in
two columns : for instance, the first gives the distance from one city,
town, or village, to the next; the further column, the number of
miles from Dublin, or the commencement of theé road, noting each
different county as the traveller enters. And, at the end of each
road, is given au account of whatever is worthy of observation, with
particulars of the several towns and seats, .

To find thesroad from Dublin to any city, town, or remarkable
village in Ircland, look for the name of the place in the Judex to the
Roads, and the figure opposite to it refers to the page in which is the
part of the road containing the place looked for; thus, from Dublin
to Cork, the index directs you to page 808, where you find Cork,
with its distance from Dublin, ~ ‘

In describing the lesser ronds branching out from the greater, the
last remarkable place on the great' road, or the spot where the less
turns off, is first given, with a reference to the page in which you
will find the road so- far as to that place ; and afterwards the branch
is continued : as for instance, to find the road from Dublin to Wa«
terford, the index refers you to page 874, where you find it in the
following form, viz. ’

Gowran, as in p, 871 —| 52 !
Thomastown, Kilkenny | 63| £82
Jerpoint 1% 60
Mullinavat 8| 68
Ferrybank 61 74+

‘W ATERFORD, Waterf. | * T4 '
By which it appears, you are referred to page 371 for this road as
far as Gowran ; thence the remainder of the road is given after the
above form in page 374, ns directed by the index. In like manner,
for the roads from Dublin to Ballyragget, the index directs to page
989, where you are referred to page 335 for one road as far as Cas.
tlecomer, and to page 808 for the road from Dublin to Kilcullen
Bridge, the continuation of each road being given in the several
pages referred to.  These references are made use of to prevent the
numberless repetitions which otherwise would unavoidahly occur ‘In
@ work of this kind, )
o7 For the information ‘of foreigners, it may be  here proper to
yemark, that eleven Irish miles are equal to fourteen British; and
one shilling and a penny Irish wrency is a British shilling,



DESCRIPTION

OF THE

CITY OF

D UBLIN, the metropolis of
Ireland, the second city in his
Mujesty’s dominions, and es-
teemed the fifth for magnitude
in Europe, is situated in the pro-
vince of Leinster, in the county
of Dublin, at the bottom of a
large bay. ‘The river  Liffey,
which here disembogues itself
into the ocean, divides the town
into nearly two equal parts:
formerly the city of Dublm was
confined to the S. side of the n-
ver. It wasa place of great an-
tiquity, Ptolemy, who flou-
rished in the reign of Antoninus
Pius, about the year 140, says it
was anciently called Aschcled.
In 155, Alpinus, whose daugh-
ter Auliana was drowned in the
Liffey, changed the name from
Aschcled to Auliana : it was af-
terwards named Dublapna, and
Ptolemy calls it Eblana, Dub-
Jana, whence comes Dublinum
and Dublin, is evidently derived
from Dub-feana, the placeof the
black harbour or lake, or rather
the lake of the sea, the bay of
Dublin being frequently so called.
This city has had a variety of
names. ~ The Irish called it
Drom-choll, ¢coily the brow of a
hazle wood ; and, in 181, Eogan,

DUBLIN.

king of Munster, being on a
royal tour, paid a.visit to this
place, which was then called
Atha Cliath-Dubh-Line, the pas-
sage of the ford of hurdles over
the black-pool the harbour of
Dublin was likewise known by
the name of Lean Cliath, or Leam-
Cliath, from-Lean, or Leam, a
harbour; and Cliath, or Cliabs,
which literally signifies 2 hurdle
or any thing made of wicker-
work; it also signifies certain
weirs formed with hurdles, and
placed in rivers and bays, by the
ancient Irish, for the purpose of
taking fish ; whence any river or
bay wherein these weirs. were
fixed had the name of Cliath, or
Cliabb, annexed to- it, to signify
the establishment of a fishery,
Dublin, therefore, being origin-
ally bpilt on, on near, one of
these harbours, was anciently*
called Bally-lean-Cliath, that is
the town on the fishing harbour.
It is described at the present day
in the Irish language by the ap-
pellations of Atk-Cliath, the ford
of hurdles, and RBally-atk Cliat,
the town of the ford of hurdles
the inhabitants having formerly'
had access to the river by hur.
dles laid on the low marshy
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grbunds adjoining the water:
and this name was also extended
to the N. side of the river, from
a temporary bridge of hurdles
thrown over the Anna Llfﬁ:y, a
corruption of Auin _Louiffa,
the swift river, so termed from
the rapidity. of the mountain
floode. This side was enlarged
by M¢T'urkill, the Danish prince,
who, notwithstanding, fixed his
habitation on the S. side, and
abandoned the northern town,
which, from the original coun-
try of the invaders, was cailed
Tastmantown, since corrupted to
Oxmantown,  King Edgar, in
the preface to his charter, dated
964, mentions Ireland with its
mostnoblecity [nobtlissima civitas]
of Dublin. By the Fingallians
it is called Divelin; and by the
Welch, Dinas-Dulin, or the city
of Dulin.

In 448, Alphin M‘Eachard

king of Dublin, and all his sub- {

jects, were converted to  chris-
tianity, by St. Patrick.- 1n 1146,
the first nunnery was built: it

was situated on the E. side of the

city, without the walls, in a vil-
lage called Hogges; and, being.
dedicated 6 the Virgin. Mary.
was styled the nunnery of St.
Mary de Hogges: Andrews’s
church now stands on a part of
the site of it; and from the vil-
lage of Hogges, was derived the
name of Hogge-hill, lately
changed to Andrew-street, as
well as that of Hoggm-green,
sow College-green, formerly. a
place for the . execution of male-
factors.  After the suppression of
religious houses, - this nunnery
was granted, by Edward VI. to
Jumes. Segrave and _his descend-
.ants, forever. It was first found-

ed by Dermott M¢Murrough,

<«
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.was situated on the N.

er’s name,

[iv
lowing the rule of St. Augustin s
but none were admitted into it
under the age of thirty years.

In 1166, the same monarch
founded - the priory of All Saints,
for Augustinian canpns of the or-
der of Araocia. Iun 1598, it was
granted to the citizens of Dublin,
who resignedit for the erection
of an university in 1560, when
the whole building, except the
steeple, was demolished ; and the
following year, on the site of this
priory, the foundation oi Trinity-
College was laid.

-Besides these religious houses,
there were also the following :

‘St. Mary’s-Abbey, (the site
of which, on the W. side of
Capel-strect, still retains the
name.) - It was built by the
Danes 498, for Benedictine

monks; whe gaveit up for the

accommodation of the Cistertian
orderyin 1159.

The priory of St. - Scpulchre s
side of

Neither the found-
nor the period in
which it . was first built, are, cer-
tainly known ; but it is thought
to have been the same priory for
Knights templars, mentioned in
the life of St. Patrick, = which
was erected at a . place called
Casgot, i that-quarter of the
suburbs. From Speed’s plan of
Dublic, taken in 1610, this pri-
ory appears to have been a large
building, with a considerable ex-
tent of ground belenging to it,
surrounded by-a strong- wall, in
which were two lofty portals on
the N. side, - and- two. smaller
gates on the 5. Nearly- oppasite
to one of the S. gates stead ano-
ther ancient edifice, distinguished
in  the plan by the name of

Kevin-street.

-Church on Paul.
kmg of Leiuster, for nuny fol-

The nunnexy of St. Mary les
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Pames was situated without the
E. gate, called from thence
Dame’s-gate ; and Dame-street,
at the W. end of which the gate
stood, also had its name from
his nunnery. -

The abbey of St. Olave, built
by a colony from DBristol, for
such of their. countrymen as
should embrace the order of St.
Augustin. It was situated at the
S.side of Castle-street, (where
Cole-alley is now built) and the

passage leading to it was from’

Ship-street, where there is still
to be seen in the town-wall the
marks of the portal called St.
Augustin’s-gate.

The monastery of Witeschan
waserected on or ncar the Coombe,
for Friars de Peenitentia, or Sac
Friars, who came into Ireland
about the year 1268,

The abbey of St. Thomas,
founded by William Fitz-an-
delm, butler to Henry IIL in
1172, for canons of St. Victor.
In 1545, Henry VIIL, granted it,
with all its jurisdictions, and a
curracate of land called Do-
nower, to Willlam DBrabazon,
Esq. ancestor to the present Earl
of Meath, It was situated in
that part of the Earl of Meath’s
Liberty now - called Thomas-
court. =

The priory of St. John the
Baptist, erected by Alured de
Palmer, in 1188, was situated
on the N. side of Thomas-street,
and to the westward of the pre-
sent site of the market-house.
A Roman catholic chapel, called
St. John’s chapel, is built on
part of the site of this priory,
of which there are now no other
remains but the ruins of  the
steeple.
= The priory of St. Saviour,

founded about the year 1202, by L
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whence the Inns-quay has

i
William- Mareschal, FEarl of
Pembroke, for Cistertian friars,
who gave it to the Dominicans in
1224, was situated on the nor-
thern bank of the river, to the
castward of the Qld-bridge.
Queen Elizabeth granted it to
the Duke of Ormond for ever.
It was afterwards appropriated to
the use of the Lawyers, and
called the King’s-Inzs, = from
its
nane. Part of the ruins re-
mained till the year 1776, when
they weére entirely clear’d away ;
and a magnificent building  is
now erected oz the site, for the
courts of law and public offices.

The monastery of St. Francis
was built in 1235, cn a piece of
ground given for the purpose by
Ralph de Porter, in that quar-
ter of the suburbs called Francis-
street. o '

The monastery of the  Holy
Trinity, founded in 1259, by
the family of Talbot; it stcud
on the present site of Crow-street
theatre, :

The monastery for Carmelites,
or white friars, was built about
the year 1278, by Sir Robert
Bagot, chief justice of the king’s
bench. The parliament sat in
this monastery in 1358.  Qucen
Elizabeth granted it to Francis
Aungier, who was created baron
Longford, in 1621, and on the
ancient site  Whitefriar-street,
Aungier-strect, Longford-street,
&e. are erected. '

A priory for knights ‘templars
was founded at  Kilmainham, "in
1174, by Strongbow, Earl of
Pembroke ; it was esteemed one
of the most spacious buildings ify
the kingdom. The royal h%spi.
tal of Kilmainhum is erected on
the site. : T

To these religious foundations
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may be also subjoined the church
of St. Michael le Pole, on the W.
side of great Ship-street ; close to
‘it was one of those ancient round
towers, peculiar to Ireland, and
the only onc 8f the kind within
the precincts of the metropolis ;
it remained standing and in to-
lerable preservation till the year
1781. St. Stephen’s church was
on thie S. side of Stephen-street ;
and a little to the westward was
another called St. Peter’s ; these
were both standing in 1610, but
there ave now no remains of ei-
ther. The hospital of St. Ste-
phen was érected on the present
site of Mercer’s-hospital. Stayue-
hospital was founded by Henry
de Loadres, in 1220 : it stood
without the walls, but the exact
situation iy doubtful.  Allens’s-
hospital was built in 1500, by
Johu Allen, Dean of St. Patrick,
for the reception of sick poor:
it was situated near the deanery-
house, in Kevin-street.

Inthe year 498, the Ostmen,
or Dancs, having' entered the
Liffey, with a fleet of sixty sail,
made themselves masters of Dub-
lin and the adjacent  country,
and soon after envirosed the city
with walls,
Jnot M<Murrough king of Lein-
ster’ having quarreled with the
other princes of the kingdom, a
confederacy was formed against
him by Roderick O’Connor, mo-
narch’ of Ireland. Dermot ap-

lied to Heory II. King of Eng-
ﬁmd, who sent over a number of
English adventurers, by whose
assistance he was reinstated in his
dumiuions ; and i the year
1171, the desceadants of the
Dunes still continuing to  hold
possession of Dublin, it was be-
sieged and tuken by a powerful
party of the English, under Ray-

Defcription of the City of Dublin.

About 1170, Der.’
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mond le Gross.  M¢Turkill, the
Damsh king, escaped to his
shipping : -he returned, however,
svon after, with a strong fleet, to
recover the city, but was killed
in the attempt, and in him ended
the race of Easterling princes in
Ireland. o ~

In 1172, Herdry IL landed at
Waterford, and obtained from:
Richerd, Earl of Strongbow,
(who married - the daughter of
Derinot M<Murrough, and, by
compact, was his successor) a
surrender of the city of Dublin,
where he built a pavilion of
wicker work, near St. Andrews’s
church, then situated where Cas-
tle-market lately stood, and there
entertained several Irish princes,
who voluntarily submitted to him,
on coudition ef being governed
by the same laws as the people
of England. Henry also held a
parliament here: in 1173, he
granted his first charter to Dublin,
and by divers privileges, encou-
raged a colony from Bristol to
settle here. : )

In 1210, upwards of twenty
Irish princes swore allegiance to
king John at Dublin ; engagin
to gtablish the English la\§: I>:m(gi
customs in the kingdom ; and in
the same year, courts of judica-.
ture were instituted.  1n 1216,
magna charta was granted to the
Irish by Henry I11. anentry of
which was madein thered book
of the Exchequer, at Dublin:
in 1217, the city was granted to
the citizens in fee farm, at two
bundred marks per annum; and.
in 1227, the above monarch or-
dained, that the charter granted
by king John should-be kept
inyjolably : in 1404, .the statutes
of Kilkenny and Dubliv' were
confirmed in a parliament held
at this city, under the Earl of
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Ormond. The charter of the
city of Dublin was renewed in
1609, by James 1.

The civil government of the
city was anciently under the ma-
nagement of a provost and bai-
liffs ; in 1308, John le Decer
was appointed the first provost,
and Richard de St. Olave, and
John Stakebold, bailiffs :"in 1409,
the title of the chief magistrate
was changed to that of mayor,
when Thomas Cusack was ap-
pointed to the office, Richard
Bove and Thomas Shortall be-
ing bailiffs : the office of bailiffs
was changed to sheriffs in 1547.
In 1660, Charles II. gave a col-
lar of S88. and a company of foot
guards to the mayor ; and 'in
1665, this monarch conferred
the title of Lord mayor on the
chief magistrate, to whom he
also granted 500}, per annum, in
lieu of the foot company. Sir
Danniel Bellingham was the first
lord mayor of Dublinj Charles
Lovet and John Quelsh were she-
nffs the same year, In 1672,
Arthur, Earl of Essex, intro-
duced new rules for the better
government of the city ; and in

"'1683, the Tholsel was built, for
the purpose of the magistrates
meeting to hold their courts, as-
pemblies, &c.

In the tenth certury, after the
fortifications of Dublin were re-
paired by the Ostmen, the walls
of the city, including those of
the castle, did not occupy more
than an Irish mile; they exte:d-
¢d from Winetavern-gate to Au-
deon’s-arch, and were continued
from thence to where Ncwgate
formerly stood ; and, froma plan,
published by John Speed, in
1610, it appears that they were
continued to Ormond’s-gate, or, }
as it has been since called, Worm-,

Description of the City of Dublin.
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wood-gate, from thence ta the
Old-bridge, and along the banks
of the river to a very large portal
called Newmao’s tower, neurly
in the present site of the S. en-
trance of Essex-bridge ; and from
Newman’s-tower, in an angular
direction, to Dame’s-gate, at the
W. end of Dame:-strcet. From
the gate at the S. W. angle of.
the castle, the wall ran to Ni-
cholas-gate, and was continued
from thence to Newgate., The
principal  streets without the
walls were, on the W, New-row,
Francis-street, Thomas-street,
and James’s-street : on the S.
were Patrick-strect, Bride-street,
and Ship-street ; and on the E.
Dame-street, George’s-lane, and
Stephen-street. That space of
ground now occupied by Crane-
lane, Temple-bar, Tlect-street,
Lazer’s-hill, or, as it is now

called, South Townsend-street,

Crampton, Aston’s,. George’s,
and Sir John Rogerson’s-quays,
&c. was then overflowed by the
Liffey. On the N. side of the
river, there were only Church-
street, Mary’s-lane, Hammond-
lane, and Pilldane, then built
but on one side as far as Mary’s-
abbey, which terminated the ex-
tent of that part of the town to
the ecastward ; Grange-gorman,
Stoney-batter, now called Mas
nor-strect, and Glnssmanogne,
were then villages at some dis-
tance from the city : and at the
latter, the sheriffs have held their
courts in times of the plague, as
being remote frcm the stage of
infection, In 1644, the inhabi,
tants, being numbered, zmounte
ed to 2565 men, and 2956 wo-
men, protestants 3 and 1202 men,
and 1406 women, Roman ca-
tholics, making in the whole

| 8159,
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By comparing this account of

the ancient state and” boundaries |

of the metropolis with the. fol-
lowing description of its present
extent, population, and magni-
ficence,  an idea will be readily
formed of the amazing increase
and improvement it hath expe-
rienced within the last. cen-
tury.

Dublin is seated in view of the
$ca on the E. and a fine country,

which swell, into gently-rising-

emincnces on the N. and W.
while it towers boldly.up in. lof-
ty mountains that bound the ho-
rizon onthe S. The city, itself
camot be seen to full advantage
on enteting the harbour : but the
approach to it from thence ex-
bibits a fine prospect of the
country for improvement and
cultivation, interspersed  with
numerous villas, that have a most
agreeable effect to. enliven this
delightful scene, which, begin-
ning at the water’s edge, is con-
tinued all over the coast to the
northward of the bay, as far as
the eye can reach, aud is finely
contrasted by a distant view of
the Wicklow mountains to the
S. where the conical hills, called
the Sugar-loaves, contribute not
a little, by the singularity of
their appearance, to embellish a
landscape, so extensive and pic-
turesque, asnot to be equalled by
any natural scenery in Europe,
but the entrance of the bay of
Naples, to which it bears a very
striking resemblance,

The form of Dublin is nearly
a square, a figure that includes
the largest area proportioned to
its circumference. Trom the
royal hospital at Kilmainham,
at the western extremity of the
town, to the E_ end of Towns.

end-strect, the length is two,
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miles and a half, and its great-
est breadth is computed to be of
the same extent : hence the city
is about ten miles in. circumfe-
rence. Its increase within the
last twenty years has been amaz-
ing : it now contains about twenty
eight thousand houses, whaose in:
habitants are estimated at three
hundred thousand souls. .

Dublin, with respect to its
streets, bears a near resemblance
to London, Some of the old
stroets were formerly narrow :
but this defect is now in a great
measure remedied by an act of
parliament, passed in 1774, for
opening the public avenues, tak-
mg down sign-posts, palisades,
pent-houses, &c. new paving the
streets, and flagging the foot pas-
sages : and, 1 1785, another
act passed for the better paving,
cleansing, and lighting the city ;
in consequence of which, an ad-
ditional number of globes, with
double burners, were put up at
the distance of thirty-six feet
from each other. These neces-
sary improvements contribute ¢x-
ceedingly to- the beauty and con-
venience of the metropolis. The
new . streets are wide and com-
modious, the houses lofty, uni-
form, and elegant: nor are several
of the old streets totally deficient
in these respects: to wit, Sack-
ville-street, or the Mall, which,
though built upwards of sixty
years ago, has been included in
the number of our new streets,
by all the late geographers, (a
self-evident proof that these wri-
ters had not even seen-the city.)
Within these few years past.
Sackville-street has received very
considerable improvements, par-
ticularly by -removing the Mall
in its centre, and by opening the
entire into one noble street of one
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hundred and twenty feet wide ;
which, extending from Carlisle-
bridge to the Rotunda and pub-
lic assembly.rooms, with the
new avenue, just opened on the
S. side, called Westmoreland-
street, from the college also to
Carlisle-bridge, renders this one
of the noblest avenuesin Europe.
Among these, on the N. side of
the river, in the same quarter
with Sackville-strect, are Gar-
diner’s-row, N. great George’s-
street, Granby-row, Cavendish-
row, and -Palace-row : the last
three form a superb square, hav-
ing the garden of the Lying-in-
hospital in the centre : the old
wall that encompassed the gar-
den having been taken. down,
there is now a full view of this
delightful spot, surrounded with
iron palisades, and upwards of
one hundred globes with double
burners, disposed at equal dis-
tances, which, added to the
globes from the surrounding
houses, have a most brilliant ef-
fect. 'This square, which for its
size, is not, perhaps, to be equal-
led, has lately received the name
of Rutland-square, in compli-
ment to his Grace the late Duke
of Rutland, who contributed
munificently towards the im-
provements in the enclosure of
the new-garden, and the erect-
ing an elegant edifice for ball
and supper -rooms, situated to the
E. of the hospital.

To the E. of Rutland-square,
a'new and elegant one has been
lately erected, called Mountjoy-
square, the centre of which is
faid out in gravel.walks, planted
with  ever-greens,  flowering-
shrubs, &c. and enclosed with
iron palisades, with lamps, 3c.
as Rutland-square. .
> Among the mew streets ar}x)d
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buildings on the S. side of the

river, those wherein persons of
distinction reside lie chiefly to
the eastward of the college and
Stephen’s-green ; which last,tho’
it does not rank with the new
buildings, possesses much gran.
deur and elegance, being one of
the largest squares in Europe : it
is an english mile in circumfe-
rence, surrounded by a gravel
walk planted on each side with
trees ; within this walk is a
smooth level meadow, having in-
the centre an equestrian statue of
the late king : there are several
fine edifices, though almost all
differing in the style of their ar-
chitecture ; this variety, - how-
ever, is esteemed by many ra-
ther a beauty than a defect: but
besides the other streets and build-
ings in this quarter, there is a
new square which is nearly as
extensive as Stephen’s-green, cal.
led Merion-square : it was laid
out some years ago, by the, late
Lord Fitzwilliam ; the buildings,
except a few, are quite finished ;
and the centre (like Rutland and
Mountjoy-squares) is enclosed
with 1won palisades, &c. and
formed into a beautiful garden,
adorned with shrubberies, gra.
vel-walks, and handsome ens»
trance lodges. o

S. of this square, and between
Baggot-street and Leeson-street
there is another square laid out,
of smaller dimensions, and cal-
led Fitzwilliam-square. E. cf
Merion-square, and on a conti-,
nuation of the S. and N. sides,
are . Mount-street and Pelham-
street : these squares, and adjoin-
ing strects of communication, are
all calculated for people of rank
and fashion, eminent merchants
and traders retiring from busi-,
ness, &c. but N. E. of these, and
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b etween the Articlioke road (now
called Grand' Canal-street) and
Sir John Rogerson’s-quay, there
are many extensive strects, of
‘great widths and ample depths,
laid ott for merchants and tra-
ders, requiring room to’carry on
their respective professions. Of
these, Great Clarence-strect, se-
venty feet wide, and eighteen
hundred feet in length to th
river, is now begun. :

Tn the midst of these “streets
ends the ‘Grand Canal, from the
intericr parts of the kingdom,
and is here terminated by a har-
bour and docks, of three hun-
dred feet in width, and upwards
of two thousind feet in length,
over whichthere is a fine bridge,
and a- double lock of communi-
¢ation with the river at full tides,
through which vessels will pass
freighted with  goods for foreign
and home consumption. -

At the 5. W, angle of Ste-
phen?.s-green, two new streets,
Harcourtsstreet-and Hatch-street,
have been lately opened, in the
former of which is a most ecle-
gant and superb building, the
town residence of the late Earl
Clonmell.

The principal entrance to the
walks of Stephen’s-green, 1s on
the W. side, opposite the end of
York-street, which may be pro-
perly classed among the new
streets, as all the old houses have
been pulled down, and modern
buildings ‘erccted in their room.
Baggot-street and Léeson street
have been so much extended; and
built “with such’ regulatity and
neatness, as torank with the first
itz these respects. .

Those parts of the city inha-
bited by merchants and traders
bézin to wear @ new face 3 and
amongst this number the new
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buildings of Dame-street, on the
S. side, exhibit an extensive, uni=
form and: beautiful’ range of
houses, all of an equal height »
the shop doors and windows are
formed by arches; exactly simi- -
lar in their construction and or-
naments, which are simply ele.
gant : when the other side of this.
street shall be rebuilt,  about one
“third of which is done, it may
;be justly pronounced one of the
first trading streets in Europe &
sand Parliament-street, which was
‘built some years ago, is now
‘nearly equal to any trading street,
-in London. :
' College-green is a place of a
' pyramidal form, and though of
ancient date is one of the most
splendid and pleasant. in the city.
Its base is formed by the grand
W. front of the college : on its’
N, side stand the late parliament-
house, and the new clubhouse,
a superb edifice of hewn stone,
in which a rustic basement sup-
ports a range of Jonic pilasters,
crowned with theit regular en-
tablature,” and terminated with’
antique ‘vases : and on its S side
is the post-office.  In the centre
of College-green there is erected
upon a marble pedestal an excel-
lent equestrian statue in brass of-
king William ITI. raised by the
‘city ‘of Dublin in grateful com-’
memorafion of their dehverance
from slavery under bis conduct.
The entrance into the harbour
is judged to be one of the most
beautiful in Europe. After pas-
sing the isle of Lambay, and that
of Treland’s Eyé; a rock lofty and
grotesque, and leaving thewurag-
‘gy mountaius of Howth on your
R. or, after passing the rocky
cliffs of Bray, as you approach
from the S. the Bay, that is some-

what more than two leagues
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broad, opensa most grand and |they immediately commuuicate,
exteasive prospect. Ou one hand | have been carried to a great ex-

. thehills and mouatains of Wick-
low strike the eye in magnificent

. scenery-: on the other, the gently-
rising shores of Cloatarf ful the
_spectator  with wonder and de-
Jdight while, between both, the
city ona rising ground at the ex-
tremity of the bay, and about
seven miles _from the ocean, ele-
vates its domes and spires, that
_terminate this beautiful prospect.
The cassoon, or Hght-house, si-
tuated about four miles from the

city,: seems, like another Pharos,.

‘to._rise out of the sea. The pas-
sage here in stormy weather is
very unsafe: but a stone-wall,
that stretches for three miles, con-

fines the channel on each side till

you reach Ringsend, to which
the city has nearly extended. On
‘the. N. side of the wall isthe har-
bour, -where vessels lie safe at
anchor with an open sea. From
.Ringsend up into the whole city,
the -river .1s commodiously em-
banked with quays; and excel-
lent docks on its respective sides
are, laid out sufficiently capaci-
ous to hold sevetal thousand

-vessels, and .are reputed to be.

quite as Jarge and  convenient
as- those- of Liverpool, but far
“more beautiful. .
_ The Custom-house on the N.
side of the river 18 one of those
elegant structures that few na.
tions can hoast, whether in point
of beauty or its convenient adap-
tion .to the purposes of com-
merce,. We donot believe that
any building of the kind in Eu-
rope can. hold a comparison with
it, and certainly it exhibits no
indifferent sign of the flourishing
stute of the country. -

Two canals on the opposite
sides of the river, with which

tent : the southern navigation ex-
tends upwards of forty Irish
miles, to the river Berrow; a,d
a branch of this canal is car~
red.on in  a western direction
to the Shannon; .the north-
ern cainal has also for its obiject
to communicate with the latter
riverin the county of Longford ;
and, by a collateral cut, to unite
with the Boyne navigation.

At Dublin, the river is crossed
by seven bridges, of which that
called Island-bridge, lately re-
built, stands as a monuwment of
national taste, and may Jusily be
called the Irish Riaite, forming
one grand arch that sweeps in'a
beautiful .and well-propertioned
direction from N. to S. extending
three huandred and fifty six feet:
the arch i1s an Ellipsis, whose
cord orspan measures one hund-
red aud four feet, being twelve
feet wider than the , celebrated
Rialto at Venice. ‘The key-stone
is twenty-two feet above high-
water mark, and. its breadth on
the top within the parapets or
plinths, thirty-eight fcet, includ-
g two  flagged foci-ways  of
six feet on each side. Essex-
bridge deserves the second notice,
not for its antiquity, but for the

_excellence of | ite .architecture ;

having about the year 1753 been
r b ikt after the model of West-
miluster-bridge, every stone of the
former being in exact confor-
mity and proportion with those
of the latter. Carlisle bvidge, now
finished from the design and un-
der the dircetion of Mr. James
Gandon, over tiie river Liffey,
(which at this partis one hund-
red and fifty feet wide,) consists
of three arches ; the centre arch
is forty-eight feet wide, and the
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two extreme arches seventy feet
six inches; they are executed
with mountain granite, of a fine
bright colour, which is happily
opposed by the cornice and bal-
lustrade at top, together with
part of the piers, that are com-
posed of Poatland stone, forn}-
ing a pleasant contrast by their
differents tints. The breadth of
the bridge is remarkably spaci-
ous, being sixty feet between the
ballustrades 3 which leaves am-
ple room both for horses and foot
passengers, and ‘is wider by ten
feet than that of Westminster.
"There are four bridges besides
these over the river; three of
which have nothing to recom-
mend them, farther than the anti-
quity of the Old-bridge, which
was crected in this city at a very
early period, when it ha_d the
name of Dublin-bridge ; it was
re-built in 1428, since which
time it received its present title,
Barrack-bridge, formerly called
Bloody-bridge, built in 1671,
was origimally  constructed with
wood, and derived that harsh ap-
pellation from an- attempt to
break it down, wherein four per-
scns were killed. Ormond-bridge
was built in 1684, during the
Ormond administration §  this
bridge was destroyed by the
great floods in December, 1805.
Arran-bridge, now called Quecn’s-
bridge, was erected in the sgae
year; but, being destroyed by
the floods in 1763, wss re-built
of hewn stone, and finished i
1768, It consists of three arches,
with flhgged foot passages, stone
ballustrzdes und ornamented de-
corations, in a handsome light
style, admired by every amateur
of the arts, Instead of the old
Panish wall, the city is sur
founded by a ¢ircular read,
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whose circumference is about ten
English miles. The city con-
tains twenty parishes, that have

“nineteen churches, and two cha-

pels of ease, fifteen Roman-
catholic chapels, six presbyte-
rian meeting-houses, one for ana-
baptists, four for methodists, two
for quakers, a church for Freach
calvinists, one for French luthe-
rans, a Danish and Dutch
church, and a Jewish synagogue.

Dublin is the see of an arch-
bishop, erected in the year 1152
it was a bishopric in the seventh
century, and in the year 1214,
the bishopric of Glandelough,
which was founded in the sixth
century, was incorporated with
Dublin. The see of Dublin has
two cathedrals, “both within the
city ;5 Christ’s.church, or the
church of the Blessed Trinity,
was first built by Sitricus, the son
of Amlave, king of the Ostmen
of Dublin, and Danat, then bish-
op of Dublin, about the year
1038. Its situation is nearly in
the middle of the city, and the
whole building very spacious and
ornamental, containing a vast
number of superb and curious
monuments, particularly that of
Strongbow, which still continues
in good preservation. This
church was founded for regular
canons, and converted into a col-
legiate for a dean and chapter by
Henry VIIL in the year 1514,
The other cathedral, that of St.
Patrick, was founded-for thirteen
prebendaries, which number has
since been increased to twenty-
two. This cathedral, situated
on the 8, side of the city, was
erected about the year 1190, by
Joln Comyn, then archbishop of
DNubliv,  In its first constitution
it was collegiate, but De Loun«
dres, Comyn’s successor exccted
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it into a cathedral. In the year|
1870, archbishop Minot added to
it a high steeple of squared stone :
and in 1750, doctor Sterne, bish-
op of Clogher, on this steeple
erected a lofty and beauntful
spire, little inferior to that of Sa-
lisbury. This cathedral contains
several - excellent  monuments,
among which that of dean Swift,
a name so dear to the Irish nation,
claims pre-eminent regard. The
beauty and magnificence of this
cathedral stand unrivalled in
Ireland.

"The university was first pro-
jected about the year 1311, but
had scarce an existence till the
reign of Elizabeth,. who granted
it a charter. James, her succes-
sor, endowed it with considera-
ble estates in ‘the province of
Ulster ; and in that province alone
it i3 reputed to possess one hund-
red and thirty thousand acres,
Charles 1. wasagainitsbenefactot,
and, "abolishing the old statutes,
gave it others with a new char-
ter. It consists of a chancellor,
vice-chancellor, provost, vice-pro-
vost, twenty-two fellows, and se-
venty scholars on the foundation,
It has five royal professorships,
divinity, common law, civil law,
physic, and greek, In addition
to these Sir Patrick Dunnr found-
ed three others, of physic, phar-
macy, and chirurgery.. There
are likewise professorships of as-
tronomy, mathematics, and na-
tural philosophy, of the Irish and
Oriental languages, of oratory,
and of history, The number of
students, ucluding the seventy
on the foundation, are usually
about five hundred. The build-
ing is very noble, consisting
within of two large quadrangles,
that have a well-designed library,
lgid our for helding ninetythou-
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sand volumes : itslength exceeds
two hundred feet. The old cha-
pel has lately been taken down,
and on the N. side of the out-
ward square a new one of un-
common beauty erected. In thig
square is a muszum, and beyond
the inner, a haundsome prioting-
office. Atthe E. endis a de-
lightful park, or Lyczum, for
the rccreation of the students.
The provost has an excellent
house of the Doric order, with
extensive gardens; and about
four miles N. W. of the city a
beautiful observatory has lately’
been erected on a convenient hiil
for that purpose, with an Eng.
lish professor. 'This building al-
together is extremely grand ; its
front, which is of the Corinthian
order, and of Portland stone,
measuring upwards of three
hundred feet, and baving all the
appearance of a palace ; and in-
deed, when we consider the vast
endowments of this college, be-
ing by far the richest in Europe,
or perhaps in the world, it ma;'
well be called a Royal Founda-
tign.

Westward of the college stands
the late parliament-house, frouted
with a grand arcade of Ionic co-
lumas, all of Portland stone, and
so quuisitelr graceful that it is
supposed to have no rival. But
a late addition to each side, hag,

_in the opinion of the best judges,

contributed but little to increase
its original  beauty: yet even
with this defect, it would not
disgrace the best architecture of
ancieat Grerce or Rome,  That
part of the building where the
commons sat was destroyed by
fire some years ago ; but another
commons-house has since risen
from its ashes, of equal or per.
baps superior elegance ; the form °
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isa polygon, with an amphithe-
atrical gallery for “strangers to
hear the debates in. At 'the top
of this magnificent roow is a
grand dome, that rises above the
building in a just elevation. The
foom whoire- the lords sat has
nothing remarkable cither for its
size or structure: but the Bri-
tish empire docs not boast, nor
Europe itsclf posses, & senatorial-
ball so worthy of a great nation.
This building - does honor to the

administration of Lord Carteret,

in whose time the first stone was
laid. . Since the anion it has
been sold to the directors of the
bank of Ireland, for the purpose
of converting it into a national
bank. - .
The Castle is an -ancient. for.
tress, built in 1205, originally
moated and flanked with several
towers, having a draw.bridge,
portcullis, &c. Of  these towers
the strongest and most -famed
was that called Birmingham-
tower, from Sir William Birm-
ingham, and Walter his son,
who there suffered a long im-
prisonment about the year 1331.
This tower had then, and for a
long time after, being used asa
state-prison 3 but in 1775 was
taken down, a new one being
erected on its site, it is now
principally used for preserving
the archives of the kingdom. In
this fortress the courts of justice’
usually sat, and occasionally the
parliaments.  Queen Elizabeth
having - settled Ireland, repaired
and beautified it, converting it
into a royal residence, for which
purpose 1t has since been chiefly
used, exceeding in point .of
beauty either St. James’s or. Ken-
sington palace: and indeed it has
Jost much-of its-ancient strength,
assuming a more. graceful form,
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better  adapted to times of
pedce and tranquillity, It has

two courts, -the upper and the
lower s the several. offices of state

are kept here, the treasury, ord-

nance, war, secrctaries, &c. with
an arsendl and armoury for eigh-
ty thousand men. ]

The Royal Exchange, which
adjoins the Castle, was finishsd
in the year 1779 the first stone
of it was laid by Marquis Town-
send, in 1769, then lord licute-
nant. It is somewhat- singular,
that the same sum, expended in
the very same .given period of
years, from 1729 to 1789, e-
rected that noble structure, the
Parliament House. Yet this su-
perb pile, that had cost the city
the ‘immense sum of -40,000l.
does not possess ‘all - those advan-
tages which the merchants ex-
pected from it. But.a new struc-
ture lately erected in ‘Dames
street, called ¢ The Commer-
cial Buildings,” and raised by
private subscription, it is thought
will obviate most .of the inconve-
niencies.of the present Exchange.
This last erection, however,
which is extremely elegant, is
more immediately intended for a
stocksexchange, brokers’ sales,
ship-insurance, &c. the former
place for transacting these species
of basiness being highly incom-
modious. ; . :

Besides  the Royal Hospital of
Kilmainham, and the Royal Mi-
litary Infirmary, -with the Hi-
bernian and Marine societies, for
‘maintaining and educating  the
children of soldiers and seamen,
the chartersschool,” ncar
Clontarf, this city contains no less
than * twenty-three charitable in-
stitutions, most of them of pri-

‘vate endowment ; a proof of the

vast humanity of the Irish!
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These institutions are adapted
to every situation ard every age
of life, insomuch that no-city
can boast greater examples of
attention to all the objects of
distress. ’ .

The Royal College of physi-
clans was established in 1679,
that of surgeons in 1785,

The Royal or Kilmainham-
hospital was erected by Charles
TI. about the year 1684, for the
reception of invalid and superan-
muated soldiers. It is generally
full, and is calculated to hold

three hundred of these deserving y

servants of their country. The
building is well adapted for the
purpose, and -stands on the 8.

side pf the river, commanding an -
viewed'

advantageous elevation :
from the Phenix-park, whose
wall originally enclosed it, it lias
an admirable effect. This hos-
pital wus the second eleemosynary
mstitution, the Blue.coat-hospi-
tal in 1670, being the first
founded in Dublin 3 and, indeed,
the continual wars and contests
in which Ircland from time im-
memorial had been engaged,
may account for that humane
people not sooner establishing. in-
stitutions that are always the
work of peace.

The Barracks founded in 17086,
at the expense of the Crown, are
“supposed to be the largest and
handsomest in Europe. In times
of peace, four battalions of foot,
and one regiment of horse, are ge-
nerally garrisoned here. It con-
sists of four open and spacious
courts, whose elevated situation is
at once healthy, and commands
a fine prospect.

The new Courts of Justice, on
the same side of the river, are
extremely noble and convenient :
the building is of a circular
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form ; and witliin, the upper part

-of the dome is ornamented -with

the busts of the most celebrated
legistators, ancient and modern,
adoried at the same time with
sculptured devices, ~ appropriate,
and executed in a masterly style,
A range of law-oflices, {fivished;
in-a striking mannes, completes
this beautiful edifice. The whole
presents from without a structure
than in its kind has seldom been
excelled : but its effect 18 some-
what spoiled by standing too
close upon the river,

A new Session-house, nearthe
New-prison, has also been lately
erected ; and the Tholscel, of
course; -where.. criminal matters
were used to be tried, serves nove
principally for the transaction of
city business. -

The Play-house has been
much improved and beautified :
and Leinster-house, the mansion
of the duke of that name, is the
noblest city residence in the Bri-
tish dominions.

The Linen-hall is a neat elea
gant building, ‘erected in the
year 1728, for the purpose of
detecting frauds in this the grand
manufacture of the kingdomi. It
is of great national utility, the
chief officers of state and other
principal persons being the guar-
dians and trustees of thig staple
branch of the Irish trade. To
this may be added the silk, woole
en, and worsted manufactures,
established in this city, and of
late highly improved.

A great number of useful and
handsome fountains, for the
health and convenience of the
citizens, are disposed in different
parts of the town, - .

Duablin is remarkably well sup-
plied with flesh, fowl aud fish,

the latter in much greater per~
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fection thin any other capital in
Europe. It is supplied - with
coals- chiefly from Cumberland
and Scotland : and water is con-
veyed to the city on the N. side,
from the river Liffey, by ma-
chings curiously constructed for
the purpose, at an outlet called
Island-bridge : the S. side is sup--
plied with that necessary article
from a fine reservoir or bason,
surrounded with a wall asd a
handsome grass walk enclosed
on each side by a thick-set hedge
and trees planted at equal dist-
ances. At a small distance from
the bason there is a bridge of a
ingle arch thrown over the ca-
nal, the elegance and- architec-
ture of which are much admired :
the sides of the canal for some
miles into the country are
planted with elm-trees, which
render its banks in fair weather
a delightful place of exercise for
the citizens ; who also resort for
recreation to his Majesty’s Phee-
nix-park, which was formerly
part of the monastery of St. John
of Jerusalem, a fine extensive
enclosure at the west-end of the
town and on the opposite side of
the river to the canal, diversified
with woodland, champaign and
rising-ground, and well stocked
with deer. It is seven miles in
circuit 3 and, besides the Hiber-
nian-school, is adorped with the
viceroy’s beautiful villa, the seat
of the priucipal secretary, and
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some other handsome lodges be-
sides those belonging to the ran-
gers : in this park are also a ma«
gazine for powder and a battery
that commands the city. In
1747, a fluted pillar, thirty feet
high, with a phanix on the top,
was crected in the centre of a
ring in this park, by the celebra-

ted earl of Chesterfield when lord

licutenant of Ireland.

The civil goverment of the
city is executed by a lord mayor,
recorder, two sheriffs, twenty-

four aldermen, and a common-

council, formed of representa-
tives from the twenty-five cor-
porations. The lord mayor tries
all offences, even capital ones,
except murder and treason, and
matters of property for any sum
under 201 ;

A new police, established by
act of parliament, under super-
intendent-justices, with a chief
¢onstable, the whole forming a
body of about five hundred foot,
called watch-men, protects the

city, as well by day as by night,

a sufficient number of these being
constantly on guard. Such is the
police of Dublin: and such a city
deserves. all the protection that
power and the laws can give it.

Dublin is seated sixty -miles.
W. of Holyhead in Wales, and
three hundred and . thirty N. W.
of London. Long. 6. 30. W, Lat.
53. 14. N. :



GREAT -AND DIRECT ROADS.

Measured JSrom the Casziz of Duniin :
With the ROADS branching from them to

Crries, Towns, orR VILLAGES.

— 0GP P PO

The names of Ciries are printed in Smarr CariTays; thofeof Borough Towns
in Italics, The letters R. or L.fhew youare to keep the right or lett in going
to the place to which they are prefixed. . i

The Firft Column fhews the Diftance from one Place to anothec,

The Second Column fhews the Diftance from DvaLix,

e o <S50 000 0]

DUBLIN to Belfust and | N. B. You may go to Belfafk
Donaglmdee without paffing through Lifburn, by
) turning to tho right, at the bridge
Dmchndra, Co. Dullin 2 | end, near the latter turn. It is a
Santry 13| g& | pleafant road, and only halfa mile
Seworde 33 74 longer than the other. You may alfa
T 1 at Belfaft bridge, turn to the right,
Murvey 2 | 9 |and favea mile,by not going through

Belruddery i [ved M
Julianst. Bridge, Meath 6 20;: At Drumcondra, on the L.
Drogheda, Louthis2|241 | after you pass the bridge, is Bel-
Dunleer o 7 [30% | vedere, a very pleasant seat of
Castle-Bellingham 1 [341 | Mr, Sweetman, formerly belong-
Iburg[ax;é-Green : 8 [37% | ing to Lord Rokebyf late primate
unda 3 [40% [ of all Ireland. his was for-
Jonesborough,  Arinagh53453 | fermerly the seat of Lord Chan-
é\ﬁ‘wryﬁ . Downi42, 50% | cellor Bowes, wha greatly im-

cep-Bridge . 31532 | proved it.
Loughbrickland 5 583 On the R. near the church, is
Banbridge 23{60%{ the family seat of the Cloghills,
Dx:omore 4166 | new inhabited by Alderman An-
Hillsborough . {34{691 | drews, and nearit is the seat of

Iét;;'um, Antrim'31/73" | Mr. Hone. .

elfast . 80 On the L. of Santry is Santry-
Newtownardes, ,Down"’i% 874 {house, a large and beauti?ul
Donaghadee 1631942 | edifice, with extensive and fine




3] .

demesnes, aseat belonging to Mr.
Domville.

Near five miles from Dublin,
on the L. is Tamora, the seat of
Counsellor Wilkinson; half a
mile beyond which is Cloghran
church, on _the R.—Adjoming
the church is the seat of M.
Shields. .

Swords is 4 borough, the
electors of which are called pot-
wallopers, but since the Unioi
returns no members to parliament.
Here is one of those ancieut round
towers, which are almost pecu-
liar to Ireland ; it is seventy-three
feet high, and fifty-six feet dis-
tant from ‘the church. It is of
a plainer structure, and more
rude than some edifices of the
same nature—an attentive ob-
server may discover a little irre-
gularity on the tower; near its
summit, which was rebuilt within
these last twenty or thirty years.
The Archbishop of Dublin many
centuries ago had a residence at
Swords, the surrounding walls
of which still remain.

About a quarter of a mile on
the R. of Swordsis Mantua, the
scat of Mr. Bunbury. .

Half a mile beyond Swords,
near the turnpike, on the L. is
Lissen-hall; the seat of Mr. Gor-
don. Onthe R.is the seat of
Mr. Hatch.. Lower down the
river is Villa, the seat of Lieut.
General Massey. -

Tywo miles beyond Swords, on
the R. is Turvey, the scat of
Lord Kingsland. One mile far-
ther, on the .R. is Curduff, the
seat of Mr. Baker, and about
three miles farther is the Man of
War Inn, at the rere of which is
a barrack for a troop of horse. .

Two miles beyond Turvey,
on the mad to Rush, and situated
on a rising ground over the sea,

To Drogheda, and Donaghadee.
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is Mount Evans, the seat of
Hampden Evans, Esq. Half a

- mile beyond Turvey, at some

distance on the L. are the ruins of
the nunnery of Grace Dieu.

Balruddery, which gives name
to one of the Baronies of the Co.
Dublin, stands about a mile from
It is a vicarage in the
diocese of Dublin j the church,
which was formerly a handsome
structure, is now in ruins. The
town itself is much on the decline.

A mile to the R. of Balrudde-
ry, but not scen from the road; is
Prospect; a seat of the Marquis
of Bective, and half a mile far-
ther is Hampton-hall, -which was
the beautiful seat of the latc Mr.
Baron Hamilton. :

A mile and a half beyond Bal-
ruddery, on the R.is Balbriggen,
d seaport town, remarkable for
extensive cotton manufactories.

N. B. Through Balbriggen is
the best carriage road.

Three -miles and a half from
Balruddery, on the L.is Gor-
manstown, the seat of Lord Gor-
manstown. The house  is old,
but has very noble and splendid
apartments init, and the improve-
ments render it a very agrecable
mansion. The demesne about the
seat is well cultivated, and pretty
extensive,

On the R. of Julianstown-
bridge is Ballygart, the seat of
Thomas Pepper, Esq. and on
the opposite side of the river
Nanny i1s Ninch, the beautiful
seat of Mr. Doran, both situated
at the mouth of the river.—The
combination of water, wood,
and falling pasture ground, as
seen here from Julianstown-bridge,
presents a scene of - pastoral
beauty, bardly to be surpassed in
its_kind in any country.

Near Drogheda, on the R. is
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Green-hills, the seat. of Mrs.
Doran, -
Drogheda is large, regular

and well built, and a town and
county in itself, situated on the
river Boyne, five miles W. of
the Irish channel. It has a good
harbour, and a barrack for two
.companies of foot. It was taken
several times, and particularly by
Oliver Cromwell, who stormed
it, ard put all the inhabitants
to the sword. The prospect of
Drogheda is very stuking, from
‘the old towers that rise above the
houses. Here is a handsome
modern church, built of very
white hewn stone, with a lofty
spire, ,on the site of a very an-
cient one.  There has been lately
built, at the expense of the-cor-
poration, a large and commodi-
ous market-house ; the front is of
white hewn stone, and the whole
finished in a’style of elegance far
superior to any thing of the kind
that this, or even the sister king-
dom can boast. Some fine abbies.
are to be met with here, which
with several gates and town
walls, still entire, demonstrate its;
antiquity. Drogheda returns one:
member.to the united parliament. |
. Two miles up the river from:
Drogheda is Old-bridge, where;
there is an obelisk erected in;
memory of the victory obtained!
there by William IT1, in 1690.

At Grange, near Drogheda,,
there is a vaulted cave, in the:
form of a cross, with a gallery
leading to it, eighty feet long.:
On the first discovery of this'
cave, a gold coin of the Emperor-
Valentintan  was found in it,.
which, Dr. Llhwyd observes,
might bespeak it Roman, but:
that the rude carving at the en-
try of the cave scems.to denote
it a barbarous monument. 8o,
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the coin proving it more ancient
than any invasion of the Danes ;
and the carving and rude sculp-
ture, barbarous ; it should follow
that it was some place of sacri-
fice or burial of the ancient Irish.
Half a mile beyond Drogheda,
on the L.’is Mell, the seat of
Mr. Singleton. About midway
between Drogheda and Dunleer,
the trayeller may perceive on
the W. side of this road, at a
quarter of a mile’s distance, the
ancient tower of Monasterboice.
Three miles from Drogheda
is Torfeckan castle, belonging
to the gee of Armagh, and for-
merly one of the seats of the
Lord Primate, where he used to
reside three months in -the year,
The famous Archbishop - Usher
was its last inhabitant. It is now
quit_e,neglected and gone to ruin,
though pleasantly situated near

the sea, -by the side of a small

river. . When the town of :"l'or-
feckan flourished, in which there
is now a very good old church,

there were several small castles
4in its neighbourhood, some of

which still remain. That of
Glass-pistol 1s distant about two
miles 3 and a little farther east-
ward is a fine fishery, the charter
of which, it 1s said, 1is, or was

held, by the fishermen’s waiting

with their fish in the town of:
till the lord. of the
castle was first served... Tor-
feckan, or, as it is aqtherwisg
called, TPermonfeckan, lies to the
N. of Bewly.. The latter, which
is seated near the mouth of the
river, is a fine old seat of Mr.
Montgomery, and was built by
Sir Henry Tichborne, governor
of Drogheds, whose son was
created Lord Ferrard.

Four miles from Drogheda,
on the R. is Carterstown, the


http:miles.up

7]

Rocksborough, the seat of Mr.
Owens; and a mile distant, at
the foot of a hill, is Stone-house,
the seat of the late J. T. Foster,
Esq. near the ford of Longstones.

To the R. of Dunleer, on 2
height, is Barmeath, the very
fine seat, with extensive de-
mesnes, of Sir Edward Bellew,
Bart. There is at this gentle-
man’s seat a pair of the hand-
somest moose-deer horns in the
kingdom, together with a skele-
ton of the head. At what pe-
riod the great deer (called by the
ancient Irish samh «lcd, or
the wild ox) was first known
here, or how long these stately
animals remained in the king-
dom befare the species became
extinct, is uncertain ; but their
skeletons are generally found
in a stratum of marle that has
been covered with bog. On
the see lands of the bishop of
Dromore were found, in 1783,
similar horns, which measured
from tip to tip fourtcen feet four
inches, as also almost the entire
skeleton, in the most perfect pre-
servation, of the enormous animal
that wore them, who, from the
length of the bores of his fore-
leg, is judged to have been about
twenty hands high.

Two miles from Dunleer, on
the R. is Drumcar, a new-built
house of John M’Clintock, Esq.
and a Bittle farther, on the R. %
Coolestown, the seat of Turner
Camack, Esq,

Near the sea side is also
Maine, the seat of the Rev, Wil-
Iiam Stafford. ‘

At Castle-Bellingham, on the
L. is the seat of Henry Belling-
ham, Esq, and on the R. Miles-
town, that of the Rev, Mr, Ogle.

To Dundalk, and Donaghadee.
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Castle-Bellingham is a pleasant
village. One of the finest old
‘spreading elms -in the kingdom
is to be seen here.

Near Castle-Bellingham  is
Green-mount, a small village,
in which was formerly a very
strong camp. It is situated on
the top of a fine green hill, and
overlooks all that part of the
country, There isa tumulus or
barrow on it, which is probably
the sepulchre of some celebrated
warrior, such being commonly
found in or near most forts and
camps of any consequence, and
known to have been erected by
the Danes,

Near a mile beyond Lurgan.
green, on the L. is Clermont, a
fine and delightful seat of the
Earl of Clermont,

Dundalk is a very large, anci-
ent, and thriving town, with a
wide street, near a mile long,
and a very fine market-house,
near the entrance from Dublin,
In the reign of Edward I1. it was
a royal city, and the last we
read of, where a monarch of all
Ireland was - actually crowned,
and resided, It was formedy
very strong, and had' many
towers and small castles, Tt 1s
very advantageously situated for
a most extensive inland trade,
and the port is very safe for ship-
ping, ‘The bay has good moor-
mngs at all times, in four to up-
wards of eight fathom water,
with very good land-marks, ei-
ther for bringing up to, or
making the harbour; and in
crosging the bar at high water, or
in ordinary neap tides, there are
from fifteen to eighteen feet water,
The only cambrick manufacture
in Ireland is camied on in this
town.—It returns one member tqQ

the imperial parliament. -
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In’the town of Dundalk is a
scat of the late Earl of Clan-
brassil, but now Lord Roden’s,
having fine and spacious gardens
belonging to it.

Opposite to Jonesborough, on
the R, is Ravensdale-park; the
seat of W. C. TFortescue, Xsq.
these extensive and delightful de-
mesnes were judiciously laid out,
and finely cultivated, by the late
Rt. Hon. James Fortescue.

Newry is one of the most con-
siderable towns in the county,
and is seated on the Newry-
water, made navigable by act of
parliament, which is a bound-
dary westward. 1t is almost sur-
rounded by mountains and rocky
hills, except to the north and
north-west, where a prospect
opens into a good country,
through which the canal is car-
ried, that runs to Lough-Neagh.
.In 1689, the Duke of Berwick
burned this town to sccure his
retreat to Dundalk from the
English, under Duke Schom-
berg. It has been greatly im-
proved since the settlement of
the kingdom in 1691, and is
now one of the largest and most
commercial towns in the county.
A Cistertian abbey was founded
here by Manrice M*Laughlain,
monarch of all Ireland, about the
middle of the eleventh century.
There was also a college here
consisting. of a warden and vi-
car’s choral, to whom Hen. VIIL
granted a confirmation of their
possessions.—Newry returns one
member to the united parliament.

Three miles and an half be-
yond Newry, near Sheep-bridge,
on the R. is Maryville, the fine
scat of Mr. Arbuckle ; about half
a mile beyond which is T'remont,
the seat of Mr. Johnson,

Loughbrickland  and  Ban-

To Newry, and Donaghadee.
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bridge, two neat market towns,
prseent themselves on this road.
Dromore, scated on the river
Lagan, is a very ancient market
town, and a Bishop’s see - for
further particulars of which- see
page 31. ‘
Within two miles of Dromore,
on the L. is Gilhall, the old scat
and well planted demesne of the
Countess of Clanwilliam,
Hillsborough is pleasantly si-
tuated, and almost newly built,
much in the style of ay English
town, on a healthy, gravclly
soll, in view of Lisburn, Bdl-
fast, the bay and town of Car-
rickfergus, and commanding an
extensive prospect of a well
improved country. The Mase
course is a mile north of the
town, near the banks of the La-
gan, A rising hill in the middle
of the course, about two miles
in circumference, affords a full
view of the whole field. The
church of Hillsborough is mag-
nificent, and cost the first Mar-
quis of Downshire near 15,0001,
The spire is as lofty as that of
St. Patiick’s, Dublin, and much
more elegant ; it has also scven
painted windows, There is a
small castle or fort, at Hillsho-

rough in perfect repair, in which

were deposited the arms of the
county. A very thriving manuy.
facture of muslins has been in-
troduced into this town, under
the patronage of the first Mar.
quis of Downshire. 'T'he pre-
sent Marquis has a fine demesne
and neat villa here. .

Lisburn was burned upwards
of a century ago, but is rebuilt
ina neat handsome manner, It
has a large 'manufuctory of linen
cloth.  Since the union it returns
one member to the imperial parlia-
ment,
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Half a mile beyond Lisburn,
on the R. arethe ruins of Drum-
boe church; and near them is
Thornhill, Mr. Maxwell’s seat.
A mile farther, on the L.

M¢<Neil.

two miles of Belfast, on the R.

s Belvoir, a most beautiful seat’

of Lord Dungannon.

Two miles from Belfast is the -
village of Castlereagh ; it is the’

To _Bclfaﬂ:, and Donaghadee, &ec.

head of a manor belonging to-

the Marquis of Downshire, where
his seneschal holds courts. "The
castle is seated on the top of a

hill, and is one of those forts, |

the erection of which is usually

ascribed to the Danes. This fort’

has a fosse, which encompasses
three-fourths of it, and anciently
perhaps surrounded the whole.

Belfast is a very well built;

town.

The: streets are broad and :

strait, and the inhabitants, who'
amount to about 25,000, make

it appear lively and busy. The
public buildings are not nume-
rousor very striking; but over

the exchange there 1s an eclegant |

assembly-room, built- by the late
Marquis of Donegall, at-the ex-
pense of upwards of 2000l

~ Two miles and a half beyond
Belfast, on the L. is Belmont,
the seat of Mr. Bamber; and
near it, Castle-hill, that of Mr.
Halliday ; and Thorny-hill, that
of Mr. Mathers.

A mile and a half farther is
Ballymascaw ; on the R. of
which is Dundonald-church ; and
on the L., Dunlady, the scat of
the Hon. Richard Annesley.

Within half a mile of New-
towngrdes, on the L. is Ballycul-
Ten, the seat of Mr. Simon ; and
Spriugfield, that of Mr: Dalziel.
* On the R, of Newtownardes

riz2

is the scat of Lord Viscount Cas-
tlereagh. )
Donaghadee is a market and

{ post town, and where passengers
| take shipping for Portpatrick.
is Newgrove, the scat of Mr. !

From Donaghadee to Portpa-

§ trick, in Scotland, is 18 miles.
On the river Lagan, within

Another Rl?_t'ld to brag)ztda. .
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Half a mile from Balbriggen,
on the R, are the ruins of Bre-
more-castle ; and a mile farther
is Lowther-lodge, the seat of Mr.
Filgate. - S

“_Td Dovné‘glz.adeeuby"‘;Banéar.r ’
Belfast, asp. 1. Antrim } —) 80

Hollywood, Downt 42| 84%
Bangor 5% 90
Donaghadee 5195 -

Within half a mile of Holly-
wood, en the R. is the seat of
Simon Isaac, Esq.

About half a mile beyond
Hollywood, on the R. is Bally-
menagh, the seat of Mr, Holmes ;
and a little farther, on the L. is
Cultra, the seat of Mr. Kennedy.

Within three miles and a half of
Bangor, on the L. is Craigavade,
the seat of Mrs, Pottinger. _

Within two miles of Bangor,
on the L. is Crawfordsburn, the
seat of Mr. Crawford ; and near
it, on the R. Ballywilly, that of
Mr. Jackson ; about a mile to the
R. of which is Ballyleedy, Sir
John Blackwood’s seat.

Bangor is an ancient borough,
market and past town ; and is at
present in a very _thﬁving condi-
tion, under the fostering patro-_
nage of the proprietor, the Hon,
Col. Robert Ward, who has a
very elegant house near the town,
with a handsome demesne and
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extensive gardens, highly im-
proved ; there is a quay and pier
here, where shipping lie safely,
and often find shelter in stormy
weather. ' Near Bangor is-a safe
bay called the Thirteen Brig Bay,
formerly much resorted by ship-
ping, but now neglected since
the harbour of Bangor has been
formed. The English army that
preceded King William, under
the command of the Duke of
Schomberg, landed here in 1689,

DUBLINto Drogheda, by Naul.
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. At Glassnevin; on the L. isa
very handsome brick house, with
fine gardens and improvements,
the seat of Mr. Maher.

Ounthe R. is the house and gar-
dens of the late Dean Delany, so
ofteri mentioned by Dean Swift,
now in possession of Mr. Babing.
ton Westlake.

The Dublin socicty have lately
taken sixteen acres of land at
Glassnevin, for the purpose of
‘forr'ning a botanic garden, pur-
suant to act of patliament, for
promoting a scientific khow-
ledge of several various branches
of agriculture; Dr. Wade has
been appointed professor, who
here delivers lectures on botany,
agriculture and the uscful arts.
It is now in a very promising
state, and must be decmed a
great national acquisition.” The
gardens are laid out in the fol-
lowing manner : First, A Hortus
Linnzensis 3 second, the cattle

To Drogheda, by Naul.
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garden ; third, the hay gardeny
fourth, the esculent garden ; fifth,
the dyer’s garden; sixth, the saxa-
tile, or rock plants; seventh, the
creepers and climbers; eighth,
the bog and water plants ; ninth,
the marine plants; tenth, varie-
gations of trees, shrubs and herbs ;
eleventh, the nursery; twelfth,
a medical garden. Separate lec.
tures are also given on several
subjects, for the immediate in-
struction of farmers, their ser-
vants or labouring men; all of
whom dre to be admitted to the
lectures gratis, on the order of the
vice-president, the treasurer, se-
cretary, or professor.

At Hampstead, on the R, is
the seat of Sir Rich. Steele, Bart,

Near Glassnevin, on the L. is
Clermont, the scat of Mr. Frood.

One mile and a quarter from
Glassnevin, on the L. is Stormans-
town, the seat of Mr. Stevens;
about a mile to the R. is Santry,
the seat of Charles Domville, Esq.

Near Forast, on the L., is Picks
erstown, theseat of the late Ald.
Lynam; and at Forest, on the R.
is the seat of Mr, Hill.

About half a mile to the L,
of Forest is Dunbro, the seat of
Mr. Flood ; and near it, on the
R. that of Mr. Butler,

At Brackenstown is the seat of
Lord Viscount Molesworth ; and
half a mile from it, on the R.
are the ruins of the old family
geat of the Boltons of Brazil.

Two miles beyond Forest, on
the R.is Catherine’s grove, the
fine seat of H. Gorges, Esq. .

Two miles beyond Brackens-
town, on the L. is Mount Stew:
art, the seat of Mr. Facken; and
a mile farther, on the R.is Ski.
dow, the seat of Mr. M<Der-
mot, and Cookstown, that of Mr.
Plunket. :
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- At Ballyboghill, on the L. is
the seat of Mr. Cuaningham ; and
about half a mile farther to the L.
is Westpelstown, the seat of Mr.
Rodwell,

A little beyond Ballyboghill,
on the L.are the ruins of the
church of Ballyboghill; and near
# mile to the R. is Bettyville, the
scat of Hugh Bowen, Esq.

Within two miles of Naul,
and a mile on the L. is Mallahow,
the seat of Mr. Rowley ; and near
Naul, on’ the L. West-town, the
fine seat of Lord Beaulieu.

At Naul there is 2 most roman-
tic glen overhung with rocks,
wherein are many caves. The old
castle of Naul stands boldly si-
tuated over this romantic glen,
through which a small stream
winds its course, dividing the
counties of Dublin and Meath;
and a small distance lower down
it forms a fine water-fall called the
Roches.

A little beyond Naul, on the
L. are the ruins of Snowton-
castle. .
 Threc miles and a half beyond
Naul, on *the R. is Lisdornan,
the seat of Mr. Wilder; and at
a small distancey on the L. is the
beautiful and well known hill of
Bellewstown.

Four miles and three quarters
beyond Naul, on the R. is Dar-
distown-castle, the scat of Henry
Osborne, Esq.

At Dardistown-bridge, over
the river Nanny, is Cooper-hill,
the seat of Mr. Cooper; near
which is Balloghan, where there
is a remarkable well, noted by
Sir Wm. Petty, called St. Col-
lumb’s well: near thereto is
Shallou, . the seat of Edward
Tonge, Esq. Near a mile lower
down the river is Rockbellew,

the property of Lord Ludlow,

To Rush, Skerries, and Balbriggen,
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Within a mile and a half of
Drogheda, onthe R. is Beamore,
the seat of Mr. Coulter; and on

%

the L. is that of Mr. Cooper.

DUBLIN to Rush, to Skerries,
and Balbriggen.

Turvey, as in page 1

—1 9
Lusk, Dublin}2 111
Rush 27 | 132
Skerries at 117
Balbriggen 3% | 202

- At Luskis a fine old church
and round tower; a mile from
which is Knockdrummond, the
seat of Gaynor Barry, Esq. and
near it stands the ruins of Whites-
town church. . '

Near a mile beyond Rush, on

the' L. 1s Rush-house, the fine
seat of Roger Palmer, Esq. near
which are the ruins of a castle
and church ;.and to the L. of it
is Hay’s-town, the seat  of Mr.
Onge. .
About two miles heyond Rush,
on the R.is Loughshinny, the
seat of Mr. Dempsy. Thereisa
fine harbour here, with a large
pier, not yet finished, and which
is highly deserving of public en-
couragement 3 as, at no conside-
rable expensé, it might be ren-
dered extremely scrviceable to
shipping, by aftording them shel-
ter from storms and tempests
in general, and particularly from
the high south-east winds, which
continually do such damage to our
vessels in that quarter.

At Loughshinny are to be scen
mines of copper, worked by an
LEnglish company.

One mile and a half beyond
Skerries, on the R.is Prospect,
aseat of the Marquis of Bective ;
and near it, Hampton-hall, that
of Alexander Hamilton, Esq.
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DUBLIN to Carlingford and
Ne'wry.
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The English Army, under
Duke Schomberg, was encamped
at Ballymascanlan, ivhich proved
fatal to numbers.

A mile beyond Ballymascan-
lan, on-the R. is Bellurgan-park,
the seat of Francis Tipping, Esq.
and near it is a stone of most
‘enormous size, incumbent upon
three others. It is thought to
weigh between thirty and forty
tons, and by the inhabitants of
the country is called the giant’s
load. ' :

Not far from Mr. Tipping’s
seat is a very old castle, called
Castle-Rath. It appears to have
been an ancient dwelling of some
person of distinction, and pro-
bably that of a bishop or abbot,
if we may judge by the chapel
adjoining it. It issituated on the
plains betwixt the sea and the
mountains of Carlingford ; and
near it are several old forts or
raths, such as the first invaders,
or prime' planters of the island
are supposed to have inhabited.
A few roods from it are the re-
mains of a tumulus, or sepulchral
mount ; and about a mile far-
ther, towards the sea, stands the
tower or castle of - Ballug, an
edifice of great magnificence and
?trength in former days, but now
in ruins. :

Ou the R. after you pass the
three mile river towards the sea,
is Willville, the seat of Brabazon
Brabazon, Esq.

Carlingford is a town of no
great magunitude or importance,
and chiefly remarkable for the

C.
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fine oysters that are taken near
that place, - which bear the name
of Carlingford oysters. The har--
bour is between three and four
miles long, and as many broad,
the water being every where very
deep, so that the largest vessels
may come there to an anchor. It
is surrounded on all sides, with
high land and mountains, so that
the ships are secured from the
winds. The entrance is, how--
ever, full of racks, and there being
no considerable towns seated on
the haven, it is not much fre-
quented but by fishing boats.
There is at Carlingford an old
castle, called King’scastle, and
said to have been built by a King .
of England, about the reign of
King Jchn, and it is generally
believed, it was built by order of
that prince, when he was in this
kingdom, about 1210. Formerly
it must have been a very fine
pile of building, and seems by
its situation designed to defend a
narrow pass at the foot of the
mountains,~ close by the sea,
where but a very few men can
march abreast, dangerous rocks
and a deep sea bemng below on
one side, and very high moun-
tains on the other, the least seven
hundred yards perpendicular.
The foundation of it is a solid
rock, washed by the sea, and
some of the walls are eleven feet
thick.” On one side of it there
appears to have been a platform
or battery, which might probgy
bly have been adapted for the de-
fence of -the harbour. The old
town - of Carlingford seems to
have been originally a collection
of small castles, which appear
to have been the common kind
of habitations in this country,
and the maoner of building n

those days; .Dundalk formegly
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having alro been full of the
like sort of dwellings. On the
opposite end of the town to that
of the castle, there are still to be
seen. the ruinous remains, of a
fine monastery ; and not far
from it, upon the summit of a

neghbouring hill, a spacious bu- |

rying ground, and a little church
or chapel adjoining it. By réason
of the position and height of the
neighbouring mountains, the in-
habitants of the town, great part
of the summer season, lose sight
of the sun several hours before
he sets in the horizon.

Near this old castle is the seat
of Ephraim Stannus, Esq.

From Carlingford to Newry
is a pleasant road, with grand
prospects of the bay and moun-
tains around it. Such vessels as
cannot get up to Newry, load
and unload at Rosstrevor and
Warren’s-point,

A mile from Warren’s-point
is Narrow-water ; near which is
Mourit-Hall, the seat of Savage
Hall, Esq.

The canal begins there, which

4§)es through Newry to Lough’

eagh.

—_—
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Three miles and a half from
Newry, on the L. is Glenville,
the seat of Mr. Glenny.

Within a mile of Rathfriland,
on the L. is Tullyquoilly, the
seat of S. Wilcox, Isq. .

Rathtriland s situated on r1i-
sing ground, and hath four great
strait roads leading up to it, and
centering in the town. Itis built
on a granite rock, of a firm close
texture, fit for building, with
which the adjacent lands abound,
and is easily cut into different
forms. At one.end of the street
is a small, decent church, built

and furnished with suitable or-

naments by - the late John and
Robert Hawkins Magill, Esqrs.
whose sole heiress, lady dowager
Clanwilliam, is the present lady
of this manor. And here the
dissenters have a meeting-house ;
and a little S. of the town is
S On the
summit of the hill are the ruins
of an ancient castle, formerly one
of the mansion-houses of the

| Magennises, Lords Iveach.
Two miles from Newry is
Fathom, the seat of Mr. Ogle. '

Within three miles of Castle-
wellan, on the L. is Hilltown, a
seat of the Marquis of Down-
shire. h

At Castlewellan are a park and
plantations of Earl Annesley ; and

two miles from it, on the R. is

Bryan’s-ford, an elegant seat,
with very extensive demesnes, of

1 the Earlof Roden.

A little beyond is -Slieve-
Donard,. one of the highest
mountains in Ireland. On the
top of this lofty mountain are
two amazingly large carus, or
heaps of stones. Inone of them
there are apartments contrived
for the priests to say mass in.—
Such huge heaps of stones are
to be met with in almost every
pact of Ireland. It cannot be
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with certainty determined what
these carns or vast heaps owed
their origin to. It is probable
that some of them are funcral
piles or monuments of the dead ;
and that others were the works
of old Irish Roman Catholics,
who, upon certain days of the
year, carried stones by. way of
penance to the top of some very
high hill.

Within a mile of Clogh, on
the R. is Mount-panther, a fine
seat of Earl Amnesley ; and a-
bout half a mile on the R. of
that, on a height, are the ruins of
Dundrum-castle.

Near Clogh, on the R. is the
seat of John Moore, Esq. :

Two miles to the L. of
Downpatrick is  Hollymount,
the seat of Cromwell Price, Isq.

Downpatrick is a large bo-
rough and market town on the S.
W. branch of Strangford-lough.
It is distinguished mto several
quarters, as the Irish quarter,
the English quarter, the Scotch
quarter. ‘'The diocesan school-
house, the market-house, and
the presbyterian meeting-house,
are handsome buildings. A
priory of regular canons, called
the priory of the Irish, was
founded at Downpatrick in the
year 1138, by Malachy O*Mor-
gair, Bishop of Down: the
priory of St. John the Baptist,
called the priory of the English,
as also an abbey for Cistertian
monks, another for nuns of the
same order, a Franciscan friary,
and a lepers’ hospital, were
founded here in the 12th century.
Oa the N. W. side of the town
is a large Danish rath, the co-
nical height of which is GO feet,
aud the circumference 2100 feet :
it is surrounded by three great
ramparts, one of which is 30 feet

and Donaghadee. [22

broad, and the whole circuit of-
the works is three quarters of a
mile. It was made the see of a
bishop by St. Patrick, and has
been united to the see of Connor
ever since 1442, About a mile
from it is a noted horse-course,
where, pursuant to a charter
granted by King James I1. plateg
given by the corporation of horse-
breeders are run for. The assizes
are always held here, and there ig
lately erccted one of the most
beautiful and commodious court.
houses in the kingdom, and also
a new. jail built at a  conside-
rable expense according to a plag
of the celebrated Mr. Howard.
It returns onc member to the im-
perial parliament.

At Downpatrick are the ruins
of an old cathedral, (said to have
been built by St. Patrick, and in
which his remains are reported
to be deposited,) which have
been lately partly repaired and
partly rebuilt at the expense of
6000l. raised by subscription,
to which his Majesty gave a do-
nation of 1000l. and to which
the late Marquis of Downshire
and his father were very boun:
tiful benefactors; anact of parlia-
ment was passed for the purpose,
which endowed the cathedral
with 800l per ann. for a choir,
organist, &c. It is finished in the
gothic style, and is one of the
most beautiful buildings in the
kingdom.

Two miles from Downpatrick
are the ruins of the monastery of
Saul, said to have been also buyilt
by St. Patrick. This was an
abbey of regular canons, and
St. Duny wrs created abbot of it
by St. Patrick  The church was
built, not in the usual manner
E. and W, but N. and 8.

To the R. of Saul is St, Pa-
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trick’s well ; to which, at certain
seasons of the year, thousands of
people resort, some in expecta-
tion of receiving benefit from the
water blessed by the saint ; others
to perform penance enjoined by
the priests.

Within a mile of Strangford,
on the L. is Castle-Ward, the
fine and elegant seat of Lord
Bangor, built by the present
noble proprietor ; it . has two
principal fronts, one of Grecian
and the other of Gothic archi-
tecture ; from the temple i1s a
fine wooded scene; you look
down upon a glen of wood with
a winding hill quite covered with
trees, and which breaks the view
of a large bay; over it appears
the peninsula “of Strangford,
which consists of enclosures and
wood.; - to the R. the bay is
bounded by a fine grove whic
projects into it. -

Near Portaferry is the seat of
Patrick Savage, Esq. whose an-
cestors have been possessors of
the town and adjacent country
since the conquest of Ulster by
De Courcy, Lord Kinsale, and
Earl of Ulster.

Three miles N. of Portaferry,
near Strangford—lpugh, is Castle.
buy, or Johnstown. In the
twelfth century, Hugh De Lacie
founded here the commandery
of St. John the Baptist.  This
building is now a great heap of
ruins ; and the famsly of Echlin
possess several town-lands in free-
hold, aud also a manor-court,
which belonged to this com-
maudery. . .

Between four and five miles
beyond Portaferry, on the R. 1s
‘Echlinville, the seat of M.
Echlin.

. At Grey.abbey are the large
remaws of a fine. old Gothic

and Donaghadee. [24

conventual church; and near
them, on the lough, is Rose.
mount, the seat of the Rev. Mr.
Montgomery.

A little farther N. is Mount-
Stewart, where Lord ILondon-
derry has built a very magnificent
seat, and has erected on a hill
near the lough a temple to the
winds, designed after the celebra-
ted model at Athens. ' o

From Portaferry to Grey-
abbey, and thence to Newtown,
which 15 five miles and a half,
the road runs along the 'coast,
commanding a- fine view of
Strangford-lough, and the op-
posite shore.

Strangford-lough was former-
ly called Lough-Cone. It is a
deep bay, or inlet of the sea,
about seventeen miles long, and
between four and five broad.
It goes W. as far as Down-
patrick, and N. as far as Cum-
ber and Newtown. The coasts
of this lake are shelving and
beautiful, and interspersed with
a great many pleasant islands,
on, which is exceeding good graz-
ing for cattle. This lough, and
all the coasts here, abound with
excellent fish, particularly smelts ;
and off the bar there is a perio-
dical herring fishery, in or about
August.

The bar, or entrance into this
lough is about three miles below
Strangford. There is a long
rock at the entrance in the mig-
dle of the passage, dangerous to
strangers, on account of the force
of the current; yet there is a,
broad passage on either side, and
decp water.  The current here
is very strong and rapid, running
at the rate of six or seven miles
an hour.  There are but few
vessels that go higher up than
Strangford. A good many ves.
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scls, bound up the channel, put
in here, if the wind is unfavoura-
ble to their passage.

Within a mile of Donaghadee,
on the L. are the ruins of the
church of Temple-Patrick ; and
about half a mile farther, to the L.
and nearer to Donaghadee, is
the seat of Mr. M<Minn.

DUBLIN to Xillough.

Clogh, asinp. 19 — | 69
Killough, Down | 73 | 762

Half a mile beyond Clogh, on
the R. is the fine seat of Earl
Annesley.

Three miles beyond Clogh, on
the shore, is Terecla, the seat of
George Hamilton, Esq.

Killough is situated N.of St.
John’s point, and hath a good
quay, where ships lie very safe.
The town is agrecably situated,
the dea flowing all along the backs
of the houses, where ships ride
in full view of the inhabitants.
There is here a decent church
and a horse barrack. They have
good fishing in the bay; but
the principal trade of the place
consists in the exportation of
barley, and the importation of
such commodities as Lare. con-
‘sumed in the adjacent country. A
manufacture of salt is also car-
ried on here with great advan-
tage. Ata small distance from
the town is a charter working
school, for the ‘ reception of
twenty children. Some of the
boys are employed in making
fishing-nets; a few of the more
robust are fitted for the sea, and
the rest apprenticed to protestant
farmers and  linen-weavers.—
Thec 1s 3 remarkable well here
called St. Scordin’s well. Ttis
highly estecmed for the extra.
ordinary lightness of its water.

To Killough, &c.
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It gushes out of a high rocky
bank, close upon the shore, and
is observed never to diminish its
quantity v the driest seasons.
There is also a mineral spring
near the charter-school, the
waters of which the inhabitants
affirm to be both purgative and
emectic. At a small distance
from the town, near the sea, is
a rock, in which there is an
oblong hole, fromy whence, at
the ebbing and flowing of the
tide, a strange noise is heard,
somewhat-resembling the sound
of a huntsman’s hormm; at the
cominig in of the tide, while the
waters are beating up under the
rock, a cold air bursts from it
with a mixture of spray; but,
as the waters retire during the
ebb, there is a strong suction like
that of an air-pump. In an
open field, about aquarter of a
mile from the town, towards St.
John’s point, thereis a very curi-
ous cave, which has a winding
passage two feet and an half
broad, with tl~ee doors in it
besides the entrance, and leading
to a circular chamber three yards
in diameter, where there is a fine
cool limpid well.  The cave is
about twenty-seven yards long.

Another road to Killough.

Rathfriland, asinp. 19 j—57%
Bryan’s-Ford, DownTL65

Dundrum 5:168%
Over the Strand, and to
Killough 7 {751

- N P. By Narrow-watcr it is
two miles shorter.

Near Bryan’s-ford is Tully-r
more-park, the fine sequestered
seat -of the late Tarl of (Clan-
brassil, surrounded by most ex-
tensive plantations of his lord-
ship’s own planting ; particularly
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some of ‘the finest groves of
Iarch-trees i this- kmgdom,
Here is also a most romantic
river, exhibiting a succession of
the most picturesque cascades,
A curious series of  pictures
(painted by Fuller soon after the
restoration) is also to be seen,
which ‘give the whole display of
King Charles II’s. escape in the
royal oak, &c. being five in
number, aud containing portraits,
drawn from the life, of the per-
sons chiefly concerned in that
memorable transaction.

Abount four miles beyond Gry-
abbey, on the L. is Graushaw-
spa. It lies in a little valley,
surrounded on all sides by hills
of easy ascent 3 it has an aspect
to the E. and on the S. there is
a large bog. It has on proper
trials been found, that the waters
are not inferjor in strength to the
best British chalybeates 5 they sit
easy on the stomach, and have
done great service in the gravel.

At Dundrum are the ruins of
an old castle, formerly a place
of great importance.

On the R. of Dundrum is
Murlough, the seat of Mr. Ma-

cartney.

D UBLIN o Castlewellan and

Downfatrick, by Narrosw-water.

Jonesborough, as inp. 1 1453
Over the mountains to
Narrow-water Ferry,
Doawn | 3549
Eight Mile Bridge 631553
Castlewellan 7463
Doawnpatrick 9172
Near  Eight-mile-bridge s

Clanduff church, pleasantly situ-
ated on the river Bann.

Two miles beyond Eight-mile-
bridge, on the R. i Kinghill,
the scat of Mr. Newell.

 DUBLIN to Rosstrevor and Rill.

keele, and continued to Clogh.,

Neawry, asin.p. 1 — | 504
Narrow-water, Down | 4 | 54%
Warren’s-Point 1 | 558
Rostrevor 2 {57L
Kilkeele 71165

Axanalong 4% | 691
Newcastle 6 |75%
Dundrum 3% | 78:
Clogh, Antrim | 25 | 81

N. B. By Narrow.water-ferry
to Rosstrevoris five miles-and a

half shorter than by Newry.

One mile from Newry, on the
R. is Walker’s-park, the seat of
Mr. Ogle; and a mile farther,
on a line, and on the same side
of the canal, is Fathom, another
seat of Mr. Ogle’s : opposite to
which is a park and lodge be-
longing to Mr. Scott; in the
park are the walls of a small
castle.

Near midway between War-
ren’s-point and Rosstrevor, on
the L. is Marley, the glebe-house
of the rector of Clonallan.

Within a mile of Rosstrevor,
on the L. is Arno’s-vale, the seat
of Mr. Mercer; about half a
mile from which, lying to the
R. is Moore-park, the seat of
Mr. Moore.

Rosstrevor is a village, seated
on Carlingford-bay, well de-
fended from the severity of the
winds and open sea. At the
lower end of the village is a
small quay for ships, which ride
at anchor within a few yards of
the shore ; and here is also a salt
work, and a pottery for a white
earthen ware, made of the fine
clay found near Carrickfergus,
and frequently exported to fo-
reign parts. The high moun-
tains above it, planted with well
grown oaks, and at the bottom
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an arm of the sea, forming a
uoble bason, afford a very agree-
able prospect, N

At Rosstrevor, on the L. is
Lodge, the most elegant and de-
lighttul seat, with very extensive
demesnes and improvements, of
Mr. Ross.~This is a most beau-
tifull and pleasant situation ;
commanding a grand and ample
view of the neighbouring moun-
tains, and the famous bay of
Carlingford, which ranks among
the first in Ireland for its safety
and ' commodiousness for ship-
ping, and the grandeur of the
scenery around it,

Two miles and a half from
Rosstrevor, on the R. is Seafield,
the seat of Mr. Rainy ; about a
mile and a half to the R. of
which are the riins of Green-
castle; a place formerly es-
teemed of such importance, that
an act of parliament passed, by
which none but an Englishman
could be constable of it.-

Six miles from Rosstrevor, on
the L. is Siberia, a seat of Wil-
liam Needham, Esq. and about a
mile to the R. Bellhill, the seat
of Mr. Scott. '

Riding along this road on a
clear day, the traveller can see
‘the Isle of Man, and the coast of
Scotland, also the mountains of
the county of Wicklow ; and he
‘may also see, frum the tops of
the mountains, some of the hills
in England. -

" At Newcastle, on the R. is the
seat-of the Hon. Mr. Annesley ;
to the L. of which is Slieve-
Donard, the highest of the moun-
tains of Mourne.- .

About half a mile before you
enter Dundrum, on the R. is
"Murlough, situated on the side
of a hill, a seat of the Marguis,
of 'Dowunshire.

To Ki_llylcag.h, and Belfaft, &ec.
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DUBLIN to Killyleagh, and
continued to Belfust.

Doawnpatrick, asin p. 19 74

Killyleagh, .Down} 6 {80
Cross Roads near g4z

Killinchy } e
Cumber 89
Belfast, Antrim| 7 | 96

Killyleagh is a market town,
seated on an arm of the lake of
Strangford, and has a little safe
bay, where ships lie sheltered
from all winds. The town con-
sists of good bouses, a decent
narket-house, and a horse bar-
rack, now inruins. The linen
manufacture thrives here 3 and its
fine thread is in great esteem.

At Killyleagh is a famous old
castle, the seat of Gawin Hamil.
ton, Esq. built in the reign of
Charles 1. by Hamilion, the first
Viscount Clanebois.  Sir John
Blackwood, Bart. hath also a seat
here; which in old times was
considered as the gateway to the
castle.

At Killinchy is the glebe-
house belonging to the Rev. Mr.
Houston; withia a mile of which
is Tlorida, the seat of John Gor-
don, Esq. :

Cumber is situated on a branch
of the lake of Strangford. Tt is
a small town, and near it is a
horse-course, two miles in cir-
cuit; at a little distance from
which is Cherry-valley, the seat
of Mr. Delacherois.

At Cumber are the ruins of
Mount Alexander castle, the seat
of the late Earls of Mount Alex-
ander. '

DUBLIN to Ballynahinch, by

Clogh.
Clogh, asinp. 19 | —{ 69
Seaford, Doayn | 1 70
Ballynahinch 5% 75}




31] To Ballynahinch, Newtownardes, and Glenarm.

Beyond Seaford, on the L. is
Castle-Naughen, the seat of M.
Forde, Lsq.

Near Ballynahinch is Mon-
talto, a superb seat of the Larl
of Moira. .

Ballynahinch is a small neat
market-town 3 about a mile from
it are two excellent spa wells,
one of a sulphureous and the
other of a chalybeate quality,
much resorted to by genteel com-
pany in the summer season.
There is a handsome ball-room
at -the wells, and very good ac-
commodation in the neighbour-
hood for such strangers as wvisit
them.

Another Road to Bullynahinch

and Newfownardes.

Dromore,asinp.l | — | G6
Ballynahinch, Down | 8 T4
Saintficld 4 78"
Cumber 16 84
Newtownardes 8;1 87X

Dromore, the seat of a bishop-
rick, s a v'cry/ancient town,
which is now reviving, in con-
sequence of the late removal of
the bishop’s residence hither from
Marzlin.  Near adjoining to it
1s Dromore-house, built by the
Rt. Hon. and Rev. Dr. Beresford,
then Bishop of Dromore, in 1781,
in the midst of a large improv-
ing demesne ; this is a very an-
ient see, founded by St. Colman,
ig the sixth century. It was re-
founded by King James I. who,
by his charters {now preserved
in the Rolls ofiice) granted i.t
very great and uncommon pri-
vileges. Inhis first charter (anno
7mo Regni Jac.) the king res-
tores the see of Dromore, toge-
ther with those of Down z}lxd
Connor, establishing the ecclesias-
tical government of each, with
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their respective cathedrals, deans,
and chapters, under the titles of
the church, &c. of the Holy Tri-
nity of Downe, of St. Saviour of
Connor, and of Christ the Redeemer
of Dromore., 'This chatter, al- -
though so important, is wholly
ommitted and unnoticed by Ware
and Harrié, in their voluminous
history, 2 vols. fol. In his sub-
sequent charters, wholly con-
fined to the see of Dromore, the
king establishes its patronage and
endowment, and describes and
settles the manor of Dromore,
with very ample jurisdiction and
peculiar  privileges.  Among
other marks of royal favour, he.
distinguishes the bishops of this
sce by the style of « A. B. by
Divine Providence Bishop of
Dromore ;> whereas all other
Bishops in Ireland, except those
of Meath and Kildare, are styled.
¢ by Divine Permission.” Upon
the whole, this see, although the
least n its extent, is so complete
and perfect in its endowment
and jurisdiction, that it need net
envy the greatest and most opu-
lent. | '

In Dromore are the remaing
of a small castle or tower, pro-
bably the ancient residence of the
bichops 5 and at the east end, be-
tween the road and the river, 1s
a high rath, orseat of an ancient
castle, of considerable size ; hence
this town had probably its name,-
Druim mor, i. e. the great ridge
or hill. :

DUBLIN to Glenarm.

Belfast, asin p. 1. — 1] 80
Cartickfergus Antrim | 8 I 88
Ballycarry 4L | 92¢
Larne 5 97%"
Carncastle-Church 3 l 100%
Glenarm 5 }105%
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.~ dAnother Road.

Belfast, as before — | 80
Carmoney, Antrim | 6 86 -
Straid 11 894
Ballynure T 1E) 90%
Killwater 43 | 953
Carncastle Church 3+ | 98%
Glenarm j 5% | 1084

A little beyond Kilwater turn
to the R. into Larne ; isis only
a quarter of a mile farther than
by Carrickfergus.

From Ballynure there is also a
road over the mountains to Larne.

The road along the shore from
Belfast to Glenarm is very plea-
sant; having the mountains,
which are finely variegated, on
the L. and the-sea on the R. the
greater part of the way.

The roads all round the coast
of this county are made of white
lime-stone; of which the sea.
coast and mountains are full.

All the way from Belfast to
Carrickfergus you have a fine
view of the bay and shipping ;
and of the opposite shore of the
coanty of Down.

Some miles beyond Carrickfer-
gus you go over ligher ground,
having Larne-lough and island
Magee on the R. You have
here a view of Galloway and
Air shires in Scotland ; * and,
after passing Larne, of the Mull
of Cantire and several of the
islands. .

A mile and a half from Del-
fast, on the L. is Mount-Collicr,
the seat of the Rev. Mr. Hamil-
ton ; and near it, Grove, that of
Mr. Lewis; and Jennymount,
that of Mr. Thomson.

Near two miles from Delfast,
on the L. is Fort-William, the
seat of Mr. Lendrick. i

Between two and three miles
from Belfast, on the L. is Pack-

"D

To Glenarm, &c.:
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mount, a fine scat of the Marquig
of Donegall,

Three miles and half from
Belfast, onthe R.is Whitehouse,
the seat of Mr. Stewart., It was
here King William landed. Aa
extensive cotton manufacture is
established here, employing seve-
ral hundred persons.

A mile farther, on the L. is
White-abbey, with very fine
bleach-mills, belonging to Mr.
Bateson.

Within two miles ‘of Carrick-
fergus, on the L. are the ruins
of an ancient castle; and very
near them is the seat of Mr.
Allen, called the Three-sisters.

Carrickfergus is situated on a
bay of the Irish channel of the
same name. It is 2 town and
county in itsclf, and is governed
by a mayor, recorder, and sheriffs.
It is the assizes town of the coun-
ty of Anirim, and celebrated for
being the landing place of King
William in 1690. Here is the
skeleton of a fine house, built by
Lord Chichester in the reign of
James I. an old Gothic church,
with many family monuments,
and a very large old castle. In
1232, a monastery of Franciscan
friars was erected here, bt it is
a matter of uncertainty who was
the founder ; in 1512, this mo-
nastery was in such repute, that
a general chapter of the order
was held in it. At the general
suppression of - religious houses*
this monastery and its possessions:
were granted to Sir Edmond
Fitzgerald, who assigned them
to Sir Arthur Chichester, ancestor
to the Marquis of Dovegall. This
nobleman, who was several times

Lord-Deputy of Ireland, erccted

a noble castle on the site of this
" monastery, about the year 1610.
:The town was formerly walled
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round, and some part of the wells
1s still remaining entire, It has
beén a place of far greater con-
sequence that at present, as ap-
pears from the Mayor having
been Admiral of a considerable
extent of cnast in the counties of
Down and Antrim, the corpora-
tion_enjoying the customs paid
by all vessels within these bounds,
the creeks of Bangor and Belfast
only excepted. This grant the
crown repurchased, and there-
upon transferred the custom-
house to Belfast.

Two miles and a balf beyond
Carrickfergus, on the L. is Castle-
Dobbs, the seat of C. R. Dobbs,
:qu and a little farther, on the
L. is* Ballyhill, the seat of Mr.
Dalway. -

About half a mile beyond Bal-
lIycarry, on the R. is Red-hall,
the seat of Rich. Jervis Kerr, Esq.

Within two miles of- Larne,
on the L.is Glynn, the seat of
Mr. Johnston, .

Two miles on the L. of Larne
is  Killwater-house, the elegant
seat of Mr. Agnew ; and near
it, that of the Rev. Dr. Trail.
Ncar this, on the road side from
Ballynure, is Tubbermore-well,
a remarkable spring of extra-
ordinary fine water, the stream
of which turns two miles at a
very trifling  distance from. the
well.

Three miles beyond Larne,
on the R. is Ballygallogh, the
seat of Mr. Shaw.

Within two miles of Glenarm,
on the R. are the seats of Mr.
Robesonand Mr. Hunter.

At Glenarm, on the R. is Gle-
narm-castle, a magnificent fabric,
the seat of the Countess of An-
trim, having very extensive and
bewuu"ul demesnes, with deer-
parks, &c.

To Antrim, Coleraine, &e¢.
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DUBLINto Coleraine by Antrim.

Banbridge, asinp. 1] — | 60%

Lurgan,  drmagh| 7 67%
Glanevy,  dutrim | 95| 77
Antrim ] 7T | 84
Randalstorwn 1 4 88

Ballymoney 191 1 107¢
Coleraine, L. Derry | 6% { 114

One mile from Banbridge, on
the R. is Grcenﬁeld the seat of
Mr. Darley.

At Lurgan, on the R. is the
magnificent seat, with ample de-
mesnes, of the late Rt. Hon. Wil-
liam Brownléow ;3 and around are
three walks at a distance from each
other : the centre oue is the prin-
cipal, and extends two .miles.
It is well conducted for leading
to the most agreeable parts of
the grounds, and for command-
ing views of Lough-Neagh aud
the distant country. There are
several buildings, a temple,
green-house, &c. The most beau-
tiful scene is from a bench on a
gently-s“ellmg hill, which rises
almost on every Slde from the
water. The woed, the water,
and the green slopes, here unite
to’ form a very pleasing land-
scape.

At Glanevy, on the L. oppo-
site the church, is the seat of Mr.-
Gorman. )

Within three miles of An-
trim, on the L. is Clover-hilly
the seat of .Mr. Moore, with
very ample and beautiful plan-
tations and demcsnes.

Antrim 1s the capital of the
county of the same name, and
seated at the north end of Lough-
Neagh. It is a vicarage in the
diocese of Connor ; here stands
one of the ancient round towers.
Tts ancient name was Aondrium,
or Euatrumania, since corrupted

| into the word Antrim ; ard here
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Durtract, adisciple of St. Patrick,
founded an abbey. In the seveuth
century it was a bishopric, by
the name of the bishopric of
Androm ; the name of the see was
changed, for * St. - Melimaichar
Colu, who died A."D. 746, was
styled Bishop of Ectrumensis.
During the rebellion of 1798,
an action took place here be.
tween the King's forces and the
rebels,-in” which the latter were
defeated, but unfortunately there
‘was lost on the side of the roy-
alists ‘two officers and twenty
men. The loss of the rebels
amounted to about four hundred.
Here that valuable character
Lord O’Neil received a wound
from a pike, of which he died.
Atr Antrim 15 the neglected
seat, with noble demesues, and
beautiful and highly cultivated
lands, of the Earl of Massa-
reene,
On the L. of Antrim is the
fine seat of Mr. Jackson. -
‘Within two miles of Randals-
towi, on the L. stands Shane’s-
castle, having most extensive and
delightful parks, rich demesnes,
and noble plantations belonging
toit. Itisthe seat of the Right
Hon. Earl O’Neil ; and is situa-
ted on the very border of Lough-
Neagh. This Lough is the lar-
§est lake in Europe; thosz of
sadoga  and Onega in Russia,
and thiat of Geneva in Sivitzer-

land excepted ; it being twenty |

miles long, and fifteen broad.
It is fed by six considerable ri-
vers, and four of Jesser note 5 and
having but one varrow ovtlet,
that affords nota sufficient vent,
it frequeatly overflows the low
grounds on its coast. It is re.
markable for an healing virtue,
by which many persons  who

have bathed in it have experien-
-

To Antrim, Coleraine, &c.
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ced considerable benefit. It is
celebrated also  for petrifying
wood, which is not -only found
in the lake itself, but in the ad-
jacent soil at a cousiderable
depth ; and on its shores several
beautiful gems have been disco-
vered. . It abounds with great
variety and plenty of fish; and
one sort, called the Dolochan, a
species of large trout, is said to
be peculiar to it. The area of
this lake is computed to be one
hundred thousand acres. It grives
title of baron to the noble family
of Skeffington.

Half a mile beyond Ballymo-
ney, on the L. is Leslie-hill, the
beautiful seat of James Leslie,
Esq. .

Withina mile of Coleraine is
a fall of the Bann, &c. called the
Salmon-Jeap. :

Opposite the Salmon-leap is
Summer-seat, belonging to J.
Richardson, Esq. -

At Coleraine is the noble and
beautiful seat of the late Right
Hor. Richard Jackson ; and Mil-
burn, that of Mr. Cary.' Next
to thatare the seat and demesnes of
Griffin Curtis, Esq. adjoining the
Salmon-fishery, called the Cra-
nagh; it commands a prospect of
the town and bridge of Coleraine ;
also of Down-hill, the seat of
Lord Bristol.

Coleraine is seated on the river
Bann, four miles 8. of the gcean.
It was furmerly a place of grear
censiderstion, being  the chicf
town of a county erected by Sir
John Perrot, durivg Wis govern-
ment of Ireland; whereas it is
now only the head of one of the
baronies jn the county of London-
derry 3 butitisstll a corporation,
and sends one member to parlia-
ment. It 1s of a tolerable si;;e, and

very elegantly built. The port is
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very indifferent, occasioned by
the extreme rapidity of the river,
which repels the tide, and

makes the coming up to the town’

difficult ; so that it has but little
trade, and might perhaps have
less, if it was not for the valua-
ble salmon fishery, which amounts
to some thousand pounds a year.
If the navigation of the Bann

could be opened, which is totally

obstructed by a ridge of rocks, it
would quickly change the face
of things ; for then, by the help
of this river, and the Newry
canal, there would be a direct
communication across the king-
dom, and with the assistance
of the Blackwater-river, -which
likewise falls into Liough-Neagh,
almost all the counties of the
province of Ulster might have a
correspondence with each other
by water carriage, to their reci-
procal and very great emolu-
ment,

Coleraine is situated in the an-
cient territory of O’Cahane ; St.
Carbreus, or Corpreus, was the
first bishop of this place, about
the year 540. Ardmeduis, ab-
bot of Coleraine, was put to death
by the Danes in 930. Manus
M’ Dunlave in 1171, plundered
the church. here, and several
others, Thomas M’Uchtry and
the Galls of Ulster built a castle
here in 1218, for which purpose
they raised all the pavement,
and destroved every part of the
abbey, except the chmch. A
dominican friary, called also the
monastery of Bann, was founded
here in 1244, by the O’Ca-
hanes or M‘Eveyly'ns, and was
dedicated to the Virgin Mary.
Sir Robert Savege of Ulster, Kut.
who was esteemed an excellent
soldier, and died in 1860, was
buried Leve, ‘ :

Giant’s Causeway,
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Two miles beyond Coleraine,
in the road to Bush-mills, on the
R. is Clyfin, the seat of Mr.
Lyle; and a mile and a half
farther, on the L. is Bardyfield,
the seat of Mr. M’Naghton.

DUBLIN to the Giant’s
« Causeway, by.Charlemont..

Newry, p. 1 Down{ —[ 50
Market-Hill, Armagh 74 583
Armagh 421 62
Charlemont 6 | 66%
Stewart’s-Town,Tyronc} 8% 77
Coagh, Antrim| 5 | 82
Magherafelt, L. Derry| 6 | 88
Kilrea ' 14 {102
Coleraine 12 {114
Bush-Mills, Antrim| 6 [120
Giant’s Causeway 2 |122
Another Roadby dntrim.

Banbrige, p. 1 Down| —| 60%
Lurgan, Armagh! 7 | 67%
Glanevy . 91 77
Antrim : 71 84
Randalstorwn 4| 88
Ballymoney 1911107
Coleraine, L. Derry| 6%]114
Bush-Mills, Antrim| 6 {120
Giant’s Causeway 21122
Another Roadby Belfast.

Belfast, p. 1 Antrim| —| 80
Antrim 12 1 92 .
Shane’s-Castle 21 94
Randalsioqvn 121 06
Portglenore 9 (105
Rasherhan 5% 1102
Bullymoney 6411162
Dervock 4 12()%
Bush-Mills 441125
Giant’s Causeway 12 {127

N. B. It is recomended to
those whose leisure will permit,
to return from the Giant’s Cause-
way by the sea-const, per DBally-
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castle, Newtown-glens,  Glenarm,
Ballynure, Larne, & Carrickfergus
to Belfast : although the 'road is
in many places.mountainous, and
will require four horses to a chaise,
yet this tour will amply repay
“the traveller’s curlosity.,

"Descrirrion of the GIANTs
CAUSEWAY.

This Causeway is esteemed
one of the greatest natural curi.
“osities in the world. Itis about
a mile and a half from Mr.
Wray’s seat at Doway, and two
miles from Bush mills, county of
" Antrim, being one of the most
northern extremities of Ircland”;

the Causeway extends from the |

foot of a stecp hill of a triangu-
lar form, the length of it-at low
water above two hundred yards
projecting into the sea. "It con-
sists of above thirty thousand
pillars of  basaltic  columns ;
mostly of a pentagonal or hex-
agonal form. DBut the appear-
ance of the Giant’s Causeway,
striking and peculiar as it is, is
not more deserving the attention
of travellers, than the range of
amazing capes or precipices near
adjoining ;- which rise like ini-
mense gothic cathedrals, ‘with
rows of columns of astonishing
maknitade, of - which the ‘reader
will form a faithful idea from
the annexed engraved representa-
tion,

he cliffs are indeed truly swu-
pendous, and bear strong marks
of their having heen originally
in fusion. ‘The elevation of that
at the foot of which the Giant’s
Canseway is situated we pre-
sume caunot be less than three
or four hundred feet perpendi-
culer height above the Atlantic
ocean, and yet composed en-
‘tirely of different strata of lava ;

- Giant’s Causeway.

]

for it.is not apparently the effect -

of one eruption, but of many
successive convulsions.. And the
same appearances extend thence

towards the S. upwards of twen- |

ty miles. :
The like resemblance extends
towards the W.
therefore - presumed they. are
composed of similar substances ;
and it is easy to obscrve a con-

tinuation of the lava from Port- |

rush strand to the Giant’s Cause-

it may be -

way, and thence to Ballycastle,

Port-rush strand exhibits an
awful wreck of the terraqueous
globe, consisting altogether of
immense masses of black lava ;
so extremely replete” with blad-
der holes, and so void of extra-
ncous matter, that it peffectly
resembles the scorie of iron, and
therefore leaves not the least
doubt of its being a volcanic pro~
duction.

Amongst the numerous ves.
tiges of ancient volcanoes, we pre-
sume there are few more won-
derful than those on the northern
coast of-Ireland, though no vi-
sible crater is now remaining be-
tween Port-rush strand and Bal-
lycastle eastward ; a distance
not less than fifteen miles, and
yet, the whole of that space is
one continued mass of lava.

The columns are in a vertical
position, and of various dia.
meters, from fiftcen to twenty
inches, and some of them thirty
feet long. They seem to he all
of them prismatical, or equally
thick from end to end, though

they consist of various unequal

sided figures, viz. pentagonal,
hexagonal, heptagonal, and pro-
bably many other forms.

Each column is "apparently

divided into unequal parts,. by

means of transverse joints, but
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many bisect the columus parti-
ally, having five or six inches of
the central part solid. In some
Instances the joints extend quite
through the columns, but they

were  originally  united  and
probably  separated by wa-
ter lodging aud freezing in
them.

The columns have one uni-
form colour, namely, a dark
brown  approaching towards
black, and of one uniform den-
sity and quality, = apparently
quite free from bladder holes,
notwithstanding the cliff is 1e-
plete with them :  therefore since
it appears that these basalt co-
lumus are of one uniform sub-
stance, and have assumed a va-
riety of prismatic appearances,
not only in Ireland, but also in
many other parts of Europe ; the
presumption is great, that their
various. forms are not owing to
any property of chrystallization,
since it is universally allowed
that similar substances under si-
milar  circumstances  invariably
assume similar figures.

Hence it appears that the for-
mation of basalt must arise from
a different cause, but to what
cause their forms may be owing
remains to be ascertained, and
probably may remain a secret af-
ter every possible effort has been
made to mvestigate the true cause
thereof., .

According to the preceding
conjecturcs, the columnar bodies
of which the Giant’s "Causeway
is composed, were originally in
the very heart of the mountain,
and were alsoina state of fusion,
in which state it seems highly
probable that they composed
one uniform mass of Liquid fire
more perfectly fluid than the in-
cumbent scorie 5 or perhaps muck

Giant’s Causeway.
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more so than melted iron is to its
mcumbent mass.

If the columns were thus in a
state of perfect fusion, and thus
protected by scorie from the ex-
ternal cold, may we not thence
infer, that its contraction in
cooling from such an immense
degree of heat to its present
temperature must have been very
considerable, and also very gra-
dual? Aund therefore since si-
miler appearances have been pro-
duced from a cause somewhat
similar to the above, namely a
contraction from wet to dry, as
‘in the tustance of the Judus hel-
montii, we may thence infer by
analogy, that basalt columns
were formed by contraction,
from an extreme degree of heat
to that of their present tempe-
rature. However, such are the
conjectufes which have hitherto
occurred concerning the origin of
basaltes. :

- Among the many curious and
interesting observations communi-
cated to the world by that in-
genious  mineralogist, the late
Mr. E. Raspe,-on the subject of
extinguished volcanoes, it appears
that basalt is commonly found in
the vicinity of them, which is a
considerable testimony of the
Giant’s Causeway being a volca-
nic production,

Mr. Hamilton describes this
Causeway as a mole projecting
from the base of a steep pro-
montory some hundred feet into
the sea, and férmed of perpendi-
cular  basaltic pillars, which
stand in  contact with each
other, exhibiting an appearance
not unlike a solid honeycomb.
These pillars are irregular prisms
of various denominations, from
four to eight sides ; but the

hexagonal  columns are  as
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numerous 4s all the others to-
gether.

Oun a minute inspection, each
pillar is found to be scparable
nto several joints, whose articu-
lation is inexpressibly neat and
compact ; the convex termina-
tion of one joint always mecting
a concave socket in the next;
besides which, the angels of one
frequently shoot over those of
the other, so that they are com-
pletely locked together, and can
rarely be separated without a
fracture of their parts. There
are no void spaces among the
basaltes, the surface of the Cause-
way exhibiting to view a regu-
lar #4nd compact pavement of
polvoon stones.

The outside covering of the
Causeway 1is soft, and of a
brown colour, being the earthy
parts of the stone, nearly de-
prived of its metallic prizciple
by the action of the air, and of
the marine acid which it receives
from the sea. This coating
contains iron which -has lost its
phlogiston, and is nearly reduced
to a state of ‘calx ; for with a
very moderate heat it becomes a
bright red ochre colour, the at-
tendant of an iron earth,

The leading features of this
whole coast are the two great
promonteries of Bengore and
Fairhead, which stand at the
distance of eight miles from each
-other, These form a number of
capes, composed of a variety of
different ranges of pillars, and
a great number of strata, which
from the abruptness of the coasts
are extremely conspicuous, and
form an unrivalled pile of natu.
ral architecture,. in which all
the neat regularity and elegance
of art are united to the wild
magnificence of nature.

‘Giant’s Causeway.
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The most perfect of these
capes is called Pleaskin, the
summit of which is formed of a
thin grassy sod . and natural rock,
At the depth of twelve feet from
the sumnint, this rock assumies a
columnar tendency, and forms
a range of basaltic pillars, which
stand perpendicular to the ho-
rizon, presenting the appear-
ance of a magnificent gallery or
columnade, upwards of sisty feet
in height, This columnade is
supported on a solid base of black
coarse reck, near sixty feet thick.
Under this great bed of stone
stands a second range of pillars,
between forty and fifty feet high,
less gross than those of the up-
per story. ‘These two natural
gajleries, with the interjacent
rock, form a perpeudicalar
height of one hundred and se-
venty feet, from the base of
which, the promontory, covered
over with rock and grass, slopes
down to the sea for the space of
two hundred feet more, nmkiug‘;
in all amap of near four hundred
feet in height, which in beauty
and varlety of colouring, in ele-
gance and novelty -of armuge-
ment, and in the extraordinary
magnitude of its objects, is un-
rivalled.

It is worthy of observation,
that the ranges of pillars are
more - perfect in  proportion as
they lie deeper » and this is the
case also with the pillars of the
Causeway, which run into the
sea, being more close and uni-
form than those at land.

The promontory of Fairhead
raises its lofty summit “more than
four huadred feet above the
sea, presenting a rude mass of
vast columnar stones, many of
them near one hundred and fifty
feet long. A savage . wildness
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characterises this great promon-
tory s at the foot of which the
ocean rages with - uncommon
fury: Smrce a single mark of
vegetation has yet crept over the
hard rock, to diversify its co-
louring, but one uniform gray-
ness clothes the scene all round.
It forms a fine contrast with the
beautiful  capes of Bengore,
where the varied brown shades
of the pillars, ealivened by the
red and green tints of ochre and
grass, casta degree of life and
cheerfulness over the
objects. -
~ It is reported, that after the
defeat of the Spanish armada,
one of their stray ships, coming
round by the Causeway, fired at
the pillars, mistaking them fora
battery.

Specimens of fossils from this
county, and a model in wood,
may be scen in the Museum of
Triity-college, Dublin.

On the same coast is the anci-
ent castle of Dunluce, near Bush-
mills, underneath which there is
a curious cave in the-rock, ex-
tremely deserving the traveller’s
mspectxon. The only passage
into the castle lies along the top
of a narow wall built in the
form of a rude arch from the
main land to the rock, on which
the castle stands 3 an approach
to which is” attended with much
terror to persons of weak nerves,

DUBLIN to Culeraine and
Portrush, by Armagh.

Dundalt, as in p- 1. — | 40%
J "};‘;‘;‘,‘ U Armaghl10 | 50%
Newtown-Hamilton 2% | 58

Blackbank 2 |55

Armagh + | 624
Blackwater-Town 4% 1 663
Charlemont 13| 68%

To Coleraiue,- and Portrush.

different -
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Killyman-
: Clz;?*ch, } Tyrone, 3 . 71%
Coal-1sland 3:1 4%
Stewartstown oLt 77
Moneymore, L. Derry Y, 63| 83%
Desartmartin 41| 88
Tubbermore L | 90%
Maghera =1 92%
Swatteragh 4 964
Garvagh 33 | 100%
Aughadoway-Bridge 23 | 103}
Coleraine 6 | 109%
Portrush, Anirim| 43| 114

N. B. Between Dundalk and
Armagh, by the TFews road,
there are some steep hills; but
the road is now made good and
¢asy for any carriage.

On the L. of Dundalk is a
fine seat and park, belonging to
the earl of Roden.

One mile from Dundalk, on
the road, .is - C'\stletown-castle,
‘fire old edifice.

T'wa miles from Dundalk, en
the R. are the ruins of Balrig-
gin-castle ; and about a mile
farther, on the L. Castlc-rugh
ruins.

Within a mile of the Feuws,
on the R.is Roxborough-house,
the seat of Mr. Johnston.

At the Fews are the ruins of
the old barrack, ‘built when these
mountains were infested by rob-
bers.

One mile beyond the Fews,
on the R. is Comoley, the seat
of Mr. M’Culloh; and directly
opposite to it is the new church
of Newtown-hamilton.

The mountain lands about
Black-bank, where stands the
ruins of a castle, appear to huve
been formerly cultivated, vesti-
ges of the plough being still visi-
ble. there.

Five miles beyond Newtown-

‘hamilton, on the L. and on the
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other side of the river is Grouse-
lodge, the seat of Mr. Noble.

~ T'wo miles farther, on the R.
is Lisnadill-church ; about half
amile from.which is the glehe-
Vhouqe belonging to the Rev. Mr.
Robinson.

Within a mile of Armagh, on
the L. is Ballyheridan, - the pro-
perty-of Mr. M‘Gongh.

At Armagh, on the R. is the
archiepiscopal palece, '3 most]
maguificent editice, finely situ-
ated and tughly  ornamented.’
lh(, town of Avma"h was for-
mmlv a celebrated city, ,'md is
the metropohtdn sce of all Ire-
Jand ; it contains the ruins of7j
dxﬂueuc abbeys.—In the warket-
place is a cross of two stones
with old basso relievos, repre-
senting Christ on the cross be-
tween two thieves; and some
jugeniouns fretwork.—1he Cathe-
dml of Armagh was anciently
called Druim Sailec, or the church
built with willows ; being origi-
mlly (as most of the prlmmvc
churches of Ireland were) con-
structed with wattles or willows,
wrought in the manner of wick-
er-work.—St. Patrick fixed his
see here ig 444.—The Cathedral
was often burned, and as often
rebuilt; particularly by Pate
bcanlan, about 1262. This town
has been Lotmdu.lblv improved
by the exertions of the Jate Lord
Rokebv, \\hcn Archbishop of
Arinagh.

On the L. of Blackwater-town
1s Tullydowan, the seat of Messrs.
Eyre and Jacksou,

“One mile N. \W.
“ater-town, stands the glebe-
house of Clonfeele. The pre-
sent incumbent is the Rev. Dl.
Richardson. -

Oune mile and a half on the R

from Black-

To Coleramc, and Portrush

E I.o\horon"h,

is Drunwl{ the seat of Joshua
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'\I'(,(,unh, Ijsq pleasantly. situ-
ated on the banks of the river
Callan.

At Charlemont, ontheR.is a
fort in ‘very good repair ; and
beyond the river, on the R. is
the seat of Mr.

Canlfield.

Near two miles bevond Ch'll‘-
lemont, on the L. is Grange, the
seat of Mr. Grier.

1\1va'm was anc:ent]y spelt
Kil-Eamain, and is suppospd tn
have been the old Eawmania, once
tlu. seatof the kingsof Ulster. .

At Killyman Church on the
2. js the glebe-house of the Rev.
My, Caulfuld and a little far-
ther, gn the R. Drumespill, the
scat of Mpr. Stewart,

At Coal- ls]dlld are coal works,
and a cana} from meh-Neaf*h
that passes by this phLe towards
Dungannon,

Just before you enter Stewarts-
town on the R. is Mullentine,
the seat of Mr. Lyne.

On the R. of Stewartstown is
Cwst]e-stcwart the scat of M.
,zmlﬁcld

Two miles to the R. of Stew-

artstown, is Btewart-hall, a most
superb edifice, with extensive
aud beautiful parks and de-

mesnes, the seat of Lord Castle-
Stewart.

About a mile to the L. of
Stewart-hall, und two miles from
Stewartstown, is Killoone, the
seat of Mr. Henry; and opposite
toit s Ballyclog-church

Three miles from Stewarts-
town, on the L. and situated
on rising ground, is Ardtreagh-
church

About halfa mile to the R. of
Moneymore is Spring-hill ; it is
an elegqnt seat of the late Colonel
Conyngham, with bxauuful de-
mesnes,

5
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A little beyond Desartmartin,
on the R. is Dromore, the glebe-
house of the Rev. Mr. Waddy.

A quarter of a mile beyond
Tubberaore, on the L. s lort-
william, the seat of JMr. Steven-
son. ,

At Maghera, on the R.is the
glebe-house of Lord Viscount
Strangford.

At Garvagh, on the L. is the

seat of I'. Canning, Esq. and a
little farther, on the R. Glebe-
hill, the seat of the Rev.- Dr.
Borrowes.
* Withii two miles of Coleraine,
on the L is Maquasquin-church;
and near it the glebe-house of
the Rev. Mr. Young.

Within a mile and a half of
Coleraine, on the R. is Tamna-
mony, a very agreeable scat of
Dir irvine, most pleasantly situ-
ated on the baiks of the Bann,

One mile before you come to
Coleraine, on the . is Summer-
seat, the beautiful seat of John
Richardson, Lsq.—Near it is a
fine salmon leap. '

At Coleraine is the Dbeautiful
seat of the Right Hon. Richard
Jackson ; and on the opposite
side of the river Bann is Mil-
burne, the seat of Mr. Cary.

DUBLIN t0 Gilford & Portadown.

Loughbrickland, as p. 1] —| 38
Giltord, " Down! 4| 621
Moyallen T4} 032
Portadown, Armagh, 2} 053

At Gilford, on the R. is the
seat of Sir Richard Johnston, Bart.

Within ‘three miles of Porta-
down, on the L. is Jioyallen, the
seat of Joseph Phelps, Esq. and
abouta mile from it an the L. is
Carrick, the seat of Mr. Blacker.

To Gilford, Portadown, Lurgan, and Antrim.
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A quarter of 2 mile on the R.
of Portadown is the seat of Mr.
Obins ; and halfa mile farther,
Drumcree-church, near which is
a handsome glebe-house.

To Lurgan, by Halls-mill.

Eanbride,asinp.1 | —f 603
Hall’s-Mill, Down| 23] 63%
Warringstown 33 u6}

Lurgan, Armagh! 2 | 68%

Near Hall’s-mill, on the R. is
Lawrencetown, the seat of Tho-
as Dawson Lawrence, Esq. and
near Lawrencetown is Banford-
green, an elegant new house,
built by Robert Jaffray Nichol-
son, Lsq.

At Warringstown is the seat of
Mr. Magennis.

To Lurgan by Gilford.

Gilford, as in p. 51 —1 623
New-Mills 2 | 644
Lurgan, Armagl} 3 | 6%}

A new recad has been opened
from Gilford to lLurgan, which
has reduced the distance one mile
and a half, and it is now the
road generally frequented from
Dublin to Lurgan, and to several
parts of the county. of Antrim.

Within a mile of Lurgan, on
the R. is Corureany, the seat of
Mr. Stanley.

DUBLIN t6 Antrim, by Moira.

Panbridge, as in p, 1 (= 60%
Donaghcloney, Armagh' 43! 65
Magheralin, Down} 23 673
Moira _ 137 69%
Glanevy, Antrim ﬁil 76
Antrim ' 71 83.



53] To Lurgan,
‘T'wo miles from Banbridge on

the L. is Rosc-hall, the seat of

M. Kearas. !

Near "Donaghcloney are the
scats of Mr. Dempster and M.
Blizard.

Magheralin: i3 a small  weli
planted and well watered vil-
lage, seated on the river Lagan,
where the bishop of Dromore
has a demesue, and had once a
sce-house, but the residence -of
the bishop is now restored to
Dromore, and Magheralin aban-
doned. The village is adorned
with a handsome church. Part
of the lands here,. as well as
those leading to the county of
Antriin, abouads with a white
flinty lime-stone, mixed with
f:halk, which renders the springs
issuing from thie higher grounds
extreinely soft, well tasted, and
particularly noted for washing
and whitening linen. This lime-
stone is likely to prove an ex-
cellent manure for wheat and
wheat grounds ; and the. grass
and herbage growing on the
places where it appears is re-
markably sweet.  Marble pits
have been opened in the neigh-
bourhood ; and near it are seve.
ral manufactures and bleach-
yards, there being scarce a farmer
hereabouts but what carries on
some branch of the linen busi-
ness, )

Near Magheralin is Grace-
hall, the seat of Thomas Doug-
las, Eq. ) °

" At Moira, lying a little to the
L. is Moira-castle, a most noble
edifice, with fine demnesnes, the
scat of the Earl of Moira, but
how let to William Sharman,
Yq. ,

_Moira is a well laid out, thri-
ving village, cousisting of one
broad street, chiefly inhabited

,

and Crumlin.’ [5¢
by dealers, who carry on the
linen manufacture very consides
rably. At the N. E. end of the
towa is a handsome, well plant«
ed, and full grown avenue, lead-
ing to the superb and beautiful
seat of the Earl of Moira. ‘'The
demesnes, plantations, and gar-
dens here are very extensive ; the
walks, vistas and espaliers regu-
lar and growu to perfection,—
Fhe gardea is adorned with a
handsome labyrinth, ponds,. ca-
nals and woouds cut out ipto vistas,
at the botton of which isa de-
coy. - On an eminence in view
of the house is a handsome parish
church finely situated, the front
of which, and part of the steeple,
are well executed in hewn stone.
It was built at the expense of
the late Sir John Rawdon; by
whom was also founded a cha-.
rity school for clothing and edu-
cating twenty-four poor children.
Near the school stands the par-
sonage house, with a coavenient
glebe, laid out by Sir John Raw-
don, in pursuauce of a statute of
the third of George 1I. The

dissenters have two mecting-
i houses here. In the parish are
many quarries of white lime-
stone.

About a mile beyond Moira,
-onthe L.is Soldierstown-church
and near it the seat of Mr. Mason.

At Glanevy, oppusite the
church, is the seat of Mr. Gora
man, : .

DUBLIN to Lurgan and Crumlin.

Lurgan, asinp. 36 | -] 67%
Ballinderry, Antrind 5:l 73%
Crumlin iil 78

N. B, From Lurgan to Autrim
by Crumlin is the same distance
as by Glanevy. .

Eg 7




53] - To Coleraine
* At Lurgan is the beautiful scat
of William Brownlow, Esq.
Within a mile of Ballinderry,
on the L. are the ruins of a church.
About half a mile to the L.
of . Ballinderry . are the ruins of
the once noble castle of Portmore,
seated in the nidst of some fine
plantations  belonging to. the
Marquis of Ifertford.
-~ About three quarters of a* mile
to the L. of Crumlin is Cherty-
valley, the seat of Mr. Gorman.,
Near Crumlin is a large flour-
mill, belonging to Mr. lleyland.

DUBLIN to DPortglenone, and|

continued by the Bann side to
© Colvraine.-

Randalstorn,asin p. 36 ] —{ 88

Grange, Antrim] 53] 931
Portglenonie: 41974
Rasharkan 3 024
Vow-Ferry Iouse’ 4 {106
Coleraine, L. Derryl 9 15

Two miles from Randalstown,

on the L.-is Monyrod, the seatf

of Mr. lenderson ; and a little

farther to the L. Paymount, that |:

of Mr. O“Neil.
Dunnaia-church is about half
a milcto the L. of Paymount,

- Your miles from Randalstown, |

on the L. is Moneyglass, the seat
of Mr. Jones.
At Grange on: the L. situated

at the foot of a pretty high hill, |-

is the seat of- Mr. Charlton ; and
near it, that of Mr. Clarke.

Five miles and a half from
Randalstown, on:the L. near the
new ferry over the river Bann,
is the seat of Mr. Courtney.

- At Portglenone is the beau-
tiful seat of -Mr.-Hamilton, Here
are delightful prospegts, and fine

and Ballycastle. [36

views of the river. There is
pleuty of wood here.

At Rasharkan, on the L. near
the church, is the glebe-houseys
in the possession of the Rev, Mr.
Bristow,

Two miles from Rasharkan,
seated on a rising ground, is the
village of Kilrea.

Fhree wmiles from Rasharkan,-
‘on- the 1. is Desartderry, the scat
of Mr. Rowen; and ncarly op-
posite to it, on the other side of
e riverpis Banville,e the glebes
liouse of the Rev. D~ "Torrens.

Mooré’s:lodge,on the R. situar
‘ted on the banks of the Bann, is
the seat of William Moore, Lsq.

BUBLIN, to Ballycasik.

:dntrim,-asin p. 36 — 8
Kells, Antrim, 53 89 1'}
Ballymena- 33 93%
Clogl® 6| 993
Loughgule 53[105
Armoy.Church 4 1109
‘Ballycastle “43[113%

See another rodd to Clogh, p.60.:

At Antrim is the fine seat of
‘the Earl of DMassareene. N

About a mile and a half, onf
the L. is Shane's castle, the beau-
tiful and magnificent seat of tite
[Right Hon. Lord-0*Neil.

T'hree miles fromi - Antrim,- on*
the R. is a hill,- from which is
afine view of Lough-Neagh, and*
the adjatent country.

© About half a- mile Before you’
come to Kells, lyinz on the R. is
the cathedral church' of Connor:

Near to, and on the L. of Kells,-
are the ruins of a church!

One mile and a half beyond'
Kells, on the R. is'Leminery, the’
seat of Dogherty Gormarf, Esq. |

Within a mile and a half of*

Ballymena, on the rising. ground?



7]
oppdsite Gilgorm-castle, belong-
ing to Lord Mountcashell, is a
gettlement of Moravian brethren.
The place is called Grace-hill,

and is oi the estate of the Right

Hon. Lord” O¢Neil. ' It is worthy

the traveller’s most particular

#itention.

At Ballymena; )
¢havely, on the R. s thescat of
Mr. Adair;

of Johw Dicky, Esq.

- A mile and a half fromr Baily-~

meuna, on the R. is Ballygarvy,
the seat of Mr. Campbelly
mile to the R. is Broughshane ;

mear which is tha Lodge, aseat of
the Right Hon. Lord O¢Neil; and
Whitchall, that of J. White, Usq.

Within' a mile andt a hall of{.
€logh, omthe R. is Killyre, tle

scat of Mr. Coples.

. Near Clogh; on the R. are good
bleach-milis, and a new well-built

house,belonging-toJohn Allen, Esq
- On the Ei of Clogh are tire
Fuins of 1wo' castles.

‘Two miles and a half beyond |,
Clogh, on the IX. is the seat of|
AMr. Crawford'; and' two 1miles
beyond' that, o the Li Corky,

the'seat of M. Pirie.

At Loughgule,s surrounded by’
the louglrand a canil, is’ Lissa- ||
noure-castie, the beautiful seat of |-

Lord Mucdrtngy.  Loughgule-

church stands’ oir the R. of the
lough, but buasts'of nothing res

Aarkable.
Within

¢harch of Armoy stands an” an-
cient Irish round- tower. |

Near three  miles B’eyond

Armoy-chareh, oi the L. are
some remarkable ruins of a castle

Hrar a plantation-of trees:

To DBallycastle, &c

near the

and abont half a
fiile to the L. Ililluead, the scat

A

a” mile of Armby-|:
¢hurch;, on'the L. near the river
Bush, is Lime-park, the seat of
the Rev. Mr. Clarke ; beside thel

{58

At Ballycastle, viear the churchy
on the L. is'the chart’er-‘s‘éfx’oo‘l;
and 4 little beyond- Bailycastle, on.
the R. situated on the baoks of
‘the river Glenshesk, is the scat of
. the lite [1. Boyd, lisq.

L One mile on the L. of Dally-
Ccastle iy Clare, the seut of L. D.
Boydysq.

Ballycastle is but @ small place,
yet its coal mines are equally wor-
thy the notice of the philosophic
and patriotic traveller. The pier
at this place was built by parlia-
‘Inentary encouragement. A road
-is carried from the quay along the'
‘sea-coust to thi codl works, which
are about thrrec-fourtls of a nild
.distant from the towr.

stwother Road to Ballycastle.

—| 09%

Cloghyas in p. 56.

Clogh-Mills, ntrim| 2 }1101%
Loughgute 33105
Ballycastle L 731128

e e

Ty Ballycasile by Stranocun.
“Clogte Mills,

Antrim| —{101§
‘Stranocuii 73]108%
Bailycastle 7ij116%

X, B The rodtly By Strano~

cum and Loughgule,” thoubt?
soinething longer, are more free
from’ hills than the direct road to
iBailycastle from Clogh. L
Thicd miles beyond Cloghs
{Mills are very good bleach:niiliss
:and the seat of Mr. Moote."
At Stranocum, duthe R, 15" a
:seat of Archibald® Hutchinson,
‘Esq.and onthe opposite side of the
river 1s DBushbaak, the -seat of
James Hamilton, Esq. and on the
L. Clover-hill, the séat-of Mrs
Henry,



http:bleach.:.ni.iU
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58]  To Glenarm, Newtown-Glens, Armiagh, Clogh, &e. [0

Two miles beyond Stranocum,
on the L. is Grace-hill, the sea
of Mr. Stewart. .

Three miles from Stranocum,
on the R. is Chatham-hall, thc
seat of Mr. Dunlap.

Within two miles of Ballycas-
tle, on the L. are the ruinsof a
castle.

DUEBLIN 10 Glenarm, by Antrim

Kells, as in page 56 ~1 89%
Broughshane, = duatrim{ 53| 95
Glenarm 9,403

. 'Three miles beyond Kells, on
the R. is Craigbiliy, the seat o!
Hamilton O¢Hara, i‘sq. v »

‘Near two miles beyond
Broughshane, on the L. situatec
on the summit of a hill, are the
ruins of Skirry-church.

Four miles from Broughshane,
on the L. opposite Forked-bridge,
15 Clagan, the seat of Mr. O‘Hara.

Within a mile and a haif o;
Glenarm, on the L. are the ruin
of a church, .

At Glenarm is Glenarm-castle,
the superb and beautiful seat of
the Countess of Auntrim, with
extensive demesnes.

Glenarm is pleasantly sitaated
on the sca-shore, near a bay of
the sume name ; it is now bat a
small place, though formerly of
greater note. A monastery for
Yranciscan _ friars. of the third
order was Dbuilt herc in the
year 1465, by Robert Bisset, a
Scotsman, ‘This monastery and
the lands belonging thereto were
granted to Alexander M‘Don-
nell, ancestor
Antrim.  There are still some
remains of this building on the
bay of Glenarm. 'The castle oi
Glenarin was erected after the

to the Earls of

ancient  family seat of the.
M<Donnell’s at Ballymagarry had
been destroyed by fire. '

DUBLIN ¢ Cushendall, or New-
town-Glens.

Clogh, asin p. 56
Newtown-
Gleus,

Seven miles from Clogh, on
the L. is Retreat, the seat of Mr.
Gvans. ~ . ,

One mile to the R. of New-
wvn-glens are Red-castle ruins
acar them is a fine seat called
lount-Edward.

—| 99%
A:ztrim’ 931092

To Clogh, bty Broughshane.

Bronghshane, asin p. 56 l ~195
Clogh, Auntrin § 211003

Within a mile of Clo,h, on
the L. is Killyre, the seat of Mr.

Coples.

To Armagh, by Newry. .

Newry, asin p. 1 —1| 50%
Market-Hill,  drmagly 93] 60
Arimagh S5i) 65%

About half a mile from Nevwry,
on the R. is Demolly, the scat of
Mr. Carlisle ; and nearly opposite
to it, on the L. is Lisdrumgullion,
"a seat of Mr. Nedham. -

One mile and . a half from
Newry, on the L.is Moor-vale,
the seat of Mr., Moore; and near
a mile farther, onthe same side,
is Greenfield, the scat of Mr.
Hamilton.

Three miles from Newry, onthe
L. pleasantly situated on the side
»f a hilt, is Tuliyhappy, the scat

of Mr. Blacker.
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Six miles from Newry, on the
B. is Loughglly-church ; near
which is the glebe-house of the
Rev. Dean Warburton.

At Market-hill, celebrated by
Dean Swift, is  Gosford castie.
the beautiful seat of Lord Gos-
ford. . ;

Near a mile and a half from
Market-hill, on the R. is Mully-
brack-church; and, oppesite to
it, the glebe-house, belonging to
the Rev. Dr. Hamiiton.

Within a mile of Armnagh, on
the L. is Ballyberidan, the seat of
Mr. M 'Gough. » )

Near Armagh is the magni-
ficent palace, with ample de-
mesnes, of the Lord primate of
all Ireland. ft was erccted by
the late primate, Lord Hokeby.
The building is of white hewn
stone, and 1s situated on the R,
of the Dublin road; it is very
elegant, ninety feet by sixty, and
forty high, 1 which an una-
adorned simplicity reigns. ltis
light and pleasing, without the
addition of wings or less parts,
which, too frequently wanting a

sufficieat uniformity with the,

body of the edifice, are uncon-
neeted with it in eflect, and di-
vide the attention. Large and
ample offices arc conveniently
placed behind a plantation ata
small distance. Avound the pa-
lace is an extensive lawn, which
spreads on every side over the
hills, and skirted by young plan-
tations, in one of which is o ter-
race, which commands a most
beautiful view of cultivated hiil
and dale. The view from the
palace is much improved by the
barrack, the school, and a new
church at a distance, all which
are so situated, as to be exceed-
ingly ornamental to the whole
country.

I'o Portadown, and Stewartstown,

{62

DUBLIN to Portadown and Stcw='

artstown.
Nawry, as in p. 1 ——-} 503
Tanderagee,  Armaghjlo}) 613
Portadown 4% 653
7

HiA 4 1

)
!
5
Blackwater-Toot, Da::‘n: vl 72
Stewartstown,  Tyrone; 53 78

Half a mile from Newry, on
the R. is Demolly, ‘the scat of
Mr. Carlisle. )

Two miles and a half fiom
Newry, on the R. on the opposita
side of the caual and river, is Car-
meen, the seat of Mr. Laing.

Near six miles flfom Newry,
on the L. 1s Drumbanaghar, the
seat of John Moor, Esq. )

At Acton, near eight miles from
Newry, on the L. is the fine scat
of Alexander Stewart, Esq. and
two nles farther, on the L. is
Clare-castle, that of Mr. Dawson.

T'wo miles beyond Tanderagee,
on the L. is Mullyvilly-church ;
aud a mile farther, Dawson’s~
grove, the scat of Mr. Kelly.

7 Within a mile of Portadown,
on the L.is Mahone, the scat of
Mr. Workman. .

A quarter of a mile beyond
Portadown, on the R. is the scat
of Mr. Obins; and alittle beyond
it, Drumcree-church, .and the
seat of the Rev. Mr. Mauunsell,

On the R. of Elackwater-foot
i1s a seat of the Earl of Charle-
mont, in an islad “in Lougha
oeagh, near Coney-island.

QOae mile and a half from
Blackwater-foot, on the L. is
Holy-river-spa; and two twiles
tacther, on the R. is Belville,
the seat of Mr. Morres.

Within half a mile of Stew-
artstown, on the R. is Baru’s hill,
the seat of the Rev. Dr. Lill; and
uear i, Castle-Stewart, the fine
seat of Lord Castle-Stewart.
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DUBLIN to Charlemgnt b_y
Rich-pell.

Dundall, as in p-1 —| 40%
I‘orl\hr,ll Armag[: 5| 45%
Dromally- 53| 504!
Mawhan 53 56%
Market-Hill 13 58

Hamjlton’s-Bawn 231 60%
Rich-Hill 13| 621
Charlemont 63 633

At Tork-hill, isa very fine seat
of Mis. ]ackson

‘Cwo miles beyond For}chlll on
the R. is Slieve-gullen, one of
the highest mountains in the
l\mﬂdom.

About two miles and g hglf
beyond Dromilly, on the L. near
B'llly\nre church is Ballymoyer-
lodge, the
S)nnot Knt.

At Market-hill, on the R.
Gosford-castle, a very beanuf'ul
and agreeable seat of Lord Gos-
ford, much frequented by the
Jate dean Swift, and celebrated
in his poems, The de'm had g
great fnemlshlp with Sir Arthur
Acheson, the present Lord’s great
grand father, and chose a favou-
rite spat near, to which he gave
the name of Draper’s hill.

A mile beyond Market-hill, on
the L. is Mullybmuk church
and opposite to it the glebe- hoqs&,
of the Rev. Dr. Hamilton.

. Aboat haif a wiile from Hamil-
fonis-bawn, on the L. is Dunne-
naught, the seat of Mr. MDowal.

At Rich-hill is the seat of
‘William Richardsen, Fsq. :

One mile from Rich-hill, on
the L. is Castle-dillon, the mag-
nificent seat of the Right.Hon. Sir
Capel \lo]vneu\(. The demesne

is laid out in a style of elegance |

ravely imitated in this country,
a.nd v.hxm veoul(l do honor to

To Charlemont, &c.

‘seat of Sir- W alter‘

(64

the best taste. IHere every natus
r'i! ad\'mt'lrre of hnll wood aud
water , appears admlrably inprov-
ed by the correctest aid of art.
In the centre of the demesne is
an extensive lake, cmcred \\lth
wild fowl, aml surrounded by
)mpen(llng \er(.ant hills.  Some
loftv spires, eepecmllv that of
Armagh, diversify the ‘distang
prospect of a most cultivated and
wooded lam}stape, to whose beau-
ty two CONSPicunys obelisks con-
tnbute not 3 Jittle, 'They were
erected by the; Jate Lord Rokeby
and Siy (dpcl Mol\"\eux s thefirst
to comn;enmrate tho nrder of St.
Patrick ; the lattpr, in honour of
the volunleere of lrel and. In
fme, the pdrkw'lte and offices are
in'the first style of architecture
and elerrance, anda smt'\ble man-
smn house, in the room “of the
present ol(f one, would re;uler this
seat ope of the most agreeable i
the kmgdom :

Three niiles and a half from
Rich-hill, on the R. is Drummil®
ly, the seat of Archdall Cope, Esq.

Charlemont is a tolerable well;
built town, gnd is governed by a
portrleve t is reckoned a gar-
rison, and hath a military govern-
ment on the establishment, with
a barrack for three companies of
foot. It gives the title of Earl to
the noble family of Caulfield. It
was formerly a borough byt re-
turns no representatives to parlm~
ment since the umon

%

To Charlemont, by Loughgall.

Rich-hill, as inp. 63 — 62;

Loughgall, Armaghl 33

Clzm lemont 8i 9 X
One mile from R;ch hill, op

the R. is Hackley, thc scat of
Mr. Shields,



65] s

At Loughgall, on the R. is the
scat of Robert Cainden Cope, 1sq.

Two miles farther, on the R.
is Summer-island, the seat of Mr.
Clarke; and on the L. Hayes-
hall, that of Mr. Hayes.

To Moncymore, by Cookstown.

Charlemont, as in p. 47 | =] 681
Dungannon,  'Tyrone; 41f 724
New-Mills o b2k 7ol
Dunaghy 23 78
Cookstown 33 813
Moneymore, L. Derry] 34l 851

Two miles from Charlemont,
o0 the R. is Grange, the seat of
Mr. Grier. )
. Within a mile of Dungannon,
on the L. is Farm-hill, with ex-
tensive and thriving plantations,
the seat. of Lord Viscount North-
.Jand. A

Dangannon is an ancient bo-
rough and market-town, and
hath a barrack for a troop of
horse. It was formerly  the
chief sest of the O*Neils, kings
of Ulster, and gave the title of
viscount to the family of Trevor,
as it now does that of Baron to
.the lotd viscount Vane. This
.town wasmade remarkable by the
assembly of the Ulster delegation
‘o‘f volunteers, on the 15th of
.Febroary, 1782. This place re-
turns enc member to the . imperial
parliament. A, D. 1498, the
strong castle* bere of. O¢Neil
M‘Art.O‘Ncil,hischiefresidencc,
was ‘taken by Gerald the eighth
Earl of Kildare, but soon recover-
ed by ONeil ; but in 1517 it was
surrendered to Gerald the ninth
Farl of Kildare, who burned it.—
Bcing rebuile, it was alternately
in the haud of contending partics,
sometimes dismantled, sometimes
repaired. In 1641 it was seized

~To Moneymore, and the Mill of Louth. .

(66

by the northern insurgents, bu;
was demolished by the parliamen-
tary forces. llerein the reign _of
Hehry VIiI. Con O¢Neil b}ltlt
a monastery of Franciscan friars
of the third order, which, on the
suppression of mnnvasteries. was
granted to Richard, Earl of \Vesf-
meath, who assigned it to Sir
Artlones Chichester,

On the R. of Dungannon are
the ruins of. a castle, formeily
called M<Que, and where a chief
of that name resided.

Near 'New-mills, on’
and the oppostite side o -he ca-
nal, is Fair-lough, the seat of
Mr. Richardson ;  and a little
farther, on the L~ Aughnaginy
the scat of Mr. Mitchell. -

- O the L. of Dunaghy, near
Desartereat-charch, is the seat of
AMr Hamilton, " . '

Within a mile of Cookstown,
on the L. is Killymoone, the su-
perb and beautiful seat, with very
ample and highly cultivated de-
mesnes, of James Stéwart, Esq.
- Just before you enter the town
of Moneymore, on the R. is the
glebe-house - of the Rev. Mr.
Martin. - - Co .

On the R. of Moneymore is
Spring-hill, the fine seat of the
late Colonel Conyngham,

‘the R.

Ll

To the Mill of Louthy, by Dunleer.

Dunleer, as in p. 1 ~—1 303
Braganstown, - Lowth) 5 | 35E
Fullanstown 43! 391
Milil of Louth 151 40%

Two miles. from Dunle.r, and
about a mile to the L.js Poc’s-
court, the seat of hir, Poe,

At Braganstown ou the L. is
the scat of Mr, Tisdall,

Oae mile before you come te

Tallanstown, on the'L. ig Rosy-
;
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park, the seat of Sir C. Fortescue,
and op. the L. of Tallanstown
15 Louth-hall, the seat of Lord
Louth, . .

_ About half a mile beyond
Tallanstown, on the R. are the
ruins of a church.

To Castleblaney, Orﬁagh, and Adghxlacfoy.

To C&stlc[llanc_y, by Dundalk.

401
45}
491
511
533

.. One mile from Dundalk, on the
R. is Castletown, the seat of Mr.
Eastwood.

. Two miles and three quarters
from Dundalk, on the R. is Bra-
bason-park, the = seat of Mr.
Jenny; also Philipstown, where
isa- very neat glebe-house, built
by Sir Thomas Forster, Bart.
-. Four miles from Dundalk, on
the R. are Castle-roch ruins.

Within a mile aod a half of
Culloville, on the R. is Foxfield,
.the seat of Mr. M¢Master.

About half a mile’ beyand
Culloville, on the L. is Ardkirk,
the seat of the Marquisof Bath.

At Castleblaney isa very noble
and beautifyl seat of Lord Blaney.

Dundalk, asinp. 1
Rachdale, Louth} 5%
Culloville, Armagh| 3%
Mulloghanee Bridge 23
Castleblaney, Monaghan 24

To 01}zagh, by Aughnacloy.

Emy Vale,as p,77 Mon.] —| 66}
Aughnaclay, Tyronc) 431 71
Ballygawly 33) 743
Omagh - J121y 861

N. B. This road ishalf amile
shorter than the Augher road,
but not o good.

On the L. of Emy-valeis An-
ketell’s Grove, the fine seat of
Mr. Anketell ; and a mile farther

[68

is Fort Singleton, that of M.
Singleton, st

About half a mile” beyond
Aughpacloy, on the L. is Garva,
the magnificent seat of Nathaniel
Montgomery Moore, Lsq.

Two miles beyond Aughnacloy,

on the L. 1s Lismore-fort, now in
ruins. :
At Ballyzawly, on the R. is the
seat of Huamilton Gorges, Lsq.
and half a mile beyond, on the
L. is Richmont, the seat of the
Rev. Mr. Richardson.

One mile and a quarter beyond
Ballygawly, on the R. is the seat
of Mr. Harvey. : .

Four miles from Ballygawly,
on the R. is Starbog.spa.

Within three miles of Omagh,
en the L. is Drumcenley, the scat
of Mr. M+Farlane. o

The ancient name of Omagh
was Qigh-meagh, i. e. the residence
of the chief, being formerly one
of the raths or castles of the old
chiefs of this country ; it is also
in some old books named . Drum-
maragh.—An abbey was found-
ed at Omagh in A. D.792; and
in the fifteenth century, 2 monas-
tery of Franciscans of the third
order was also founded - here.—
Omagh is a post, market, and fair.
town,

To Aughnacloy, by A.rnxagyli.

Armagh, as in p. 47 621
Killyleagh, Dewnj 43) 67
Tynan Armagh] 13| 683
Callidon, Tyrone] 13| 704
Aughnacloy 154l 76

Two miles from Armagh, on
the L. is Rosebrook, the fine seat
of Mr. Maxwell, .

Four miles from Armagh, on
the R..is Elm-park, the seat of

}Mr. Close.
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To the L. of Killyleagh, on a
considerable eminence, ls Waod-
park Lodge, finely situated, 'the
seut of John Henry Burgess, E;q

Within a ‘mile of lynan, on

the R. are the ruins of a castle,
situated in the midst of a fm(.
plantation of trees.
" At Tynan, on the L. opposite
the church, is a2 new house, built
by the late Rev. Dr. Jacob, the
former incnmbent, =~ N
" Near Caledon, on the R. is
Caledon-hill, the magnificent seat
of the Rmht Hon. Lord Caledon,
built en a ¢ominanding situation,
in the centre of an extcnswe de.
mesue, highly dressed and im-
proved ; and near itis the \ery
elegant house aund demesnc of
Ahenis, the seat of John Ma.\-
well, Lsq.

To Tynan, by Castle-Shane.

Cﬁstlc-Sllqnc, Mon. 595
Middlc{on, Armagh] 4 | 63%
Tynan 21 653

On the R. of (‘astlc-shane is
the seat of Mr. Lucas,

Two milesbeyond Castle-shane,
on the L. is Killyneale, the seat of
Mr. Alexander.

One mlle beyond Mlddleton,
on the L. is Fairview, the seat of
the Rev. Dr. btrong

~ At Tyunan, is Enogh, the glebp-
house of the Rev. Mr. Quinn,
situated near the church. -

Another Road to 7‘;1/111"11.‘

Castleblaney, ~ Mon. 5131
I\e:xdy, Armatrlz 584
T y nan- 65

“Two miles from Keady is Maﬂ-
dan-church; and near ittheglebe-
house, the seat of the Rev Dr.
Jones.

N. B. to heady, by Dundalk

and Newtow n-hamxlton, 1s about

To Tynan, Armagh Omagh, Magherafclt &c.

'Dunzannon, as in p. 65.

\Iaaherafeu

o

the same dxstancc as. by Castle-
blaney, ‘but  the road’ is ‘more
mountainous, -~ !
From Keady to Armagh| 6 ]
About Keady, and along the

‘banks of the Collon river to Ar-

magh, are many considerable
bleach-mills, the linen manufac-
ture bcil)% carried on there very
extensively.

.

To Omagh, by Dungannon.

Dungannon, asin p. 65 72%
Donaghmore, Armagh| 24| 751
Pomeroy, Tyrone} 53} 803
Nine-Mile House " * | 33 841
Six-Mile Cross 341 387%
Omagh ’ 74 913

To Bal(ygm.:l_y

72%
Castle-Caul- ol 7
asﬁ:ld aa Armagh’ 231 75}
Ballygawly, Tyrone 7 £2%
Omagh 123 943

About twa miles from Dungan-
non, on the Ri s 1 ’\Iu“aghmore,

‘the beautxful scat of the Rev Mr.

L‘ ans.
Castle-caulficld was formerly

_the seat of Lord Charlemont, but

is now & complete ruin, it having
been demolished by the rebels i in
1641, when thé owner ¥was ‘mnur-
dered.

Abont three miles from Castle-
caulfield, on the R.is lull_yshwl—
church,

Near Ballygawlv, on the L. is
the seat of Mr. Gorges.

For remarks on the road from
Ballygawly to Omagh, see p. 68.

DUBLIN to Magherafelt.

Moneymore, asin p. 48 s34
L. Dcrry 4 { 874



]

On the R. of Moneymore is a
noble seat of the late Colone:
Conyngham,

Within a mile of Magherafelt>
onthe R. is Killyfaddy, the seat
of Mr. Maxwell, '

Another Roa d.

Stewartsown, as inp. 48 —‘ 77
Coagh, Tyrone| 43 81
‘Magherafelt, L. Derry 63 838

On the R. of Stewartstown is
Castle-stewart, the seat of Mr.
Caulfield.

Two miles from Stewartstown,
on the R. is Killoonte, the seat of
Mr. Henry. .

At Coagh, on the R. seated on
Ballinderry river, are the ruins
of a church,

Five miles frem Coagh, on the
L. is Killyfaddy, the seat of Mr.
Maxwell.

DUBLIN to Kilrea, and continued

_ to Coleraine. ) .

" Maghera, s in p. 48 | —| 924
Kilrea, L. Derry| 78100
‘Bovaugh Bridge, Tyronc| 41{1044

“Coleraine, L. Derryl 74{1113

On the R. of Magherais the

glebe-house of the Rev. ' Dr.
. Marshall. a

Within a mile and a half of
Kilrea,onthel. 1sthe glebe-house

. of the Rev. Dr. Torrens; andal

mile beyoud Kilrea, on the R. is
Banville, the glebe-house also of
the Rev. Dr, Yosrens.

About a mile hence, to the R.
- and on the other side of the river
Bauu, is Moore’s-lodge, the seat
of William Moore, Lsq.

Within half a mile of Bovaugh-
bridge, on the L. is Lanmore, the
scat of DMr. Church ; aud about a
mile oy the L. s Bovaugh-eastle,

" To Kilrea, Coleraine, and Londonderry.
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situated on the banks of Apivey-
river, the estate of the Marguis of
Waterford, but in lease for kves
to Longford Heyland, Esq. who
resides there, and has made great
improvements on it.

Ncar- Bovaugh-bridge, on the
R is another seat of the same
nobleman.

Abeut a mile and ahalf beyond
Bovaugh -bridge, on the R. are the
ruins of a church; on the oppo-
site side of Aughadoway-river is
Agivey, the seat of Mr. Du Prie ;
and a mile to the L. is Black-
heath, the ghbe-house of tha
Rev. Henry Bruce. ’

DUBLIN ¢ Londonderry, by
Armagh and Cookstown.

Cookstown, asin p. 65 | —! 81}
Stramore-lnn,  Tyrone 01! 01
Dungiven, L. Daryl 8 | 99
Banagher- Tyrond] 2211085
Clady, - LK. Derry} 631107}
The-Cross o4l
Ferry-Bank 23141
LoxpoNDERRY N>
N. B. dee another road to

Londonderry, p. 77.

There is a road from Desart--
martin to Stramere-inn, by which
the mountaius beyond Cookstown
are avoided ; but it ts above two
miles longer.

The road from Cookstown to
Dungiven is over the mountains
a great part of the way, butisa
good road,and kept in good repar..

Two miles froin Cookstown, on
she L is Lissan, the seat of John
Staples, Esq. the house is large
and comrodious, and stands in the
midst of well improved grounds

it was built before the revolution,
and has continued ever since in
the family of the present possessor.-
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The demesne, answering to the
description of am ornamented
farin, abounds in picturesque
beauties; and a mile tarther, on
the same side, is the seat of Mr.
Jackson. :

Near Dungiven, on the L. are
the ruins of a church, nearly op-
posite to Dungiven-church.

Oun the L. of Dungiven, just
before you enter the town, is a
seat of the Right Hon. Edward
Cary,

A little beyond Dungiven, on
the R. is Matt’s-mount, the seat
‘of Mr. Fanning.

Four miles beyond Banagher-
church, on the L. are the rains
.of Straid-church ; and about a
ile tarther, to the L. situated at
the foot of a high hill, is Lare-
mount, the seat of the late Sir
W. Mootgomery, Bart.

Near Clady, ou'the L. and on
“the opposite side of Faughban-ri-
ver, is Beaufort-lodge, the seat of
-Mr. Ross. o

One mile and a half beyond
Clady, on the L. are the ruins of
O<Cane’s-castle. .

" One mile beyond Cross, on the
L. is Beech-hill, the seat of My,
Skipton; and sboit half a mile
tarther, on the same hanil, Ash-
brook, the scat of Mr. Ash.

About a mile o the L. of Lon-
doad ey is Prehen, the fine seat
of Mr. 'Kuoox.

Londouderry is remarkable iu
the aunals of history for the long
sivge it sustained, under the com-

“maud of Mr. Walker, a clergy-
n, agaiust the forees of James
1L when he was 1 possession of
almost all the rest of the kingdom.
It was built Ly a company of
London adventurers (from whom
it derives its name) in the reign
of James 1. It hath a iilitary
governor, whe is commander of

- To Londonderry, &c.
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Culinore-fort. Its church is very
nandsome, and a lofty spire, with
which it hath been lately adorned,
produces a fine effect, as it is si-
tuated on the summit of the hill.on
which the town is built. Its
market-place is large and beauti-
ful, and its harbour bordered with
a tine quay, The walls are built
in the modernstyle of fortification,
consisting of a thick rampart of
carth, faced with stone, and flank-
ed with bastions, capable of cone
taining the proper force for de-
feace, the platform on the top of
the ramparts being covered by
parapets. There are some can-
non left there, but most of them
were carried away by the Ord-
nance board, about twenty years
ago, being declared unfit for ser-
vice. The walls are in perfect
repair, though builtin 1614: the
gates are the same ; two of them
have portcullises.  The streetsare
all strait and broad. The quay
and great part of the city is not
within the walls. * Itis governed
by amayor, aldermen, recorder,
and sheriffs, and is a city and
vounty of itself. A very curious
and handsome wooden bridge has
been erccted here, which was
opened for foot passengers in the
latter end of the year 1790.—
This plain and elegant structure
(the first of the kind introduccd
into Ireland) was framed in Ame-
rica, and transported from thence
across the Atlantic ; it was built
in thirteennonths, at the expense
of the corporation, by DMessts.
Lemuel Cox and Junathan Thomp-
son, natives of America. In the
year5+6 anabbey fur Augustinian
canons was founded here by St
Columb ; it was on the saine foun-
dation as that of St. 1eter and St.
iaul at Armagh, and in aftertimes

was dedicated to its founder St
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Columb An abbey for Cister-
tian-monks was alsq founded here
in 1218, by I'urlorrh Lcnngh
O+Neil, of Strabane ; andaD0nu~
nican-friary was founded here in
1274, by O<Donnel the younger,
princeof Tyrconpel, at the request
of St. DomxmcL “this building
was sxluatcd on thgT\ side of the

city, but there are now no remains

of ‘it. There was also a Frauncis.
can-fridiy here.

family of Stewart, and returns
one member to thc m)penal par-
liament.

" Before the mouth of Lough-
foyle, near Londonderry, is a
great sand ‘called the Touns,
which however does notobstruct
the navigation, as there are at all
times fourteen or fiftecn. fathoms
of water in the channel, which is
broad and deep. ' In the entrance
of the lough therc are very great
sands on the left hand from one
‘end to the other, w hich are some
‘miles broad off the land ; and en
the right h'md are little sands or
shelves lying close'to the land.—
‘Between these there is a broad
channel, in most parts three or
four fathoms deep; and in that
-urm,  whereon Londonderry
‘stands, it is ten ar twelve, and
before the town four or five; so
that this is justly .esteemed as
goud and commodxous a harbour
.‘as most in the kuwdum.

-DUBLIN to Neuwtown-Limavady,
Magilligan, and Downhills,

‘Dungiven, asin p. 72 | —| 99
Newtown- ] D 3
- erryl 731063
Limavady, { 7y| 751063
Magilligan-Church 531121
Craigtown-lun, dyrone| 13113}

To Ncwtown-Limavady, Magilligan, &c:

(e

To Downhill’s,
ahasHLr\e) se > Arm.} 33117
L ‘ '

" N. B. You may go from New-
town- limavady to” Down-hills, by
Ardecleave.

*About a mile from Dungiven,
on the L. and situated on the
banks of the river Rowe, is

| Derryard, the seat of Mr. Kyle;
Londonderry |
givesthe'title of Barl to the nobie

i mile be) rond v\lu(,h situated. in
like mamier, isthe glebe-house of
the Rev. Mr. thrd

Five wiles from Dungiven, en
the L. is the house of Mr. Smith;
and a mije iarthcr, on the oppo-
site side of the river Rowe, is
that of Mr. Campbell.

Within a nile .of I\C“t()“ ns
limavady,. on the L. is Daisy-
hill, the seat of Mr. MtCausland.

On the R. of Newtown-lima-
vady is Fruit-hill, the seat of M.
M+Causland ; and Strieve, that of
Mr. lhomton.

To Mngzllzgun ] int.

Craigtown-Inn,as ] . '
above ‘ '_, 133

Magilligan- A .

| l’omt ! } L. Dcn.'_y‘ 43 HS

About Magilligan, and “round
to I)ownhxlls, are hwh hills on the
R. with L'(Lf:‘tdln" steep rocky
clifts, with water- fdlls in many
places, which have a very grand
and pleasing effect.

Oue mile beyond Crzugtown
vou enter the strand ; and on-the
R.is Solomon’s. porch which was

‘formerly a very fine cave, but the
rock, being limestone, is quarried

down, aud the cave greatly dam-
aged,

At Downhills the bishop of
t Derry has built a fine house, in
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all the clegance of Italian archi-
tecture, on one of the wildest
prosontoriésin the N. of Irefund;
which his lordship is convertiig
~ cle . .
to a beautiful villa,

At DMagilligan, betwéen the
church dnd the point, is tlhe great-
est rabit warren in the kingdom ;
yielding annually about three or
four thousand dozen of skins,
valued from 1500 to 18001 and is
the property of the bishop of

Crry.. '

Magilligan-point isat themouth
of Lough-foyle. 'The ferry from
this place to Green-castle is about
three quatters of a mile.

DUBLIN to Londonderry.

To Londonderry, &t.

Drogheda, as in p. 1 —{ 23%
Collon, Louth] 5%} 203
Ardee 53 34
Mill of-Louth 5| 39%
Corcreagh . 23} 413
{’ctcrborough, Monagh 4 | 453
* Ilg:.?(?;g:“"" Arm.| 3% 493
Ca;tlebla'n‘cy, Moraghan] 2% 513
Clentibret-Church 53 57
Castle-Shane 2| 59%
Monaghan 33| 622
Cross Roads or ¢ | 662
Gm%boroughlml ]
N. B. From Castle-’
Shane by Filkland is% 63] 654
one mtle shorter. '
Emy.-Vale 11] 663
Erigill-Church 24} 641
Augher, Tyrone}f 531 75%
Ballaghneed-Inn 3 178%
Omagh 191874
Newtownstewart 7194
‘Douglas-Bridge 31974
Strabaric . 43101%
Lifford, Dﬁncgal 1 [102Y
St. Iohastoon 6 i108%
Carrigans 13110
LONDONDERRY + ]1 144

-| the Pope.

[18

Oun'the L. of Drogheda, o the
opposite side of the river Boyiie, is
Ball’s-grove, the séat of Mi., Ball.

T'wo miles from Dréghéda, on
the L. scated on the Boyne-river,
is the obelisk, crécted therc in
commemoration - of the victoey
gained by King William over
the forces of James 11,

Néar three miles from Drog-
heda, on the L. is Townley-hall,.
the seat of Townley Balfour, sy,
and haif a mile farther is Ar-
dagh, that of the late Colonel
Bellingham, i

Three miles from Drogheda,
on the R. aré the tower and
church of Manasterboice, now in
ruins, The tower, which is sup-
posed to have becn built by the
Danes, is a hundred and ten feet
high, beautifully diminishing,
like the Tuscan pillar, from a
base of eightcen feet. In the
church-yard are two very old
and curious crosses, one about
eighteen feet high, on all sides
full of sculpture, called St. Boyn’s
cross. It is said to beall of one
stone, to have been sent from
Roine, and erected by order of
Near this are the

1| ruins of the beautiful and cele-

brated abbey ot Melicfout,

At Collon, on the R.is the fine
seat, with very, extensive planta-
tions, of the Right Ilon. John

1 Foster.

‘Three miles beyond Collon,

1 on the R. is Millextown, the seat

of Mr. Orson. There is at this
plece a church, which greatly

{J attracts the attention of the pub-
| lic, on account of the extraordi-
if nary position of one of the gable

ends.
Near Millextown is the glebe-
house of the Rev. Dr. Disney.
At Ardce on the R, isthe seat
of Richard Dawson, Esq. and on
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the L. that of William Ruxton,
Esq. There is here a very mag-
niticent mount of a great mag-
nitude,. called Castle-guard. 1tis
entirely artificial, and encom.
passed with a double ditch and
vallume Tt is now all planted
with wood, and looks very
romantic. The perpendicular
height of the mount from the
bed of its foundation is near
ninety feet, and the depth of the
main trench betwixt thirty and
forty.  The circumference at
the top is not Jess than an hundred
and forty, and round the foun-
dation upwardsof six hundred
feet. There appear to have been,
from foundations yet remaining,
two concentric octagonal build-
ings upon the summit of it.—
Oune seems to have been a sort
of tower or castle; the other a
¥ind of breastwork -or gallery,
by way of parapet or battlements.
These mounts were raised for
various purposes. Our  best
writers agree that the Daues
were the original authors of
them. -Some of them were for
forts to retire to in times of
danger; some were raised as
memorials -~ of  battles fought ;
sohue were as monuments of bu-
rials for persons of note slain in
the ficld; and others were for
assemblies of the people to de-
bate on public or private affairs.

Two niles from Ardee, on the
R.’is Charlestown-chuvrch, ‘

About a mile and a quarter
from Charlestown-.church, on’ the
R. is Lisreuy, the seat of Mr.
Filgate ; Rosy-park, that of Mr.
Fosters and Louth-hall, the seat
of Lord Louth. :

Opposite the mill of Louth, on
the L. is Thomastown, the seat
of Mr. Tenison, very pleasantly

To Londonderry, &c.

(50

and about half a mile from a small
beautiful lough.. a
. At Gorereagh, on the L. is
Essex-ford, the glebeshouse of
the Rev. DMr. Stopford; two
miles from which, on the L. is
Rahans, the seatof Mr. Noble.

Within four miles of Castle-

blaney, on the R. is Braca, the
seat of Mr. Henry.
. At Castleblaney, on the R.
near the church, is the seat be-
longing to Lord Blaney. Itis
pleasantly situated on the borders
of a very fine luke, that has
many very agreeable. islands 1n
it,

Within a mile of Clentibret.
church, on the L. is the globe-
house.

At Castle-shane, osn the R. is
the fine seat of Fraucis Lucas,
Esq. and about a mile on the L.
are the rains of Rack-wallace-
church. ) .

Within a mile of Monaghan,
on the R, situated on very rising
ground, is Culmain, the seat of

‘Mr. Graham; and a little far-

ther, Bessmount, the seat of My.
Montgomery. . :

At Monaghan, on the L. is the
fine seat of James Hamilton, Esq.
and two miles N, from that is
Falkland, the seat of the Rev,
Dr. Maxwell.

Two 'miles from Monaghan,
on the L. is Lagacory, the seat
of Dr. Somerville,

On the L. of Emy-valeis An-
ketell’s-grove, the fine seat, with
extensive and beautiful demesnes
and plantations, of T. Anketel],
Esq.

One mile beyond Emy-vale,
on the L. is Fort-Singleton, the
seat.of Mr. Singleton.

Three miles beyond Erigill-
church, on the R. is Favour-royal,

situated near the river Lagan, lthe fine seat of Mr. Moutray ;



§1] To Clogher,
neax a mile beyond which is
Port-pleasant, the segt also of
Mr. Moutray. |

A little beyond Augher, on the
L. is Castle-hill, the seat of Murs.
Mervyn. - ’ .

A mile and a half beyond
Augher, on the R.is Saville-lodge,
the seat of Mr. Cairns,

Two miles and’ a half from
Augher, on the R. is Lumford-
glen and waterfall. )

Six miles from Ballaghneed-
Inn, onthe L: is Drumconley, the
seat of Mr. M<Farlane.

Three miles beyond Omagh,
on the R. is Rash, the seat of
Lord Mountjoy, situated on the
river Cammon, o

Before you ‘enter Newtown-
stewart, on the L. is Bessie Bell’s-
Mount. o
. Two miles W. of Newtown-
stewart is Baron’s-court, a most
noble "seat of the Marquis of
Abercorn. The house only, ex-
clusive of the offices, cost twenty
thousand pounds,” and'is thought
to be one of the most “complete
models of a nobleman’s . house.
The grounds are fine, and well
wooded with oaks, ' -

Near Baron’s-court “is a large
lake, with an island," on which
are the ruins of a castle called
M‘Que, where a chief of that
name formerly resided: © ’

One “ mile  ‘beyond Dougtas-
bridge, on the L.  situated near
the river Foyle, are the raing of
a chuarch ; and not far from them
1s Urney, the great ‘glebe-house
of the Rector, lying on the banks
of the beautiful river Foyle.

Strabane is a large, populous,
and tolerably well-built town, on
the river Mourne, half a mile
from its confluence with the river
Fi.n at Liﬂ'ord~bridgc, which is
within view, and renders this situ-

and Strabane. 82

ation one of the most strikingly

beautiful spots in Treland. 1t
contains many gentlem‘cn’.s hou-
ses, and givesthe title of viscount
to a branch of the noble family
of Hamilton. Littord is .the
county town, situated on the river
Fovle, and hath a barrack for a
troop of horse. This town, though
but small, is well built; it gives
the title of viscount to the noble
family of Hewitt.

About three miles beyond Lif-
ford, on the R.is Porthall, the
scat of Mrs. Sampson. -

“YWVithin two‘miles of St. Jobns- -
town, on the R.is Magavlen, a
seat of the Marquis of Abercorn;
and near St. Johnstown, on the R.
is Tullavwen, that of Mr. Thom-
son. S .

“Near Carrigans on the L. are
the seats of Messrs. M*Clintock.

. DUBLIN, to Clogher.
Augher, asinp. 77 . | —[ 75%
Clogher, Tyroncl 13| 76%
At Clogher is the large’ sce-
house, with. extensive, demesnes
of the bishop ; and alittle 8. of
it is the deanery-house of the
Rev. Mr. Keating.

FromNewtown- Stewart to Strabane,
. by drdstraw-Bridge.

ArdstrawBridge, Tyrone] —| 3%
Swrabane . 51| 8%

One mile and ..a half - from
Avdstraw-bridge, on the R. are
the ruinsof a church. ‘

‘Within two miles of Strabane,
on the R. is Ballyfatton, the seat
of Mr. Hamilton ; and just be-
fore you come to Strabune, on
the R. is Ballycamon, the seat of

Mr. Hamilton,
G



83) To Londonderry,

Strabane to Londonderry, by
Grange.

—11013
23104

21]106%

331104
211121

Sirabane, as inp. 77
Ballymegarry, Tyrone
. Grange, or Mount-
Hamilton,
NewBuildings, L.Derry
Ferry-Bank
Loxpoxperry 13

About half a mile beyond
Ballymegarry, on the R. is Reck-
patrick-church. :

At Grange, or Mount-Hamil-
ton, on the L. is the seat of Mr.
Hamilton; and near it are the
ruins of a church.

Within onc mile and a hLalf
of Londonderry, on the L. is
Prehen, the seat of Mr. Knox,
situated on the river Foyle.

DUBLIN to Dunfunaghy.

Lifford, as in p. 77. | — 102§
Ballindrait, Dancgal, 131045
Raphoe, - 1 23107.
Letterkenny 6111133
Kilmacrennan 5 |18t
Glen-Inn 531244
Dunfanaghy 841323

At Ballindrait, on the R. is
Cavaua-cor, the seat of DMrs,
Kays, pleasantly situated on the
banks of a small river. '

“At Raphoe, on the L. is the
seat of the bishop of Raphoe;
and about half a mile tothe R. is
Oakficld, the deanery-house of
the Rev. Dr. King. The man-
sion-house of the bishop, whichis
a castle, was built for defence at
the expense of govermment in the
reign of Charles I. It stood a
siege in the rebellion of 16415 it
was beautified and repaired lately
by bishop Oswald, and is now a
kandsome dwelling.

Raphoe is a small place, but
the see of a bishop, It was

and Daunfanaghy. [84
founded by St. Eunan, about the
middle of the sixth century, and
a cathedrd] was erected on the
ruins of the chur¢h of St. Eunan,
in the eleventh century. Patrick
Magonail, bishop of Raphoe,
built three episcopal houses in
1360; and bishop Pooley, by
will, bequeathed 200l for re-
pairing the cathedral ; which
money was applied by his suc-
cessor. Within a few years, a
round tower was standing on a
hill, in which the bishops of
Raphoe kept-their studies. -A
celebrated cross, said to have
been famous for the performance
of miracles, stood in-the catle-
dral, but was about the year
1438 removed to Armagh, by
bishop O*Galchor.

At Kilmacrennan are the ruins
of a church. )

Between Kilmacrennan and
Glen-inn, you pass over Lough-
salt, a lofty mountain, with a
large lake on the summit, en.
compassed with clifts of rocks.

T'wo miles beyond Glen-inn,
on the R. arc some magnificent
ruins of a castle ; about a mile
from which, divided by ayinlet
of the sea, is Ards, the seat of
Mr. Wray,

On the demesne of Hornhead,
the scat of Mr. Stewart, within
two or threc miles of Dunfa-
naghy, is one of the greatest
curiosities in’ Ireland, called
M*Swaine’s Gun. It consistsof a
funnel perforated through a rock
by the beating of the sea against
it; by which means it has at
last forced a passpge, and rises in
an enormous jet d’ eau . of six or
seven feet in thickness, some-
times to the height of forty or
fifty feet. Its roaring is often
heard ten miles oft in calm
weather, . The stone the rock.is
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formed of, is a granite of a gree-
nish colour spotted with black,
likke the ophites of thé ancients.

Within two miles and a quarter
of Dunfanaghy, on the' L. is
Ballymore-church ; and about a
mile to the R. is Marble-hill, the
seat of Mr. Babington. ]

Within two miles of Duunfa-
naghy, on the R. at the foot of
a lofty-hill, are the ruins of a
castle, and within half a mile of
Dunfanaghy, on the L. are the
ruins of a cnurch.

DUBLIN to Ardee and Monaghan,
by Stane and Carrickmacross.

Finglass,

Dublin} —| 3
Pass-if-you-can 2% 5%
St. Margaret’s 3 53
Chapelmidway 14 72
Kilsallaghan 1 83
Greenoge, DMeath: 1} 93
Curragha 41 133
Kilinoon-Church 13 15%
Black-Lion 3% 19
Slane 5] 24
Grange-Fortescue’ 31 271
Ardee Louth| 53 33
%‘lonkeen 3136

‘uu'd‘( -

B?Slngc, } Monaghan' 2% 384
Carrickmacross 41 494
Bullybuy' 103} 532
Tullycarbet 3] 50}
Mong Shan 414 Go%

N. B. There is a road made
from Pass-if-you-can through
the'. commons of Kilsallachan,
Which is half a mile shorter than
by Greenoge.

A little to the L. of Pass-if-
You-can is Plunker’s-castle, seat-
ed in the midst of plantation of
trees,

About two miles beyond the
nlfl church of St. Margaret’s is
New:park, the seat of John
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Rochfort, Esq. and about a wmile
and a halt beyond Chapelmid-
way stands the castle of Kilsal-
laghan -in ruins; and a mile far-
ther is the castle of Greenoge.
On the L. of Curragha s
Killbrew, the fine scat of M.

| Gorges.

About a mile from Kilmoon-
church, 6n the L. are the ruins
of Macetown-castle, formerly of
great importance; and about u
mile farther are the ruins of a
church.

Haif a mile beyond Black-
Lion, on the R. is Summer-ville,
the fine seat of - Sir Marcus
Somerville, Bart.

Within a mile and a half of
Slane, on the R. is Cullen, the
seat of Mrs. Aiken. -

At Slane, on the R. situated
on the Boyne, are the noted
flour-mills, belonging to  Mr.
Jebb and Co.

On the L. of Slane, most de-
lighttully situated on the banks
of the river, is Slane castle, the
fine seat of the Earl of Conyng-
ham. The grounds are very
bold and various, rising around
the castle in noble hills, or bean-
tiful inequality of surface, with

an outline of flourishing planta-
tions. Under the casde flows

the Boyne in a reach, broken by
islands, with a very fine shore of
rock on one side, and woud on
the other. Through the lower
plantations are ridings, which
look upon several beautitul scenes,
fermed by the river aud lake in’
the distant country, exhibiting
noble views of waving cultivated
hills, with the - castle finely situ-
ated in the midst of the planted
demesne, through which the
Boyne winds its beautiful course,

Slane, though now a smali
place, was, . in the time of Hugh

G2
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de Lacic, a'town of some note,
being one of the boroughs in his
palatinate of Meath, The her-
mitage -of Eirc, which lies S. of
the town near the river, takes its
name from St. Eirc, the first
bishop of Slane, who was con-
secrated by St. Patrick, and died
November 20th, 514, in the
ninetieth year of his age. An
abbey for canons regular was
founded here in a very early age,
on the hill at some distance fromn
the hermitage, and was remark-
able for being many years the
residence of a royal prince; for
in 653, Dagobert, king of Aus-
trasia (part ot France) when only
seven years old, was taken by
Grimvald, mayor of the palace,
and, by his direction, was shorn
as a monk, rendered unfit to hold
the reins of government, and ba-
nished into Ireland : he was re-
ceived into this abbey, where he
-obtained an education proper for
the enjoyment of a throne. He
‘coutinued here twenty years,
when he wasrecalled into France
and replaced in his government.
A large castle was erected here
by the family of Lord Slane, who
being afterwards engaged in the
rebellion of 1641, the estate
vested in the crown, and the
castle is now in the possession of
the Earl of Conyngham, who is
employing every aid of archi-
tecture and design to render it
a truly elegant residence.

Mr. Jebb’s flour-mills  at
Slane, which are situated at the
R. of the town, on the river
Boyne, deserve the curious tra-
veller’s closest attention. They
are large and excellently (well
built ; they were begun in 1763,
and fnished in 1766. Thewater
from the Boyne is conveyed to
them by a weir, six hundred and
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fifty feet long, twenty four-feet
in base, and eight feet high, of
solid masonry, and the flood-
gates are constructed with great
ingenuity. The canal is eight
hundred feet long, and sixty-four
feet wide : onone side is a wharf
completely formed and walled
against the river, whereon are
offices of several kinds, and a dry
dock for building lighters. The
mill is one hundred and thirty
eight feet long, the breadth fitty
four, and the height to the cor-
nice, forty-two feet, The corn,
upon being unloaded, is hoisted
through doors in the floors to
the upper story of the building,
by a very simple contrivance,
being worked by the water
wheel, and discharged into spa-
cious granaries which hold five
thousand Dbarrels.; thence it is
conveyed, during seven months
in the year, to the kilns for
drying, the wmill containing two
which will dry eighty barrels in
twenty four hours: from the
kiln 1t is hoisted again to the
upper story; thence to a fanning
machine for re-dressing, to get
out dirt, soil, &c. and thence, by
a small sifting machine, into the
hoppers to be ground; and is
again hoisted jnto the bolting-
mills, to be dvessed into different
sorts of pollard and bran. In all
this progress, the machinery is
contrived todo the business with
the least labour possible. The
mill will grind with great ease
one hundred and twenty barrels,
of twenty stone each, every day.

At new Grange, near Slane,
there is a large Danish mount,
which has been found to be the
cover of a noble heathen temple,
Near the foot of the mount there
is an aperture or entrance, which
over head is eovered with a large
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flat stone. A person who enters
must stoop for a considerable
distance, when the upper part
rises higher uatil you enter the
temple, which is formed in sh_ape
like a bee-hieve, rising in he\g}.\t
upwards of twenty feet, and 1n
circumference thirty feet. The
sides are wade up of prodigious
large stoncs, with some sculptures
upon the eads and sides.. There
are two altar stones, one on the

X. the other-on the L.

- About three guarters of a mile
beyond Slane, on the L. are the
ruins of a once magnificent and
venerable abbey ; and a mile far-
ther, on the R, is Rathmaiden.

Within a mile of Grange-
fortescue, on the L. are the ruins
of a church.

Three miles beyond Grange-

fortescue, on the R. is Drakes-
town, the seat of Mr. Manning.

Near Clonkeen-church is the
seat of the Rev. Dr. Levins.

Half a mile beyond Laggan-
bridge, on the L. is Careless, the
seat of Mr. Sillery.

On the L. of iCarrickmacross
is the glebe-house of the Rev.
Mr. Canphell. .

Near Tullycorbet-church, on
th: L. is the seat of the Rey, Mr.
W'nls;»ley.

To Custlehiansy by Carrickmadcross.
Carrackmacross, as

in p. 85 . ,
Castleblancy, Monaghan) 8%

121
51

One mile from Carrackma-
cross, on the R. is Longficld,
" the seat of Mr. Noble ; and near
a mile thence, on the R. is Dun-
mayne-church ; near which is
the seat of Mr. Noble, and a
handsome glehe-house of the
Rey, Mr, Caulfield,

‘To Castleblaney, Duleek, &c.
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Five miles beyond . Carrick-

'macross, on the R. is Brdca, the

seat of Mr. Henry. - . .

At Castleblancy, on the R. is
a ve'ry noble and beautiful seat of
Lord Blaney, with fine and ex-
tensive parks and demesnes,

.DUBLIN ¢o Duleck and
Drogheda.
Kilmoon-Church; .

asinp. 85 —| 19%
Duleek, Louth| 51| 202
Drogheda +3) 25

N. B. The road from Glassne-
vin and Forest to Greenoge is a
mile and a half farther than by
Chapelmidway, -+

A mile and half beyond Kil-
moon-church, on the R. are the
ruins of the church of Crossma-
cole, seated amidst some trees.

Within two miles of Duleek,
on the L. is Athcarne-castle, in-
habited by Mr. Henry Garnet ;
and almost a mile beyond, on
the L. is Ann’s-brook, the scat of
Mr. Hamilton. :

Duleck is but an inconsiderable
town, but yet a great thorough-
tare to the northern parts, It
was anciently the episcopal seat
of St. Kenan; and the first church
in Ireland that was built of stones,
was erected there, as appears by
a MS. in the public library of
Cambridge.  St, Kenan was born
in Muuster, is said to have receive
ed his education in France, and
died in November, 1483, In the
reign of Edward II1. it was the
estate and manor of Theobald de
Verdon; who in 1338 obtained
the grant of holding a Friday
market here, and a fair eight days.

At Duleek, on the L. and situ-

ated qn the banks of the river
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Nanny, is the seat of Thomas
Trotter, Esq,

One mile beyond  Duleck, on
the R. is Mount-hanover, the
scat of Mr, Curtis.

Two miles and a quarter be-
yond Duleek, on the L. is Plat-
ten, the seat of the late Graves
Chamney, Esq. ‘This house
stauds on the site of a castle,
built by the Darcys, which was
one of the greatest buildings of
the kind in this kingdom. ©

Near a mile from Platten, and
farther to the L. on the road
from Drogheda to Slane,is Cruise-
rath, the seat of Mr. Netterville.

On the L. of Drogheda s
Ball’s-grove, the seat of Mr. Ball,
pleasantly situated on the river
Boyne,

DUBLIN to Killybegs, and conti-

nued to Dunfanaghy.

Castle-Knock, Dublin) — 33
Clonee i 7
Black-Bull-Tnn, Beath] 33| 10}
Ten-Mile-Bush i 11§
Dunshaghlin il 14
Tarah-Hill 19
Doudstown 3 20%
Navan 233
Sells § 314
Virginia, Cavan 401

Bally-Jumes-Duff
Cross-Roads

e Dl B
en
=
=
o

©©+t§&umuummu9©qu—hxa—mu

Cavan 54

Butler’s-Bridge - 57

Wattle-Bridge, Ferman.| 53} 62

Newtown-Butler 653
Donough 674
Lisneskea 703
Magwire’s-Bridge HKEE
Lisbellaw % 751
Enniskillen 79:
Church-hiil 881
Belleek-towy 974

See auother voad to Navan, p.
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Ballyshannon, Donegal] 4}{101%
Ballintra 4311054
Laghy - 23{108%
Donegal 244111
Mount-Charles - 3 14
Inver 3 {17
T'he-Port 13{118%
Killybegs 5211253
Ardra 8 1131}
Naren 43|136%
Strand - 241384
Shallagan-Bridge - 53144
Gibbarrow-River 2 |146
Duanglo - 6 1152
Guydore-River TiN50%
Gortahurk 931169
Duufanaghy 6il176

If you do not go into the town
of Killybegs, you save mear two
miles.

The rivers Gibbarrow ' and
Guydoreare fordable at low water,

N. B. This road is improper
for carriages farther than Naren.
The carriage road isby Ardra
Glentis,

In the Pheenix-park are the
seats of the Lord Lieutenant
and his principal secretary; with
some others,

At Castle-knock-gate is Mount-
sackville, the elegant seat of Mr,
Wade.

Near Castle-knock, on the L.
is the glebe-house of the Rev.
Dr. Connor; and a little beyond
the church, on the L. is the
seat of Mr. Warren. The rvins
of the castle of Castle-knock,
formerly a place of greatstrength,
built by the Tyrreis in the reign
of Henry 11. are a little to the L.
of Mr. Warren’s house, situated
on a rising ground.

- Dunsink lies about half a mile
to the R. of Castle-knock ; where

there is the handsome séat of
Mres, Malone, ’
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There is also on the highest
part of Dunsink-hill the Obser-
vatory of Trinity-college. Its
situation and circumstances are
siid to be superior to those of
most foreign Observataries,

One mile beyond Castle-knock,
on the R. is Sheep-hill, the seat of
Mr. Hamilton; and near it, Ab-
botstown, that of Mr. Faulkner.

JOne mile and a half from
Castle-knock, on the L. situated
in a very pleasant valley, is
Corduff, the seat of Mr. Warren ;
and near jtis L\'Iallahidcrt-chur_ch,
formerly a large and beautiful
fabric, hut now in ruins. The
church-yard is, however, much
used as a burial-place. Near it
isa very handsome well, supplied
with a remarkably fine spring of
water, and dedicated to the
Virgin Mary, whose statue in
Miniature is set up in a niche of
the building, in torm of a small
house, roung the well,

Three 1niles beyond Castle-
knock, on the R. is Damestown,
the seat of Mr. Proby.

At Upper Clonee, about half
a mile farther, on the L. ‘is-the
seat of Mr. Garnet. )

Eight miles from Dublin, on
the L. is Dunboyne-church, near
which is the seat of Lord Dun-
boyne ; and one mile farther, on
the R. Norman’s-grove, the seat
of Mr, Jones. . .
_About a quarter of a mile on
this side the Black-bull-inn, on
the L. is Wood-park, the seat of
Mrs. Shields; and three quarters
of a mile beyond the lun, on-the
L. is Rathtreggan, the seat of
Mr. Tighe. .

One mile beyond Ten-mile-
bush, on the L. is Parson’s-town,
the seat of Mr. Wilson. .

. At Duanshaghlin, on the R. is
the scat of Mr. Supple; and in
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the town is the very considerable
schoel of the Rev. Dr. French,

Two miles and a half from
Duuvshaghlin, on the R. is the
castle of Killeen, the property
of Lord Fingal; . and. adjoining
the old church of Killeen, on
the L. is Warren’s-town, the geat
of Mr. Johnston; and near it
is Duusany. the seat of Lord
Dunsany. .

Tarah, anciently Temora, was
supposed to have been formerly
a wmagnificent royal palace, the
residence of the kings of Ireland,
whe=e a triennial parliament wags
held, in which were assembled
all the nobility, gentry, priests,
historians and men of learning
distinguished by their abilities
in all arts and professions,
wherein they enacted new laws,
repealed such as were useless or
burdensome to the subject, and
consulted nothing but the public
welfare in all their resolutions.
But this flattering representation
has been disputed by some late
English writers,. who have vain-
ly attempted to prove that it is
without the smaliest foundation
iu truth. } :

At the foot of Tarah-hill, on
the R. is New-hull, the seat of
the Hon. William Brabuzon ; and
alittle farther te the R. is Lis-
mullan, the seat of Baron Dillon.
Tarah-church stands to the L.
on the summit of the hill. And
two miles beyond Tarah-hill,
on the R. are the ruins of the
old charch of Doudstown; and
about a mile to the L. is Ballin«
ter, the fine seat of Lord Tarah,

A lhttle farther, and on the
opposite side of the Boyne-river,
is . Ardsallagh, 8 beautiful seat
of the Earl of Ludlow ; and en
the R, Killearn, the seat of Mr.
Barry. About 2 mile farther is
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major Wade’s flower.-mill, “ad-
joining the bridge of Killcarn,

Within a mile of Navan, -on
the R. is Athlumuy, the seat of
Mr. Baron Metge. .

Near Navan, on the  R. are
the ruinsof the castle and church
of Athlumny, once a noble struc-
ture, said' to have been burnt by
one Maguire, who dreaded the
approach of Cromwell, aftér his
taking Drogheda. ) :

A mile and a half beyond
Navan, onthe R. is Rathaldren,
the seat of Mr. Cusack.

Two miles beyond Navan, on
the L. is Avdbraccan, the fine
seat of the bishop of Meath,
with ample demesnes.

Near Ardbraccan, on the R.
is the castle ‘of Liscartan, the
birth-place of the first Lord Ca-
dogan, to which family it be-
longs. A mile beyond 'it, on
the opposite side of ‘the Black-
water, is Randul’s-town, the very
fine seat of Mr. Everard ; and a
mile farther, on the L. is Bache-
lor’s-lodge, the seat of Mr. Wade.

"Two miles beyond Ardbracean,
on the R. is Tankard’s-town, the
seat of Mr. Gerard, near the
ruins of a castle and *Donough-
patrick-charch. = ° 7 - -+ .

A mile farthet on the L. is
Hurlestown, - the seat ¥ DMr.
Lowther.w: - Co St

A mile to the L. 15 Allen’s-
towi, the seat and beautiful de-
mesne of -Mr, Waller ; and near
it is Charles-fort,  that of Mr.
Tisdall ; aud three ' quarters of
a mile farther, ‘more to the R. is
Fyan’s-town, an old castle of Mr.
Barnwall. s

Within a mile of Kells, on
the R. is Headfort, the very mag-
nificent and delighttil seat, with
extenstve. and - beautiful  de-
mesnes, parks and plantations, of

:
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the Marquis of Bective. "The
grounds fall agreeably in front of-
the house, to a winding Rarrow’
vale, which is filled with wood,
where also is'a ruin; and on
the other side, the lawn spreads’
over a large extent, and is every
where bounded by very fine
plantations. = To - the R. the
town of Kells is picturesquely
situated amohg groups of trees,
with a fine waving country and
distant mountain; to the L. is
arich tract of cultivation. The
plantations are numerous and
thriving. Besides these, and an
incredible quantity  of walling,
his lordship has walled in seven-
ty-six acres for a garden and
nursery, and built six or seven
large pineries, ninety feet long
each. He has built also a farm
yard, two hundred and eighty
feet square, totally surrounded
with oflices of various kinds.

A little beyond Kells, on the
R. is Stonebrook, the glebe-house
of the archdeacon of Meath :
and two miles farther, on very
rising ' ground;, on -the L. is
Drumbarra, that of “the Rev:.
Dr. Woodward, ™" -+ -~ ©

Two miles beyond Kells, on
the R. is Maperath, the seat of
Mr.- Rowley; and two ‘niiles
tron it, on the L. Joneshorough,
the seat of Mr. Jopes.

On the L. of Virginia is a
pretty large lake, called Lough-
ramor,  in “which are several
islands, where there are the ruins
of some castles.- - - .

‘About a mile and ‘a quarter
on the L. of Virginia," situated
on the side of a hill, is Port-fre-
derick; the seat of James Tuite,
Esq: - - o ,

_Two miles and a half beyond
Virginia, on the R. is Lurgan-
church. :
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Cavan is a tolerably good town,
and hath a barrack for atroop
of horse. Itis the capital of the
county of the .same name. In
the year 1300, a monastery of
the  Virgin Mary was founded
here by Giolla Iosa Ruadh, (i. e.
the servant of Christ) O-Reilly,
Dyunast of Brefliny, for friars of
the order of St. Dominick ; but
the same sept of the O¢Reillys
about the year 1393, expelled
the Dominicans, and gave the
house to the. conventual Francis-
cans.. In 11468, this monaste-
ty, together with Bally-Reilly,
OReilly’s mansion seat, was burnt
by.the Euglish, under the Lord
Deputy, John Tiptoft, Earl of

Vorcester. The friars of the
strict observance reformed this
monastery before the year 1499 ;
and provincial chapters of the
order were held there in 1521,
1539 and 1556. Owen O¢Neill,
the famous general of the Irish
army; dying, by poison as some
supposed, at Cloughoughter, in
this county, the 16th November
1649, was buricd in this abbey.

A mile and a half to the L. of
Cavan, is Farnham-house, the
seat of the Earl of Farnham.
The lakes near the house are un-
Conmonly beautiful, They are
extensive, and have a shore ex-
tremely varied.  On  one side
are large thick hedge-row trees,
with nieadows behind them; on
the other is a most ‘noble range
of hanging wood, which spreads
on each side to a great distance,
Covering a bold shore, and to
4 considerable height; nor are
they wuniform in their outline,
the hills over which they spread,
varying greatly ; in some places
Presenting a continued sweep, in
Othgrs, breaking the line, and
Projecting into the lake. In one
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part the shore consists of grass
in¢losures, the hedges are scat-
tered with trees, and, mounting
upon the slopes, forma very fine
scenery. Nothing can be more
pleasing than the whole. to. the
R. of the lake; the meadows
are of undulating lands that wave
about in a variety ‘of forms.
These beautiful fields rise above
the lake, which they command
in some places, and in others
Tetire from.

At Wattle-bridge, within three
miles of Newtown-butler, situ-
ated near the river Fin, on the
R. are the ruins of an ancient
temple of the druids; and, di-
rectly opposite, is Castle-Sander-
son, the seat of Mr. Sanderson,

On the R. of Wattle bridge,
is St. Mary’s-church ; and near
a mile farther, Parson’s green,
the glebe-house of the Rev. Mr,
Hastings.

Newtown-butler i1s an inconsi-
derable place, but gives the title
of baron to the Karl of Lanes-
borough.

Two miles beyond Donough,
on the R.is Glassdrummin, the

| seat of Mr. Noble ; - and Holly-

brook, that of Mr. Armstrong.

On the L. of Lisneskea, is
Balfour-castle, the seat of NMr.
Balfour.-

Within a mile of Magwire’s-
bridge, on the R. is Lisnagoal,
the seat of Mr. Aucliinlech.

About half a mile to the L. of
Magswire’s-bridge, is Dromgown,
the seat of Joseph Hill,” Esq.
and near two miles beyoud it,
on the R. Millwood, that of Mr.
Crawford ; and  Snow-hill, the
secat of Mr. Johnston.,

Near five miles from Ma-
gwire’s-bridge, 1s Bellisle, the
superb and beautiful scat of the
late Earl of Ross. Itisan island

H
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in Lough-crne, of two hundred
acres, every part of it hjll, dale,
and gentle declivity. It has a
great deal of wood, much of
which 1s oll, and forms deep
shades, and open cheerful groves
The trees hang on the slopes,
and consequently shew them-
sclves to the best advantage. A
reach of the lake passes before
the house, which is situated near
the banks among some. fine
woods, which give both beaunty
and shelter. This sheet of water,
which is "three miles over, is
hounded in front by an island of
thick wood, and by a bold circu-
lar hill, which was his lordship's
deer-park ; "this hill is backed
by a considerable mountain. To
the R. are four or five clumps ot
dark wood, and as many islands,
which rise boldly from the lake,
the water preaking in sheets be-
tween them, and forming a scene
extremely picturesque. On the
other side,. the lake stretches
behind a wopd, in a streight,
which forms Bellisle. Ilis lord-
ship made walks round the island,
from which there is a gonsidera-
ble variety of prospect. "A tem.
ple is built on a geptle hill,
commanding a vyiew of the
wooded islands above-mention-
ed ; but the most pleasing pros-
pect of them is comjng out from
the grotto ;: they appear in an
uncommon beauty ; two seem
to jnin, and the water that flows
between takes the appearance
of a fine bay, projecting deep
into a dark wood. The park
rises above thewn, and the whole
is backed with mountains. The
home scene at your feet also is
pleasing ; a lawn, scattered with
trees, that forms the margin of
the lake, closing gradually in a
?bick wood of tall trees, above
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the tops of which is a distant
view of Culteigh mountains,
which arc thence scen ip their
proudest solemnity.

T'wo miles and a half beyond
Lisbellawv, on the L. is Belle-
vue, the seat of Evles Irwin, Esq.
and on the R. is Castlecoole, the
seat of Lord Belmore.

On your R. before you enter
the town of Lnniskillen, is Chan-
ter-hill, the seat of the Rev. Dr.
Smyth ; and before you cross
the bridge of Lnniskillen, on a
small height, are the remains of
a redoubt, occupied by the people
of the town, when they defended
themselves so successfully against
king Jumes’s army. o

Four miles N. W, of Lopiskil-
len, near Ballycassidy, are subter-
raneous caves, called the Daugh-
tons, being the curious works of
natyre. 'T'he entrance is by a
large arched cave twenty:five
feet high ; the roof is rock, com-
posed of various picces in regular
order. This leads into another
of the same form, but not quite
so high, and from that is conti-
nued by narrow  passagés into a
brook, which, passing through
those upknown recesses, dischar-
ges itself at the first entrance.

At Bel Cou, a small distance
from Enniskillen westward, on
the great road to Sligo, there isa
celebrated well, called Davugh-
phadrie, which is reputed to be
the best cold bath in the kingdom.
It bas come into great request,
having relieved yast numbers in
nervous and paralytic disorders.
It exhibits a large stream, which
turns two mills at one hundred
and fifty yards distance from the
head.

Enniskillen is situated between
three lakes, and hath a barrack
for three companies of foot.
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Our readers scarce need be in-
formed, that its inhabitants
greatly distinguishied themselves
in the wars of Ireland at the
revolution §  out of whom a re-
giment of dragoons, bearing the
same name, was mostly formed.

Near one mile beyond Enuis-
killen, on the R. i1s the free-
school, kept by the Rev. Mark
Noble ; and near it are the ruins
of a castle.

Ou Devenish-island, about two
miles from Enuaiskillen, are very
considerable remains of a fine ab-
_bcy for canons regular, founded
i the sixth century, by St. La-
fernian,  E. of the abbey is a
beautiful and very perfect round.-
tower, seventy-six feet high and
torty-one in circumference, built
of hLewn stone about a fuot
Square, and with scarcely any
mortar 5 the roof is formed like
@ cone and finished -with one
large stone, shaped like a bell;
1t has four windows near the top,
and the form of a man’s face
over each, The chuarch is sup-
posed to be rebutlt about 1449, —
here were many ancient inscrip-
tions, but now destroyed and
erased by time. The soil of this
Island is'so rich, that (a modern
traveller says) it sets for £5 per
acre,

Near three miles from Ennis-
Killen, on the R, is Dunbar, the
seat of Mr. Crosier ; und a mile
farther, on the R. close by the
LOUgh side, is Castle-hume, a
Yery fine and delightful seat of

Hugh Montgomery, Esq. The
grounds - here are beautifully

trowned with wood. Car and
‘erry islands are cut into fields
ol corn, and give a sweet vari-
¢ty ; while the woods of Castle-
lume sarround a bay to the R.
at the bottom of whick is the
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castle, half hidden with trees.
It opens, however, to the view
soon after, and is accompanicd
on each side by a fine wood.
The lake then takes the form of
a bay, betwecn some pretty cul-
tivated slopes on one side, and
Devenish-island on the other,
with its tower full in view., Ad-
vancing, the coast on the RI.
consists of beautiful, cultivated
hills, divided into euclosures by
hedges, and the  waving hills
rising one beyond another, ina
various and pleasing manner.
The opposite shore is the same,
but the  view more distant.
When you come abreast of De-
veunish round-tower, you will
find the scenery on the R.very
beautiful ; the wood at the ex-
tremity, the waving hills under
grass aud corn, which spread
over this whole coast, form also
the scenery in front, aud unite
with the lake to make a most
pleasing landscape.

Witkin a mile of Church-hill,
on the L. is Wheat-hill, the
glebe-house of the Rev. Mr,
Nixon. )

A mile to the R. of Church-
hill, on the banks of Lough-
erne, are the ruins of a castle,

Five miles beyond Church-
hill, on the R. is Castle Cald-
well, on the opposite side of
the lake, a noble and most de-
hightful seat of Sir John Cald-
well, Bart.  Nothing can be
more beautiful than the approach
to it. ‘The promontories of thick
wood, which shoot "inte Louagh-
erne, on which Castle-Caldwell
is situated, under the shude of a
great ridge of mountains, have
the finest offect imaginable. As
soon as you are through ihe
gates, tarn -to. the L. about twe
hundred yards to the edge of the

‘2
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hill, where the whole demesne
lies beneath the point. of view.
It is a promontory, three miles
long, projecting into the lake, a
beautiful assemblage of wood
and lawn, one end a thick shade,
the other grass, scattered with
trees and finishing with waend.
A bay of the lake breaks into
the eastern end, where it is per-
fectly wooded. There are six
or seven islands among them,
(that of Bow being three miles
long, and. one and a half broad,)
yet they leave a noble sweep of
water, bounded by the great
range of the Turaw mountains.
To the R. the lake takes the
appearance of a great river,
with two large islands in it, the
whole uniting to form.a most
glorious scene. The promon-
tory in the front of the house is
called  Ross-a-goul, and com-
mands a noble banging wood on
the banks of Ross-moor; aund
the woody necks that stretch
from the land beyond the house,
with several islands, give the
greatest variety to thescene. On
the Point, the late Sir James has
puilt an octagon temple, which
takes in several views that are
exceedingly pleasing. Thisneck
of land is a wood of forty acres.

About a mile beyond Castle-
Caldwell, is Lcurae, the beauti-
ful and handsome scat of Mr.
Johnston. .

On the R. of Belleek-town,
are the ruins of a church;- aud
below the town is a fine water-
fall. .

From Enniskillen. almost to
Belleck-town you have Lough-
erne to your R. which exhibits a
most pleasing variety of beautifui
and picturesque views.  From
its numbe# of islands, clothed
with wood and. verdure, you
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have a multitude of agreeable
and enchanting prospects. On
the L. and near the road, the
view is bounded by lofty and
steep hills, which reach to and
connect with the Turaw moun-
tains, a little beyond Church-
hill, and oppoesite to Sir John
Caldwell’s, and which give an
air of magnificence tothe plea-
sing variety below,

Near’ Ballyshannon are the
remains of the abbey of Ashrow,’
worth  seeing.  Some of the
gilding in the vault of the
cloister is still visible.

At Ballyshanuen there is a
salmon-leap, which is let at
£400 a vear. The scenery of it
is very bcautiful, It is a fine
fall, and the coast of the tiver
very bold, cousisting of perpen-
dicular rocks, with grass of a
beautiful verdure to the very
cdge. It projects in little pro-
montories, which grow longer
as they approach the seca, and
open- to give a fine view of it.
Before the fall, in the middleof
the river, is a rocky island, on
which is a curing house. The
town is.prettily situated on the
rising ground on each side of the
river.

Near a mile beyond Bally-
shannon, on the L. is Park-hill,
the seat of the Rev. Mr. Neil ;
and three quarters of a mile far-
ther, Covent-garden, that of Mr.
Atkison.

On the I. of Ballintra, is
Moneymore, the seat of Mr.
Knox'; and about a mile, on
the R. Brown-hall, the seat of
Join Hamilton, Isq. in whose
demesne there is a most romantic
subtérranecous river, well worth
the attention of the curions, from
the many fine cascades and lofty
arches formed in-its passage.

14
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Within a mile of Donegal
on the L. is Brookfield, the seat
of Mr. O‘Hara ; and opposite to
it arc the ruins of a castle.

Donegal is a small town, but
Ms bay is perfectly sheltered on
every side, and no part of the
Kinwdom is better calculated for
the suminer or winter fisheries,
than this country in gencral. The
sea coasts may be compared to a
mine of treasure, which needs
only be worked te furnish wealth
in abundance. - The summer
fishing in particular is exempt
from hazard, and would amply
repay  gentlemen, whose estates
are couticuous to the shore, if
they engaged in them with spirit
aud application. And there can
be little doubt but that will be the
case, from the noble example set
thewr by the- late Right Hon.
William Conyngham, who ap-
propriated a sum of twenty thou-
sandd pounds to get proper ac-
commodations for the fishermen,
and to carry on the north-west
fisheries to “the best adrantage,
[The patriotic principle that ac-
tuated this gentleman was most
<!cservc(l]y countenanced by par-
lmmentary encouragement.] The
fisheries will now give employ-
Tent to thousands, who were
formerly idle, aud there is no
doubt but in time will prove an
excellent nursery for seamen, be-
sidles betng a source of wealth to
tekingdomingeneral.  Nothing
¢an contribate more to this great
end, than a late act of parlia-
faent, for regulating the pay-
ment of bounties, and excmpting
™o from fees, obtained . by the
1}lglxt. Hon. Mr. Foster, when.
Speaker of the House of Com-
ons of Ireland.

. There is an old castle belong-
g to the Earl of Arran here.

To Killybegs, and Dunfanaghy.
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Donegal has near it, some an-
cient remains of a Franciscan
monastery of the’ strict obser-

vance, founded in 1474, Dby
Qdo Roe O‘Donnell and his wife
Penelope.

At Inver, on the R. situated on
the river Inver, is Clover-hill, the
seat of the Rev. James Montgo-
mery.

A mile and 2 half beyend In-
ver, on the R. is Kilmacredon,
the seat of Mr. Nesbit ; -and a
mile farther, on the L. Bally.
macdonunell, the seat of Mr.
Hamilten. .

Two miles {rom the Port, on
the R. is Duncanely-church ;
and a mile to the R. are the ruins
of a castle.

Within three miles of Killy-
begs, on the L. are Barney salt-
works.

Killybegs is situated at the
N. side of the bay of Donegal.
It is but a small fown, of no greas
trade. Its harbour however is
spacious enough to contain a
large fleet. 1t has a bold ‘and
ample opening to the sea on the
S. and is secured within by the
shelter of high lands surrounding
it; so thatvessels may enter at
any time of the tide, there being
from five to eight fathom water,
The herring fishery is the most
considerable of aay carried on
here; aund the town bids fair to -

increase in trade and conse-
qacnce.
At Telin-harbour, siz miles

beyond Killybegs, a considerable
white fishery is carried on - du-
ring the summer months.

Seven miles bevond Killybegs,
at Ardra, on the R. is Woodhill,
the seat of Mr. Neshit,

At Naren, on the . is the
slebe-house of the Rev. James
Montgomery.
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FWithin a mile of Gortahurk,
ou. the R. js Cashell, the seat oi
Mr. Finlay.

A mile beyond Gortahurk, on
the L. is Ballyconnell, the secat
of Mr. Olpherts; half a mile
beyond which is Cloghoneely-
church.

Near Dunfanaghy, on the L
on a peninsula, ncarly surround-
ed by the sea, is Hornhead, the
seat of Captain Stewart; and on
the R. are the ruins of a church.

DUBLIN 0 Rutland.

Mount-Charles, as in

p. 92, Donegal| —I114
Sir Albert’s-Bridge 6 [190
Glentis 3 1123
Shalagan-Bridge 3 1126
Gibbarrow-River 3 129
Drumlaghded-Hill 23131%
Dunglo 331135
Rutland, by Lackbeg | , |39

Ferry

Near Mount-charles, is the

Hall, a very fine scat of the late
Right Hon. William Conyng-
ham, with large and beautitul
demesnes ; and near it that of
Mr. Montgomery.

Four xx)gi?es l;}lrxd a half from
Nount-charles, on the L. close
to the road, is a small lake,
called Killiene-lough ; and a mile
farther, on the R.1is Sir Albert’s-
well.  Half a mile beyond the
well is Sir Albert’s-bridge.

A mile beyond Sir Albert’s-
bridge is Drienlin-bridge ; and
two iiles farther is another
bridge over the river Onea, or
Glentis,

About half a ile farther is
the village of Glentis, on the river
Amdrass. Here is held one of
the most considerable fairs for
black cattle in the N, of Ircland.

To Rutland, Ratoath, and Navan.
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Duaglo was, till lately, called
Cloghanlea. It is but a small
place, but of no small relative
inportance, on account of its
situation. An arm of the sea
exteuds to this place, in the -
centre of the district called the
Rosses. Here stands the parish
church, the mill, &ec. aud the
late Col. Conyngham built se-
veral neat houses there, and has
established a market for the sup-
ply of Rutland, and the isles of
Arran, &c. the scat of the fish-

ery.
Rutland is one of the above-
mentioned  islands, containing

one hundred and eighty acres,
and s 50 culled in compliment
to the noble duke of that title.
The town was fixed upon this
spot, from the advantage of
shelier to shipping, as upwards
of four hundred vessels annually
resort here to the fishery, and
lie in perfect security in three
fathoms water. The place is laid
out perfectly regular, with streets
of forty and fifty fect wide, and
so disposed, that the quays and
stores lie to the rear of the houses.
Several houses and storesare al-
ready built, and a meost complete
dock-yard is established.

DUBLIX to Naran, by Ratoath.

Cabragh, Dublin —) 2
Ratoath, Meath 103] 12%
Screen 63 193
Doudstown 311 93
Navan 31926
Two miles from Dublin, is

Cabragh, on the R. of which is

the seat of Lord Norbury. The

name of Cabragh, or Cabaragh,

is very ancient, and deserves ad-

verting to. - In very remote days,

the Corybantes were the priests,
R



10D]

of the Irish as well as of the
Greeks. The Cabiri (from the
lrish cobhar, aid, assistance) were
the gods, which both invoked in
sudden emergencies. Hence Ca-
baragh would seem still to retain
the name, from having been a
seminary of these ancient Cory-
bantes.

Four miles from Dublin, on
the L. are the ruins of Cappoge-
castle; and ‘about half a mile,
on the R. is Kildonan, the seat
of Mr. Clinch. .

Light miles and a bhalf from
Dublin, on the R. are the ruins
of Kilbride-church ; near which
is Mabbot’s-town, the seat of Mr.
Greene; and about a mile, on
the L. Priest-town, the seat of
Mr. Armstrong.

Within two miles of Ratoath,
on the L. is Kilrue, the fine seat
of the late George Lowther, Esq.
and about a mile on the R. is
Milntown, the seat of Mr. Gafhy,
near some church ruins.

Ratoath is a very poor village.
The church is built on the ruins
of an abbey; and nearitis avery
fine and conspicuous mount.

About half a mile beyond
Ratoath, on the L. is Ballymore,
the seat of Mr, Rathburn ; and
three quarters of a mile from it,
Laggore, that of the Rev. Mr.
Norman.

Three miles beyond Ratoath,
on the L. is Gerard’s-town, a
Pleasant seat, near which stands
the old church of Trevet, where
formerly an English colony was
settled ; and two miles on the
R. Sydenham, the seat of Mr.
Corbally ; and Cook’s-town, that
of Mr. \White, since purchased
also by Mr. Corbally. '

One mile beyond Screen-
church, on the L. is Lismullen,
the seat of Mr. Dillon.
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Opposite to Mr. Dillon’s seat,
ou the L. is 'Tarah-hill ; whence
and along al the road from
Screen, are very extensive and
beautiful prospects of the coun-

try.

DUBLIN to Lnniskillen, by Clones.

Kells, as in p. 91 - 31%
Moynalty. Meath; 3% 35}
~Or by Carlanstown.
Navan, as in p. 91 —| 23%
Fy ]‘;’r‘f(‘]‘;‘:"} Meath| 63! 30
Carlanstown 231 321
Moynalty, as above 24 853
Baillieborough, Cavan| 73 43
Coronery 43 47%
Cootehill 51 52%
Drum, Monaghan| 3 | 55%
Clones 5% 61%-
Donough,  Fermanagh| 61| 67%
Y Enniskillen 12 | 79%
See another road to Coote-hill,
p- 113,

One mile and a half from
Navan, on the L. near the river
Blackwater, is Rahaldren, the
scat of Mr. Garnet. '

Two miles and a half from
Navan, on the R. is Randal’s-
town, the fine seat of Mr. Eve-
rard.

Three miles and a half from
Navan, on the opposite side of
the Blackwater river, is Bache-
lor’s lodge, the seatof Mr. Wade;
and near halt a mile farther, is
Tankardstown, that of Mr. Ge-
rard.

Four miles from . Navan, on
the L. are the ruins of the church
of Donough-patrick. Here St.

Patrick founded an abbey, to
which Conal M*Neil was a great
benefactor. It was destroyed by
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fire, A.D. 745. Being rebuilt
it was plundered by the Danes,
A. D. 886 and 941; and pil-
laged and spoiled by Godred, at
the head of the Danes of Dublin,
A, D,951; and again A. D, 988,
assisted by Murtach O‘Connolay,
but it is remarkable that all who
were concerned in this act of sa-
crilege died in a month after :
At length, it was totally destroy-
ed by the Danes, A. D. 994.

On the L. of Fyanstown-
bridge is the seat of Mr. Barn-
wall; and two miles farther, on
the L. Headfort, the superb and
beaatiful seat of the Marquis of
Bective. .

One mile beyond Carlanstown,
on the L.is Newtown, the seat
of Mr. Meredyth. The  church
is very near it.

A mile and a half beyond
Newtown, lying on the road
from Kells to Moynalty, and
within half a mile of the latter
place, is Kingsfort, the scat of
Mr. Chaloner.

Half a mile beyond Moynalty,
on the R.is Walker’s-town, the
scat of Mr, Smith. There is
aroad from this to King’s-court
and Shircock.

‘I'wo miles beyond Moynalty,
on the L. is Rosc-hill, the seat
of Mir. Smnith ; and on the R
Smith park, the seat of Mr.
Edward Smith.

Near a mite from Smith-park,
Iying to the R. is Petersville, the
seat of Mr. Tucker.

Three miles beyond Moynalty,
on the L. are the ruins of a
castle ; and two miles farther,
on the R. those of a church.

At Baiilieborough, on the R.
‘is the seat of Mr. Coshy.

A mile beyond Baillieborough,
on the L. of the road, is a very
pleasant lough; a quarter of a
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mile to the L. of which is Bail-
lieborough-castle, the fine seat of
Mr. Stewart.

Tio miles and a half beyond
Baillieborough you ‘come to two
more loughs, situated on the L.
of the road, and communicating
with each other, by means of a
stuall stream. -

Within three quarters of a
mile of Coronery, on the R. is
Knockbride-bridge, situated on
the banks of a small lough.
Three miles beyond Coronery,
on the L. are the ruins of a
church; and half a mile farther,
is Keighan, the seat of Mr.
Patten.

On the R. of Cootehill is
Bellamont-forest, a plain edifice,
with extensive parks and  de-
mesnes, ‘the seat of the late Earl
of Bellamont.

A mile to the R. of Coote-
hill, is Dromore, the seat of
Mr. Mayne ; and near it, Daw-
son’s-grove, the superb and de-
lightful seat of Lord Cremorne.

Cootehill is a large post-town,
wherein the linen business is car-
ried on extensively.

A mile and a  half beyond
Cootehill, on the R. situated on
very rising ground, is Freame-
mouat, the seat of Mr. Mayne.

On either side of Drum is a
small lough.

A mile beyond Drum, on the
R. is Currygarry, the seat of Mr.
Higgms ; and a little beyond it,
at the foot of a little hill, Lislea,
that of Miss Walsh, -

Within three miles of Clones,
on the R. is Drumswords-church.

Within two miles of Clones,
onthe R. is Lesspabuck, the seat
of Mr. Bradshaw, situated near
a small and pleasant lough.

At Clonesare large ruinsiof an

ancicnt abbey,
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Two miles beyond Clones,
on the L. near -the road, is
Knockballymore, the seat of
Lord Erne; and half a mile
farther .is Belmont, that of Mr.
Colston; nearly opposite to
which is Jonestown, the seat of
Mr. Irvine. ‘

A mile beyond Jonestown,-on
the L. close to the road, are the
tuins of a church.

At Donough are the ruins of a
church near a small lake.

About a mile and a quarter
beyond Donough, on the L. is
Manor-waterhouse, the seat of
Mr. Madden.

For vemarks en the Road
from Donough to Enniskillen,
see p. 91. )

DUBLIN le'ngscourt‘

and
Cootehill,

Navan, as in p. 91 — 233
Killberry, - Meah | 3 | 263
Cairnhill-Turnpike 51313
Nobber , 14| 332
Newcastle . 34 363
Kingscourt, Caranj 2 | 38%
Shircock 6| 442
Cootehill 74 52%

One mile beyond Killberry,
and about a mile to the L. s
Arch-hatl, the seat of Mr.
'ayne.

‘Two miles beyond Killberry:
churcl, and near a mile to the
L. is Fletcher’s-town; the seat of
the Rev. Mr. Roberts; Knights-
town, that. of Mr. Beath; and
Mountain’s-town, that of Mr.
Gibbons,  Between these two
ast-mentioned seats are the ruins
of a church. :

Within three miles of Nobber,
on the: R. is Gravel-mount, the
seat of. Mr. Weldon; and about
half a mile farther, on the same,

To Kingfcourt, and Cootehill.
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side, near Castletown-chrch, is-
the glebe-house of the Rev. Mr. .
Close. . Half a mile fromy Castle-
town-church is the turnpike. i

Within a mile of Nobber, situ-.,
ated on a hill, on the L. is the
seat of Mr. Cruise; and within .
half a mile of Nobber, is Cruise-
town, the seat of another gentles |
man of the same name. .
‘ About a mile to the L. of
Nobber, is Brittas, the seat of Mr.
Bligh ; and near a mile farther
is Whitewood, a seat of Lord
Gormanstown, )

Within a mile of Newcastle,
on the R, is Carrickleck, tlie’seat
of Mr. Sillery; and within a
quarter of a mile of Newcastle
is the seat of Mr. Verner, plea-’
santly situated at the side of a
small lough.

- A mile and a quarter beyond
Newcastle, and a quarter of a
mile to the R. is Innisheene-
church. ‘ '

At King’s-court, on the R. on |
the summit of a hill, is the very ’
elegant and beautiful seat of M.
Pratt, . lisq. called Cabragh--
castle.

Three miles beyond King’s-
court, and a quarter of a mile to
the L. is a small lake, called
Droughlone, situated at the foot
of a hill; and a mile farther,
close to the road, on the same
side, is another lake somecwhat
smaller.

At Shircock is the seat of Mr.
Adams, near which are two

small loughs, and a large lake,

cailed Lough-Swillan.

Within three miles and. a
quarter of Cootehill, on the L. is
Belle-green, the seat of Mr.
Brunker; and near a mile from
it is Newgrove, the seat of Mr.
Mayne, both pleasantly situated
on the banks of the¢ Annalee,
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To Skircock, by Carrickmacross.
Carrickmacross, asp. 85} — | 424
Shircock 61l 483

At Carrickmacross, on the R.
is the seat of the Rev. Mr,
Campbell. '

At Shircock, on the R. is the

glebe-house of the Rev. Mr.
Ad